
LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

1 

 

 

2 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table of Content 
 
 

 
Section    Description    Pages 

 
 

A         LDM Annual Report                        3-186 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
B          LDA Annual Report        187-241 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C          Consolidated AFS                          242-321 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
D           Auditor General Report                322-330 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION A 

LDM’S ANNUAL REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VISION 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

4 

 

 

“A LEADER IN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICE DELIVERY TO    

ALL” 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 

THE LDM STRIVES TO ACHIEVE ITS VISION THROUGH 

1.  PROVIDING SOUND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

2.  PROVIDING EXCELLENT, VIBRANT PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND 

HIGH QUALITY  LOCAL  MUNICIPAL SUPPORT PROGRAMMES 

MAINTAINING GOOD WORKING RELATIONS IN THE SPIRIT OF CO-

OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE 

3. ENHANCING HIGH STAFF MORALE, PRODUCTIVITY AND 

MOTIVATION 

 

THE VALUES OF THE LDM ARE THE FOLLOWING 

1. INTEGRITY 

2. HIGH WORK ETHICS 

3. OPENNESS 

4. TRANSPARENCY 

5. HONESTY 

6. CONSULTATION 

7. PROFESSIONALISM 
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LDM STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
 

 
1. Strategic objective - Build a capacitated workforce and 

communities. 
 

 
 

2. Strategic objective - Sustainable Environmental Management 

and Public Safety 
 
 
 

3. Strategic objective - Growing an inclusive district economy. 
 
 

 
4. Strategic objective - Financial Viability. 

 
 
 
 

5. Strategic objective - Good Governance. 
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VALUES 

 

 

Category B Municipalities in South Africa were mandated to perform the under – 
mentioned functions for the achievement of set goals and objectives of a development 
by central Government. 

 Municipal abbatoirs 
 Municipal park and recreation 
 Local Sport Facilities 
 Street Trading 
 Municipal planning 
 Municipal Roads 
 Public places 
 Refuse removal , refusal of dumps and solid waste 
 Traffic and parking 
 Municipal Public Transport 
 Public, Nuisance control Fire Fighting Service 
 Pontoons, Ferries, Jetties, Piers and Harbors 
 Markets Stalls and Trade Arears 
 Storm Water Management 
 Local Tourism 
 Cemeteries, Funeral Parlours and Crematoria 
 Building, Trading Regulations, Liquor and Public, Nuisance Control 
 Beaches and Amusement Facilities Advertisements in Public Places 

 

Section 84 of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000) provides for the 
following functions of District municipalities. 

 Integrated Development and Planning for the District as s whole 
 Bulk Infrastructure Planning 
 Solid Waste Disposal 
 Provincial Roads 
 Regulation of Passenger Transport Services 
 Municipal Health Services 
 Fire Fighting Service in the District / Disaster management 
 Promotion of Local Tourism. 
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Lejweleputswa District Municipality continues to forge and strengthen relations with local 

Municipalities in the District and plays its role of support, coordination, facilitation and innovation 

as mandated by the legislation. Through, integrated development planning and promoting bulk 

infrastructural development, the District strives to capacitate local municipalities in performing their 

functions to address issues of service delivery and triple challenges that are facing our country as a 

contribution to THUMA MINA PROJECT.
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EXECUTIVE MAYOR'S FOREWORD 
 

This annual report for 2017/2018 provides an overview of the lessons and the challenges we 

have faced throughout the year in both our organisation and the community. It is our hope 

that you will find this report both informative, helpful and that it will give you a greater 

understanding of the work undertaken by our municipality.  In all our Municipalities 

throughout our entire country, the notion of accountability is the cornerstone for all that we 

do. The report is a clear indication of our commitment as the Lejweleputswa District 

Municipality to the principle of accountability, and our commitment to build a truly 

responsible, responsive and caring local government. 

The financial report is a clear indication of the measures we have taken to enhance internal 

controls and improve financial management in the District. Our focus was to ensure that 

scarce resources allocated to programmes aligned with priorities of the Lejweleputswa 

District Municipality. 

In its preamble, the Freedom Charter (1955) cautions us “no government can justly claim 

authority unless it is based on the will of the people.” The Charter being the blueprint, upon 

which our democratic future is established, our municipality ensures that public participation 

remains the hallmark of all government work.  

Our focus is also on youth development programmes as we acknowledge young people as 

the future of our District and the country as a whole. We acknowledge the potential that our 

young people have in this District and as a result, we have launched the Lejweleputswa 

District Youth Desk that has to co-ordinate all youth development initiatives and promote 

the interests of young people within the District. 

Despite the challenges we have faced, the district remains committed to improving access to 

basic services to its citizens. As we continue on our march to deliver on our 2016 Manifesto 

commitments, we pledge ourselves to continue to work with our people to leave no stone 

unturned in fulfilling our objectives by accelerating and doubling our efforts to bring about 
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a better life to all our people. We will do so in an accountable and ethical manner, as we have 

been proven to do over the years. 

A special gratitude goes to the administration for their dedication and hard work. Had it not 

been for their diligence, commitment and passion for their work this municipality would not 

be celebrating the achievements it recorded thus far. 

 

 

---------------------------------------------------------- 

Cllr Sebenzile Ngangelizwe 

Executive Mayor 
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MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW 
 

The District has ensured a focused approach on ensuring compliance with section 

131(2) of the Municipal Financial Management Act, which states that a Municipality 

must address any/all issues raised by the Auditor General in an Audit Report. To 

date, the District has cleared most audit findings as per the 2016/2017 Audit Action 

Plan. “We remain committed towards Operations Clean Audit (OPCA)”. Our Internal 

Audit Division has been very instrumental towards this, as they have contributed to 

the maintenance of a control environment that is conducive to implementation of 

Good Governance principles. The District also appreciates and acknowledges that, 

strategy execution is blemished if our palate and risk appetite are not in sync. Against 

this, we have ensured continued mitigation of our risk items as per our strategic risk 

register. 

The IDP which serves as a service delivery master plan of the municipality has 

improved tremendously, compared to those of the 2016/2017. With a solid foundation 

having been laid, communities can have assurance that their needs as planned for in 

the IDP will be turned into tangible deliverables. 

The Lejwe Le Putswa Development Agency have made some stride over the year by 

reconstructing their scope of work and their vision. To date, appointment of new 

board members has been finalised, the re-engineering model for the entity is at an 

advanced stage, where the entity will assume a more robust focus on facilitating high-

impact investment & economic development programmes across the Lejweleputswa 

Region 

In an effort to ensure compliance with the National Air Quality Act and reduction of 

air pollution levels, a total of 16 industries including mines have been inspected across 

the region. A further six (6) Atmospheric Emission Licences have been issued to 

industries to date in order to control pollution levels and ensure compliance with the 

National Minimum Emission Limits. 

In line with Environmental Health Development, we have maintained our blue drop 

status on drinking water which makes our water safe and of good quality. We have 

conducted 804 food handling inspections of which 1054 inspections have been found 

to be complaint. This clearly demonstrates that we still have more work to do in order 
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to encourage safe food handling, 204 water samples taken to minimise risk and 145 

day care centres inspected complaint. In line with regulation No 363 of 2013, we have 

inspected 162 funeral parlours of which all are complaint after training interventions. 

In this regard, the municipality will work tirelessly with all the spheres and sectors of 

government to reach these communities. Where a service is being provided, there will 

always be inadequacies and dissatisfactions, and as a requirement, the municipality 

has established a fully-fledged Customer Care Centre that receives all complaints 

from communities and channels such complaints to the relevant authorities for 

redress 

As we pursue our service delivery agenda, we will never take our communities for 

granted and most importantly never again will the municipality be found wanting on 

issues of compliance. 

 

------------------------------------- 

Ms Palesa Kaota 

Municipal Manager
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1.1. MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND THE ENVIRONMENT 

 
Lejweleputswa District Municipality is situated in the mid-western part of the Free State province, with 

an estimated area of about 31930 km2 (Local government hand book, 2013). The district borders the 

North-West province to the north, Fezile Dabi District Municipality to the north east, and Thabo 

Mofutsanyane District Municipality to the east. It also borders Mangaung Metro and Xhariep District 

to the south and the Northern Cape Province to the west. It consists of 22.9% of the Free State province’s 

population, down from 26.7 % in 1996 (IHS Global Insight, 2015). The District is made up of five local 

municipalities, namely; Matjhabeng, Tokologo, Tswelopele, Nala and Masilonyana with about 17 

towns1.  

The economy of the District relies heavily on the gold mining sector as the largest sector, dominant in 

two of the municipalities, Matjhabeng and Masilonyana, whilst the other Municipalities are dominated 

by agriculture. There is less diversification of the District’s economy relying heavily on the mining 

sector and community service sector as the largest employers in the District. Matjhabeng is the largest 

municipality in the District and contributes the largest share of GVA-R in the District. The average 

annual GDP-R growth rate stands at -1.5 percent in 2014 for the District and forecast to decline even 

further to -2.9 percent in 2016 according to IHS Global Insight, as a result of low international 

commodity prices and a persistent drought in the agricultural sector. Output in agriculture is forecast 

downwards and prices in agricultural goods are expected to rise due to low output levels as given by 

the South African Reserve Bank in their monetary policy statement in September 2015 for the country 

in general. 

 

Demographic profile 

 

Lejweleputswa District had a total population of 630 912 in 2014, broken down into 318 662 males and 

312 249 females. The District contributed 22.6 percent to the Free State’s population in 2014, down from 

23.24 percent in 2005. Most of the inhabitants are Africans, constituting 88.73 percent of the total 

population, followed by Whites (8.86 percent) and then Coloureds (1.9 percent), with a very small 

Indian community of 0.45 percent. There are more males (51.0 percent) in Lejweleputswa than females 

(49.0 percent). 

 

                                                      
1Soutpan and Glen area and the surrounding farms in Masilonyane have been incorporated into Mangaung Metro in 2015 
(Municipal demarcation Board, 2015) 

19 
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Figure 4.1: Lejweleputswa District population pyramid 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

According to figure 4.1 above, the population pyramid of Lejweleputswa, for the years 2005 and 2014 

has a broad base, indicating a large portion of children and the youth below 25 years of age. In 2005 

Lejweleputswa District had a relatively large proportion of middle aged inhabitants, both the males 

and the females above 15 years of age and below 30 years of age, compared to the year 2014 which has 

a relatively sliding scale of both males and females in the same age cohort of 15 years and 30 years. The 

reflection of the relatively large proportion of the middle aged population in the District in 2005 

coincided with a relatively strong mining sector, specifically in Matjhabeng. Whilst a smaller middle 

age group in 2014 indicates migration away from the District in general terms, probably to other mining 

related towns in search of better living conditions like platinum sector in the North West, which has a 

similar kind of operational structures like the gold sector, and therefore uses similar kinds of labour 

skills. The migration patterns of Lejweleputswa, especially in its smaller municipalities, is as a result of 

better employment opportunities by the working age groups. From figure 4.1, it is evident that in 2014 

women were living longer than men, almost doubling them. In the age group 75+ there are 4 367 males 

against 8 623 females. This is reflective of a better life expectancy for women than for men, although for 

both men and women life expectancy has improved between 2005 and 2014. 
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Figure 4.2: Population growth rates in Lejweleputswa by local municipalities 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

Figure 4.2, indicates that the growth rate in Lejweleputswa’s population had been negative for 

the large part of the review period (2005 – 2014) with the exception of 2008 (0.3%), 2009 (0.4%) 

and 2010 (0.2%), where it showed some positive recovery. The recovery happened because 

Matjhabeng, which contributed 25 percent to the population of the District, showed some 

positive growth rate during the period 2007 to 2011, which had a pulling effect on the District’s 

population growth rate. Nala displayed negative population growth rate reaching -4.1 percent 

at its lowest point in 2008, which had a little impact on Lejweleputswa due to its small 

contribution to the District population. The average growth rate for Lejweleputswa for the 

period under review is -0.2 percent, indicating a decline in the total population of the District. 

The decline is due to among others, net out migration and low fertility rates according to 

Statistics South Africa (2013).  

The two most worst performing local  municipalities in terms of population growth rate are 

Nala with a -2.3 percent average population growth rate and Tokologo with -1.6 percent 

average population growth rate between 2005 and 2014.  

Figure 4.3: Population Distribution in Lejweleputswa District as a percentage 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Lejweleputswa -1,1% -0,8% -0,2% 0,3% 0,4% 0,2% -0,1% -0,2% -0,1% -0,1%

Masilonyana -0,6% -0,4% 0,0% 0,4% 0,4% 0,4% 0,3% 0,2% 0,2% 0,3%

Tokologo -0,5% -1,1% -2,4% -3,2% -3,2% -2,1% -1,2% -0,8% -0,7% -0,6%

Tswelopele -1,2% -1,3% -1,5% -1,6% -1,5% -1,2% -0,9% -0,8% -0,7% -0,6%

Matjhabeng -1,2% -0,5% 0,9% 1,9% 1,9% 1,1% 0,4% 0,2% 0,2% 0,2%

Nala -1,1% -1,8% -3,2% -4,1% -4,0% -2,9% -1,9% -1,5% -1,4% -1,2%
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Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

Matjhabeng had the highest share of Lejweleputswa’s population at 65.36 percent in 2014 according to 

figure 4.3, which is up from 61.10 percent in 2005, followed by Nala with 12.46 percent and Masilonyana 

with 10.20 percent all in 2014. The total District‘s share of the population in the province has declined 

from 23.24% percent in 2005 to 22.49 percent in 2014, which is a 0.75 percentage point decline. The 

decline in Lejweleputswa’s share of the population was driven more by smaller municipalities because 

Matjhabeng increased slightly between 2005 and 2014, as a result of mainly outward migration from 

the smaller municipalities. 

 1.2. Economy structure and performance 
The main economic activities in the Lejweleputswa District happened in the primary sector 

and the tertiary sector. The primary sector in Lejweleputswa is driven by agriculture and 

mining. Matjhabeng is the largest municipality in the District and it contains most of the mining 

activities, especially gold mining, followed by Masilonyana with some of the gold mining and 

diamond mining. Recently the mining sector has been on a downward trend as a result of 

closure of many of the shafts as a result of high costs of production among others and the need 

for deep mining. The recent decline in world commodity prices, has aggravated the situation 

in general with many businesses that have traditionally dependent on the mining sector either 

have closed down or are in the process of closing down. Other municipalities’ primary sector 

rely heavily on agriculture. 
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Economic Structure 

Figure 4.4: Sectoral composition of Lejweleputswa economy (%, current prices) 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

The composition of the District’s economy is dominated by the primary sector at 52 percent in 

2014 as shown by figure 4.4, up from 41 percent in 2005. The tertiary sector contributed 42 

percent to the District‘s economy in 2014, decreasing by 9 percentage points from 51 percent in 

2005. The secondary sector’s share declined from 8 percent in 2005 to 6 percent in 2014, further 

indicating the difficulties that the sector is facing. Very little value adding is taking place in the 

region by using the vast primary products the District has in abundance. 

 

Sectoral composition of the economy 

 

Sectoral composition is the contribution of the different sectors to total GDP of Lejweleputswa’s 

economy. This includes all the nine sectors within an economy of a region as classified by the 

South African Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) of all economic activities (CSS fifth 

edition). 

  

 

 

 

 

Primary 
sector
41%

Secondary 
sector

8%

Tertiary 
sector
51%

2005

Primary 
sector
52%

Secondary 
sector

6%

Tertiary 
sector
42%

2014



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

19 

 

 

 

Table 4.1: Sectoral composition of Lejweleputswa’s economy by local municipalities, 2014. 

2014 Lejweleputswa Masilonyana Tokologo Tswelopele Matjhabeng Nala 

1 Agriculture 5.6% 6.2% 24.6% 36.9% 0.8% 17.7% 

2 Mining 46.5% 50.3% 21.6% 1.2% 56.0% 4.7% 

3 Manufacturing 2.5% 2.1% 2.9% 2.2% 2.1% 5.2% 

4 Electricity 1.5% 1.2% 2.9% 2.8% 1.3% 2.3% 

5 Construction 1.7% 2.2% 2.5% 1.8% 1.5% 2.6% 

6 Trade 11.0% 8.3% 12.3% 15.4% 10.0% 17.6% 

7 Transport 6.3% 5.2% 5.0% 7.8% 5.6% 11.8% 

8 Finance 10.8% 8.4% 7.6% 10.6% 10.8% 13.9% 

9 Community 
services 14.2% 16.2% 20.7% 21.4% 11.9% 24.0% 

Total Industries 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
 Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

The 2014 sectoral composition of Lejweleputswa as revealed by figure 4.5 points to the dominance of a 

few sectors in the economy of the District. According to table 3.1, the mining sector is the dominant 

sector with 46.5 percent of the economic activities of the district, followed by community services sector 

at 14.2 percent and then trade at 11 percent. The smaller municipalities of Nala, Tswelopele and 

Tokologo are the municipalities without mining as the dominant sector, instead Tswelopele has 

agriculture as the dominant sector at 36.9 percent in 2014. Nala had government services as the 

dominant sector with 24 percent in 2014, whilst Tokologo had agriculture as the dominant sector with 

24.6 percent in 2014. In recent years the contribution of mining in Lejweleputswa’s economy has been 

declining due to a number of reasons and recently the effect of lower world commodity prices has 

fueled the decline of the sector. The share of the primary sector in Lejweleputswa’s GVA has also been 

on a decline, indicating a shift away from the primary sector to the tertiary sector. The community 

services sector is growing strongly in all of Lejweleputswa’s municipalities and is also forecasted to 

grow further.  

 

Tress Index 

The tress index measures the level of diversification or concentration of a region’s economy. 

The index ranges between zero and one. The closer to 0 the index is, the more diversified is the 

economy. The higher the index or closer to 1, the less diversified the economy, and the more 
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vulnerable the region’s economy to exogenous factors that can include things like adverse 

economic conditions due to natural disasters, like global warming (Wikipedia, 2015). 

 

Figure 4.5: Tress index of Lejweleputswa and the Free State and its Districts 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

Lejweleputswa’s economy has been leaning more to a less diversified economy due to its 

increase closer to 1 of its Tress Index over a ten year period as illustrated by figure 4.5. Even 

though Lejweleputswa’s Tress Index has improved in 2014 (56.93 percent) as compared to 

(55.01 percent) 2005, the worst years of its less diversification were 2013 (61.32 percent) and 

2012 (60.66percent). This simply indicates fewer industries dominating the region’s economy, 

thus the vulnerability of the region’s economy to outside shocks becomes very easily. 

If compared to the rest of the province, Lejweleputswa is the second less diversified regional 

economy in the Free State after Mangaung Metro. The most diversified economy is that of 

Fezile Dabi among the Districts and the province is even better than all the Districts. 

 

Location Quotient 

Location quotient reveals what makes a particular region “unique” in comparison to the 

national or provincial average. It is basically a way of quantifying how concentrated a 

particular industry or cluster is as compared to the province or nationally (EMSI Resource 

library, 2015) 
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Figure 4.6: Lejweleputswa’s Location Quotient 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

According to figure 4.6, above the dominant sector in Lejweleputswa is the mining sector with 

a location quotient of 5.05 in 2014, which has declined slightly from 5.10 in 2005. By its nature 

mining is more export orientated and brings into the economy of the region more money than 

any other sector in the region. Agriculture follows the mining sector though very small as 

compared to the mining sector with an increase in the location quotient of 2.31 in 2014 as 

compared to 1.54 location quotient in 2005. The other sectors are less concentrated in the region, 

all ranging less than 1 location quotient. Trade is one of a few sectors that have shown some 

positive growth in its location quotient from 0.76 in 2005 to 0.82 in 2014. 

 

 

Economic Performance 

The Gross Value Added by Region (GVA-R) measures the difference between inputs into 

particular region’s economy and the value of outputs (goods and services) in that region or 

sector. 
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Table 4.2: GVA-R. Contribution to total economic growth in Lejweleputswa (% point, Constant 2010 
prices)  

  2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

1 Agriculture 0.1% -0.4% 0.0% 0.9% -0.1% 0.0% -0.5% -0.1% 0.0% 0.2% 

2 Mining 0.8% -3.8% -0.7% -3.0% -2.0% 0.9% -1.3% -2.2% 1.9% -0.3% 

3 Manufacturing -0.2% -0.4% -0.1% 0.2% -0.2% 0.0% -0.4% -0.5% -0.1% -0.1% 

4 Electricity 0.0% -0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -0.1% -0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 

5 Construction 0.0% -0.1% 0.2% 0.1% 0.2% -0.2% -0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 

6 Trade 0.1% -0.4% 0.2% 0.1% -0.3% -0.6% -0.2% -0.2% -0.4% 0.0% 

7 Transport 0.1% -0.2% 0.2% 0.1% 0.0% -0.3% -0.2% -0.4% -0.2% 0.0% 

8 Finance -0.2% -0.5% -0.3% 0.1% 0.2% -0.5% -0.1% -0.4% -0.2% 0.0% 

9 Community 
services 0.2% -0.5% 0.3% 0.4% 0.1% -0.6% -0.4% -0.8% -0.2% 0.1% 

Total Industries 0.9% -6.5% -0.2% -1.1% -2.3% -1.3% -3.2% -4.8% 0.8% 0.0% 

Taxes less 
Subsidies on 
products 0.3% -0.6% 0.2% -0.4% 0.3% -0.4% 1.0% -0.6% 0.0% -0.1% 

Total (Gross 
Domestic 
Product - GDP) 1.2% -7.1% 0.0% -1.5% -2.0% -1.7% -2.2% -5.4% 0.8% -0.1% 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

The contribution of mining, which is the dominant sector, in Lejweleputswa district’s economic growth 

has been on a declining trajectory in the review period of 2005 to 2014 according to table 4.1. Table 4.2 

above illustrates that although mining has been on a downward trend, 2010 saw a 0.9 percentage point 

increase in its GVA-R, together with a 1.9 percentage point increase in 2013. Part of the 2013 growth in 

the mining sector was due to a favourable world commodity prices, which has recently been not very 

favourable according to the recent world statistics on commodity prices. On average total industries in 

Lejweleputswa are declining with the 2012 as the worst year with -4.8 percent decrease in total for all 

the industries.  The contribution of community services sector’ growth has declined from 0.2 percent in 

2005 to 0.1 percent in 2014, indicating a general decline in the activities of the sector. The decline of 

community services sector could be as a result of recent policy shift to “austerity measures” of trying 

to reduce government wage bill. The GDP growth in Lejweleputswa is also hovering in recession for 

most of the review period except for 2013, with a 0.8 percent recovery. 
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Gross Domestic Product 

 

Figure 4.7: GDP-R of Free State and Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

Figure 4.7 shows that the GDP-R of Lejweleputswa has been on a continuous negative territory 

for most of the period under review, except for 2005 with 1.2 percent and 2013 where it 

recovered by 0.8% percentage points on the back of a strong mining sector which was also 

positive in 2013 by 1.9 percent. However, it declined further again in 2014 to -0.1 percent, and 

it is also expected to decline further in 2015 on the back of low worldwide commodity prices. 

The negative growth rate experienced in most years in the District is affecting the District 

negatively and is one of the factors pushing people away from the District, leading to what can 

be termed economic migrants. The sustainability of the District’s economy is in jeopardy 

because of a continued negative growth rate in the District driven by a declining mining sector 

and a shrinking agricultural sector. However, the provincial growth rate has always been 

positive except for the 2009 recession, where it was below that of the District by -2.2 percentage 

points. The best growth for the province post the recession was in 2012, with a growth rate of 

3 percent, which was also the worst growth rate year for Lejweleputswa at -5.4 percent. The 

recession in Lejweleputswa in 2012 was driven by the mining sector with -2.2 percent and the 

community services sector with -0.8 percent and other tertiary sectors relying on the mining 

sector. The 2014 slump is also as a result of low commodity prices affecting the mining sector 

and a general decrease in total industries of -4.8 percent. 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Free State 4,2% 3,5% 3,8% 2,3% -2,2% 2,5% 2,0% 3,0% 1,7% 1,5%

Lejweleputswa 1,2% -7,1% 0,0% -1,5% -2,0% -1,7% -2,2% -5,4% 0,8% -0,1%
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Figure 4.8: GDP-R of Lejweleputswa and its municipalities 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

According to figure 4.8, the District’s GDP-R follows that of Matjhabeng to a large extent as 

compared to the rest of the municipalities. Lejweleputswa’s average growth rate for the period 

2005 to 2014 was -1.8 percent, which is a sign for a shrinking economy. The worst average 

growth rate for the District’s local municipalities in the review period was experienced in 

Masilonyana with a -2.7 percent average growth rate followed by Matjhabeng with a -2.4 

percent between 2005 and 2014. In 2008, Tokologo had the highest growth rate of 12.1 percent, 

which declined during the 2009 recession to -1.4 and further in 2011 to -9.9 percent making it 

the worst performing local municipality in Lejweleputswa in 2011. This kind of performance 

can only happen if there are few participants in the economy of the municipality who have a 

significant share of the economy. However the average growth rate for Tokologo municipality 

is 3.2 percent in the review period. Tswelopele has shown the highest average growth rate in 

the district with a 3.7 percent, followed by Nala with an average growth rate of 1.3 percent in 

the same period.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Lejweleputswa 1,2% -7,1% 0,1% -1,5% -2,0% -1,7% -2,2% -5,3% 1,0% 0,0%

Masilonyana 2,9% -6,7% -0,7% -2,4% -0,8% -0,5% -6,4% -9,1% -2,9% -0,1%

Tokologo 8,8% 4,5% 11,9% 12,1% -1,4% 2,7% -9,9% 1,2% -0,9% 2,5%

Tswelopele 4,3% 3,8% 9,7% 8,1% 1,0% 3,8% -0,3% 2,0% 1,9% 2,7%

Matjhabeng 0,5% -8,7% -0,7% -3,0% -2,4% -2,7% -1,8% -6,5% 1,5% -0,6%

Nala 4,0% 0,2% 0,9% 4,6% -2,0% 1,1% -0,1% 1,5% 0,9% 1,8%
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GDP-R per capita. 

Per capita GDP-R is a measure of the total output of a region that takes into account the gross 

domestic product and then divides it by the number of the people in the region (World Bank, 

2015). It is one of the primary indicators of the region’s performance (investorwords.com, 

2015). It is calculated by either adding up everyone’s income during the period or by adding 

up the value of final goods and services produced in the region during the year 

(Investorwords.com, 2015)  

 

Figure 4.9: GDP-R Per Capita of Lejweleputswa 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

Figure 4.9 above shows the relative performance of the Free State’s real GDP-R per capita 

against that of Lejweleputswa from 2005 to 2014. The real GDP-R per capita of the Free State is 

on the rise indicating an increase in the standard of living of the people of the province. It 

increased from R48 881in 2005 to R56 853 in 2014, which is an average increase of 16.3 percent 

between 2005 and 2014. On the other hand the GDP-R of Lejweleputswa decreased by 17.5 

percent between 2005 and 2014 i.e. from R54 235 in 2005 to R44 709 in 2014. This indicates a 

declining standard of living of the people of Lejweleputswa. A decline in the average standard 

of living in one of the regions of the province should be a course for concern for the government 

and policy makers. 

 

  

 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Free State 48,881 50,649 52,560 53,659 52,308 53,405 54,202 55,558 56,257 56,853

Lejweleputswa 54,235 50,762 50,851 49,918 48,719 47,794 46,769 44,322 44,711 44,709
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Sectoral analysis and forecast. 

Sectoral forecasts are used to help governments and policy makers to determine their strategies 

over a longer period using historical data to predict future developments in major variables or 

sectors of interests. 

Table 4.3: GVA-R. Forecasted Contribution to total economic growth of Lejweleputswa 

(Constant 2010 prices) 

          Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

 

Table 4.3 shows the outlook of total contribution to Lejweleputswa’s economy’s economic 

growth per sector, from 2010 to 2019, almost a ten year period. The most important sector in 

Lejweleputswa’s economy, i.e. mining is expected to decline further in the outlook period from 

contributing 0.9 percent to the District’s economic growth in 2010 to –0.8 percent in 2019. The 

decline can also be explained by a natural process in the development of any economy, where 

as the economy modernize the importance of primary sector slow down and that of the tertiary 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

1 Agriculture 0.0% -0.5% -0.1% 0.0% 0.2% -0.3% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 

2 Mining 0.9% -1.3% -2.2% 1.9% -0.3% -0.1% -1.4% 1.1% -0.3% 
-

0.8% 

3 Manufacturing 0.0% -0.4% -0.5% 
-

0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

4 Electricity -0.1% -0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

5 Construction -0.2% -0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

6 Trade -0.6% -0.2% -0.2% 
-

0.4% 0.0% -0.2% 0.0% 0.1% 0.3% 0.3% 

7 Transport -0.3% -0.2% -0.4% 
-

0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.2% 

8 Finance -0.5% -0.1% -0.4% 
-

0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 

9 Community 
services -0.6% -0.4% -0.8% 

-
0.2% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.2% 0.3% 

Total Industries -1.3% -3.2% -4.8% 0.8% 0.0% -0.7% -1.3% 1.6% 0.6% 0.3% 

Taxes less Subsidies 
on products -0.4% 1.0% -0.6% 0.0% -0.1% 0.1% -0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Total (Gross 
Domestic Product - 
GDP) -1.7% -2.2% -5.4% 0.8% -0.1% -0.6% -1.6% 1.6% 0.5% 0.2% 
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sector increases, this phenomenon is also called structural change to the economy. Furthermore 

the decline can be explained by a normal process where most of the mines or mine shafts are 

reaching the end of their life span. Agriculture in Lejweleputswa is only expected to stabilize 

around 0.1 percent contribution in the outlook period from 2016 to 2019. The tertiary sector 

(i.e., the trade industry and community service) is expected to grow positively in the outlook 

from -0.6 percent contribution in 2010 to 0.3 percent for both in 2019 respectively. However, 

what is worrying is the slow improvement or slow growth in the secondary and the tertiary 

sector to counter the dominance of the mining sector in the District. The total outlook for the 

GDP is also expected to be negative in the forecasted period, as a result of a strong pulling 

effect of the dominant sector. The resultant negative growth is at the back of lower world 

commodity prices also forecasted to be very much subdued in the outlook. 

Sectoral analysis and forecast. 

Sectoral forecasts are used to help governments and policy makers to determine their strategies 

over a longer period using historical data to predict future developments in major variables or 

sectors of interests. 

Table 4.3: GVA-R. Forecasted Contribution to total economic growth of Lejweleputswa      

(Constant 2010 prices) 

  2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

1 Agriculture 0.0% -0.5% -0.1% 0.0% 0.2% -0.3% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 

2 Mining 0.9% -1.3% -2.2% 1.9% 
-

0.3% -0.1% -1.4% 1.1% 
-

0.3% 
-

0.8% 

3 Manufacturing 0.0% -0.4% -0.5% -0.1% 
-

0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

4 Electricity -0.1% -0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

5 Construction -0.2% -0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

6 Trade -0.6% -0.2% -0.2% -0.4% 0.0% -0.2% 0.0% 0.1% 0.3% 0.3% 

7 Transport -0.3% -0.2% -0.4% -0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.2% 

8 Finance -0.5% -0.1% -0.4% -0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 

9 Community 
services -0.6% -0.4% -0.8% -0.2% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.2% 0.3% 

Total Industries -1.3% -3.2% -4.8% 0.8% 0.0% -0.7% -1.3% 1.6% 0.6% 0.3% 

Taxes less Subsidies 
on products -0.4% 1.0% -0.6% 0.0% 

-
0.1% 0.1% -0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Total (Gross 
Domestic Product - 
GDP) -1.7% -2.2% -5.4% 0.8% 

-
0.1% -0.6% -1.6% 1.6% 0.5% 0.2% 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 
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Table 4.3 shows the outlook of total contribution to Lejweleputswa’s economy’s economic 

growth per sector, from 2010 to 2019, almost a ten year period. The most important sector in 

Lejweleputswa’s economy, i.e. mining is expected to decline further in the outlook period from 

contributing 0.9 percent to the District’s economic growth in 2010 to –0.8 percent in 2019. The 

decline can also be explained by a natural process in the development of any economy, where 

as the economy modernize the importance of primary sector slow down and that of the tertiary 

sector increases, this phenomenon is also called structural change to the economy. Furthermore 

the decline can be explained by a normal process where most of the mines or mine shafts are 

reaching the end of their life span. Agriculture in Lejweleputswa is only expected to stabilize 

around 0.1 percent contribution in the outlook period from 2016 to 2019. The tertiary sector 

(i.e., the trade industry and community service) is expected to grow positively in the outlook 

from -0.6 percent contribution in 2010 to 0.3 percent for both in 2019 respectively. However, 

what is worrying is the slow improvement or slow growth in the secondary and the tertiary 

sector to counter the dominance of the mining sector in the District. The total outlook for the 

GDP is also expected to be negative in the forecasted period, as a result of a strong pulling 

effect of the dominant sector. The resultant negative growth is at the back of lower world 

commodity prices also forecasted to be very much subdued in the outlook. 

         Gross domestic Product at Regional level. 

Figure 4.10: GDP-R growth Forecast for Lejweleputswa 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Free State 2,5% 2,0% 3,0% 1,7% 1,5% 0,5% 1,5% 2,2% 2,4% 2,4%

Lejweleputswa -1,7% -2,2% -5,4% 0,8% -0,1% -0,6% -1,6% 1,6% 0,5% 0,2%
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Figure 4.10 shows that the average growth rate of the Free State is expected to be 1.9 percent between 

2010 and 2019, which is the forecasted period. Lejweleputswa is expected to grow sluggishly with 

projected average of -0.9 percent over the forecasted period. The growth rate of Lejweleputswa is 

forecasted to be below that of the province for the entire forecast period and that has a dampening effect 

on the growth rate of the provincial economy. The result is that Lejweleputswa’s economy is dominated 

by the mining sector which is estimated to contract in the forecasted period. However, this dependence 

on the mining sector reflects the inability or the slowness of the District economy to diversify to the 

tertiary sector as the economy modernizes, thus reflecting a structural change or the deficiency thereof. 

The second dominant sector is agriculture and is also not growing as expected due to in general the 

consequences of global warming, and it shows that the district economy is more exposed to external 

shocks. 

Figure 4.11: GDP-R Growth forecast of Lejweleputswa and its municipalities, 2010 – 2019 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

Figure 3.11, illustrates that the forecasted growth rate of Lejweleputswa between 2010 and 2019 

mirrors that of Matjhabeng to a certain extent because of its large influence on the District 

economy. The average forecasted growth rate of -0.8 percent in Lejweleputswa in the 

forecasted period is influenced by the average forecast of -1.2 percent of Matjhabeng and –1.8 

percent of Masilonyana. The influence of the other three municipalities, i.e.,  Tokologo, 

Tswelopele and Nala which are expected to grow positively in the forecasted period ( 0.9%, 

1.2% & 0.8%, respectively) have very little impact on the overall outcomes of growth in the 

District because of their small economic sizes. The expected average growth rate for the three 

municipalities are Tokologo 0.9 percent, Tswelopele 1.2 percent and Nala 0.8 percent over the 

forecasted period. 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Lejweleputswa -1,7% -2,2% -5,3% 1,0% 0,0% -0,6% 0,5% 0,3% 0,0% -0,4%

Masilonyana -0,5% -6,4% -9,1% -2,9% -0,1% 0,1% 0,2% 0,5% 0,4% 0,1%

Tokologo 2,7% -9,9% 1,2% -0,9% 2,5% 2,7% 1,5% 2,3% 2,8% 3,7%

Tswelopele 3,8% -0,3% 2,0% 1,9% 2,7% -0,4% 0,5% 0,4% 0,3% 0,9%

Matjhabeng -2,7% -1,8% -6,5% 1,5% -0,6% -0,9% 0,6% 0,1% -0,3% -1,0%

Nala 1,1% -0,1% 1,5% 0,9% 1,8% -0,1% 0,2% 0,5% 0,8% 1,2%
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4. Tourism sector 

According to United Nations World Tourism Organization (UNWTO) tourism is defined as 

“comprising the activities of persons traveling to and staying in places outside their usual 

environment for not more than one consecutive year for leisure, business and other purposes” 

(2015). In today’s modern world, tourism is a major source of income for many countries, and 

it affects the economy of both the source and the host and is of vital importance. However 

tourism in the country is not well defined because it includes a host of other things related to 

other industries e.g. beverage, bed night and things like food. The importance of tourism is that 

it creates employment for people with less educational skills. For the purposes of simplicity we 

will employ bed nights in order to be able to deal with the number of tourists in the province 

and the District. 

 

Figure 4.12: Bed nights by origin of tourist 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

According to figure 4.12, the number of tourists in Lejweleputswa in 2005 were more than a million 

combined that includes the domestic tourists and the international tourists. The domestic tourists have 

been on a decline from 796 thousand plus in 2005 to just above 402 thousands plus in 2014. The 

international tourists started picking increasing just around the soccer world cup in 2010 from 588968, 

and catching up with domestic tourists who have been on a continuous decline at 624276 in 2010. The 

total number of tourists increased from 1,096106 million bed nights in 2005 to 1,577599 million bed 

nights in 2014 and a growth rate of 43 percentage points between 2005 and 2014.  

 

 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Domestic Tourists 796,784 779,420 752,125 718,215 672,253 624,276 564,605 514,819 456,378 402,845

International Tourists 299,321 324,888 350,429 400,240 454,164 588,968 697,583 843,235 1026,094 1174,754

Total Tourists 1096,106 1104,308 1102,555 1118,455 1126,417 1213,245 1262,188 1358,054 1482,472 1577,599
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Figure 4.13: Total tourism spending as a percentage of GDP (constant prices 2010) 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

Figure 4.13, illustrates that tourism spending as a percentage of GDP was 3 percent in 2005 in 

the district and started to decrease in 2008 from 2.6 percent, to 2.5 percent in 2010, and then 

started to increase again to 3.2 in 2014. The resultant decline was due to the economic recession 

in 2008/09 and only started to recover in 2012 to 2.9 percent. Between 2005 and 2007, total 

tourism spending as a percentage of GDP was above 2.9 percent and it was very much 

significant considering the small sector in the district. The average tourism spending for the 

period under review was 2.8 percentage points. 

 

Figure 4.14: Total tourism spend, (R1000, current prices) in Lejweleputswa. 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 
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Tourism has many economic benefits which includes the generation of foreign exchange, the 

creation of new employment especially to those with less skills, stimulation of trade, income 

and entrepreneurship in the service industry and greater tax revenue to mention some of the 

few benefits. According to figure 4.14, total tourism spending has generally been increasing 

from R546 million to R1, 070 million in current prices. Which shows that the spending by 

tourists at current prices is increasing and the benefits of tourists in the local economy have a 

multiplier effect.  

Growth in tourism 

Tourism is one of the major growing industries internationally and countries are doing 

everything to promote their own countries. Figure 4.15 illustrates that Domestic tourists are 

declining to a certain extent between 2005 and 2011, which means that they are not growing 

positively. However what is more promising is the growth of international tourists especially 

after the 2010 soccer world cup, and they have grown from 13.5 percent in 2009 to 14.5 percent 

in 2014, an average of 15.4 percentage points between 2005 and 2014 . What is also significant 

in the tourism industry, which the whole country can benefit from is the rise in China’s middle 

class, which is a huge potential for our country in relation to good ties the country has with 

China as a trading partner. South Africa and the province in particular can use the friendship 

with China in the BRICS Countries to lure them to our country and that can be a great boost in 

the local tourism industry. 

Figure 4.15: Growth in tourism 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Domestic Tourists -2,8% -2,2% -3,5% -4,5% -6,4% -7,1% -9,6% -8,8% -11,4% -11,7%

International Tourists 4,5% 8,5% 7,9% 14,2% 13,5% 29,7% 18,4% 20,9% 21,7% 14,5%

Total Tourists -0,9% 0,7% -0,2% 1,4% 0,7% 7,7% 4,0% 7,6% 9,2% 6,4%
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5. Labour market 

Employment in Lejweleputswa 

Economically active population comprises all persons between the ages of 15 and 64 years of 

age that are either employed or actively seeking employment (StatsSA, 2015) 

 

Figure 4.16 below illustrates that the economically active population of Lejweleputswa has 

been declining from 40.9 percent in 2005 to 37.8 percent in 2014, an average decline of -7.6 

percentage points with a growth rate -0.87 percentage points over the review period. The 

highest economically active population in Lejweleputswa’s municipalities is Matjhabeng with 

an average of 41.9 percent and it has been decreasing from 43.6 percent in 2005 to 40.5 percent 

in 2014. The lowest economically active population in the district is in Nala with an average of 

33.6 percent between 2005 and 2014 and is also declining from 35.1 percent in 2005 to 32.9 

percent in 2014. The other municipalities in the District namely; Tswelopele, Tokologo and 

Masilonyana have an average economically active populations of 35.4 percent and 34.4 percent 

respectively. A lower economically active population can also indicates a higher dependency 

ratio. 

 

Figure 4.16: Economically Active population as % of total population in Lejweleputswa’s 

municipalities (Official Definition) 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Masilonyana 38,9% 38,6% 37,7% 36,2% 34,5% 32,9% 31,6% 31,1% 31,2% 31,3%

Tokologo 37,6% 37,7% 37,3% 36,4% 35,4% 34,3% 33,6% 33,7% 33,7% 34,0%

Tswelopele 35,7% 36,1% 35,9% 35,3% 34,4% 33,6% 33,1% 33,2% 33,7% 34,0%

Matjhabeng 43,6% 43,6% 43,3% 42,9% 42,2% 41,5% 40,9% 40,4% 40,4% 40,5%

Nala 35,1% 35,5% 35,2% 34,5% 33,5% 32,7% 32,1% 32,3% 32,6% 32,9%

Lejweleputswa 40,9% 40,9% 40,7% 40,1% 39,3% 38,5% 37,9% 37,6% 37,7% 37,8%
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Table 4.4 below illustrates that Lejweleputswa’s employment is dominated by the community 

services sector at 20.57 percent followed by trade at 19.35 percent and then mining in third 

place with a 17.34 percent. The dominance of mining in Lejweleputswa is being eroded slowly 

as the sector is facing difficult times. However mining is still dominant in Masilonyana with a 

26.87 percent and Matjhabeng with a 21.44 percent, and both are traditional mining towns. 

Trade, community services sector and household sector plays a major role in the district as the 

employer, signifying the growing community service sector. Agriculture is also still very 

important especially in Tokologo with a 38.90 percent and Tswelopele with a 15.98 percent of 

the total employment in the district. 

        Table 4.4:  Total formal employment by sector as a percentage, 2014. 

  
Lejweleputsw
a 

Masilonyan
a 

Tokolog
o 

Tswelopel
e 

Matjhaben
g Nala 

1 Agriculture 7.51 4.69 38.90 15.98 2.62 
21.3

0 

2 Mining 17.34 26.87 2.72 0.92 21.44 1.46 

3 Manufacturing 5.40 3.62 2.81 3.28 5.08 
11.3

1 

4 Electricity 0.48 0.28 0.11 0.71 0.38 1.34 

5 Construction 5.64 9.76 2.03 6.30 5.81 2.83 

6 Trade 19.35 13.66 8.56 17.66 20.47 
22.2

2 

7 Transport 3.91 2.67 0.83 1.20 4.88 1.72 

8 Finance 7.89 8.45 2.67 5.36 8.89 4.99 

9 Community 
services 20.57 16.21 13.31 28.12 20.99 

19.2
9 

Households 11.91 13.80 28.07 20.48 9.44 
13.5

3 
Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

Unemployment rate in Lejweleputswa 

Statistics South Africa defines unemployment rate as a measure of the prevalence of 

unemployment and is calculated as a percentage, by dividing the number of unemployed 

individuals by all individuals currently in the labour force. 

Unemployment rate has increased in Lejweleputswa as illustrated by figure 4.17 below, from 

30.3 percent in 2005 to 40 percent in 2014, with an average of 32.8 percent in the review period. 

The highest rate of the unemployment in the District was recorded in Masilonyana which 

increased from 29.7 percent in 2005 to 46.2 percent in 2014, an average unemployment rate of 
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34.8 percent for the municipality. All of Lejweleputswa’s municipalities’ unemployment rate 

is increasing, with Matjhabeng recording the second highest unemployment rate after 

Masilonyana (46.2 percent) of 42 percent in 2014 from 30.9 percent in 2005, with an average of 

33.7 percent unemployment rate over the review period. The lowest recorded unemployment 

rate in the District was Tokologo which also increased from 20.3 percent in 2005 to 26.8 percent 

in 2014, with an average of 23 percent unemployment rate. Part of the unemployment in the 

District can be explained by the decline in the mining sector and agricultural sector and the 

accompanying multiplier effect on other sectors. 

Figure 4.17: Total Unemployment rate in Lejweleputswa (Official Definition %) 

 

Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

Male and Female unemployment rate 

Male and female unemployment is the share of each sex in the unemployment rate of a country 

or region. Traditionally unemployment rate for women has always been higher for females 

than for males. This is because males have always been regarded as the providers and females 

as the receivers. As a result men are more likely to be in paid employment than females 

regardless of race, females are more likely to be doing unpaid economic work. 

Figure 4.18: Male and Female Unemployment rate in Lejweleputswa (Official definition %) 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Masilonyana 29,7% 29,4% 29,2% 29,8% 31,2% 32,9% 34,7% 41,0% 44,0% 46,2%

Tokologo 20,3% 20,5% 20,7% 21,0% 21,8% 23,1% 24,3% 24,9% 26,7% 26,8%

Tswelopele 27,9% 28,1% 28,1% 28,1% 29,0% 30,1% 31,2% 31,2% 30,3% 30,2%

Matjhabeng 30,9% 30,3% 29,8% 29,8% 30,7% 32,0% 33,2% 38,2% 39,8% 42,0%

Nala 33,1% 32,2% 31,3% 30,9% 31,2% 31,8% 32,4% 32,5% 32,8% 33,2%

Lejweleputswa 30,3% 29,8% 29,4% 29,4% 30,3% 31,5% 32,7% 36,8% 38,2% 40,0%
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Source: IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

Figure 4.18 depicts a normal historical picture, where unemployment rate for men is lower than 

that of their female counter parts. The unemployment rate for females has fallen slightly during 

the 2008/09 recession to 37.7 percent from 41.3 percent in 2005. However after 2009 the female 

unemployment increased again to 35.8 percent in 2014. The result could signal that females are 

easily discouraged during times of recession and after the recession they join the labour market 

again by seeking employment. Unemployment rate for men has remained lower than that of 

the their female counter part for much of the period under review, starting from 22.0 percent 

in 2005 increasing to 35.8 percent in 2014. Generally unemployment rate in Lejweleputswa has 

increased from 30.3 percent in 2005 to 40 percent in 2014, indicating an average growth of 5.6 

percentage points for men and an average growth of 1.24 percentage points for females. The 

average growth simply indicates that unemployment among males is increasing at a faster pace 

than for females. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Male 22,0% 21,8% 22,3% 23,2% 24,7% 26,3% 27,6% 32,0% 33,8% 35,8%

Females 41,3% 40,1% 38,6% 37,7% 37,9% 38,8% 39,8% 43,4% 44,5% 45,8%

Total 30,3% 29,8% 29,4% 29,4% 30,3% 31,5% 32,7% 36,8% 38,2% 40,0%
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6. Education profile 

The education profiles of the economically active population in Lejweleputswa. 

 

Education plays a major role in the employment of the economically active population, because 

many occupations require a certain level of education in order to be eligible for employment.  

          Figure 4.19: Highest level of Education attained by persons aged 20+

Source: 

IHS Global Insight Regional eXplorer, 2015 

 

Figure 4.19, illustrates that the majority of the persons aged 20 years and older are concentrated 

below matric level in Lejweleputswa with positive increases of persons completing matric. The 

number of persons with some primary 14.82 percent and completed primary 22.22 percent in 

2014, far outweigh the number in other categories. The number of persons with some 

secondary education were 23.77 percent in 2014, an increase of about 5 percentage points and 

the number of persons with matric also increased from 19.53 percent to 26.08 an increase of 

more than 6 percentage points. The figures shows that an estimated 65 percent of the 

population in Lejweleputswa have an average education below matric, which simply means 

limited skills with limited employment opportunities. However the number of persons with a 

higher qualification than matric stood only at 8.18 percent in 2014 a slight increase from the 

2005 figures of 5.69 percent. The rest of the municipalities in Lejweleputswa follow a more or 

less similar pattern. 

2005 2014 2005 2014 2005 2014 2005 2014 2005 2014 2005 2014

No schooling Some primary
Completed

Primary
Some

Secondary
Matric/ Grade

12
Matric & Higher

Lejweleputswa 10,89 5,06 20,53 14,82 24,56 22,22 18,65 23,77 19,53 26,08 5,69 8,18
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7. Conclusion. 

Overall Lejweleputswa continues to play an important role in the economy of the province, 

though its importance is declining due to a decline in its economic growth rate of -1.4 percent 

on average in the review period of 2005 to 2014. The resultant decline in the district growth 

rate is as a result of the decline in the mining sector which is the mainstay of the district 

economy, which declined by an average of 0.3 percent from 2005 to 2014. Growth in the district 

is expected to decline further by an average of -0.9 from 2010 until 2019 in the forecasted period, 

due to low commodity prices (expected decline in the mining sector).  

Employment creation is relatively low as the labour absorptive sectors, mining and agriculture 

are forecasted to grow negatively over the forecasted period of up to 2019. 

Unemployment is relatively high at 40 percent in 2014 in the district and is expected to increase 

even further as the labour force grows and the economy struggling to recover. 
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SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW 
SERVICE DELIVERY 

The following key service delivery initiatives were rolled out by various 

departments of Lejweleputswa DM during the 2017/18 financial year: 

 
   OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER 

 Development and execution of the RBAP 

 The Internal Audit Charter allows the Internal Audit Unit to perform consulting 

assignments. Significant reviews for the 2017/18 year included: Compliance to mSCOA 

Regulations. Investigation for Council Committee regarding 2016/17 irregular, 

unauthorised and fruitless and wasteful expenditure in LDA. 

 Effctive Performance Management System which follows “SMART” principle sytem and 

appropriate measures were taken in enhancing PMS section. 
 

 Basic Services 

 

 Road Infrastrructure development carried out in Five Local Municipalities.  

 LDM implemented EPWP project with a total of 93 work opportunities with the EPWP 
Integrated Grant. 

 Purchased the Scentinal SL50 Mobile Air Quality Analyser for ambient monitoring of 

the District’s Air Quality. 

          WASTE MANAGEMENT 

 

 The District has developed a draft Waste Management Policy and By-Laws to apply its 

mandate as set out in Section 84 of The Local Government: Municipal Structures Act 117 

of 1998. The policy is outdated and to be reviewed and adopted by municipality 

 Programmes and materials have been compiled to assist the local municipalities on waste 

diversion from the landfill function. 
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          MUNICIPAL HEALTH 

 Informal red meat traders’ health and hygiene programme rolled out to informal red meat 
traders 

 Listeriosis outbreak - samples were taken regularly and the disease was contained in the 
district 

    Bird Flu outbreak –Breeding house was closed down and the bird flu virus was contained. 

 EHP’s Succesfully monitored informal food premises, public toilet facilities and waste 

facilities. Improvement of hygiene standards which can be prescribed to the inspection 

rates. 

 Improvement of water quality (Drinking water and final effluent Waste Water 

Treatment Plants) in the region. 

 Inspections conducted at state owned premises, for example: hospitals, police station 

etc. were done as a new function that was taken over from the Provincial Health 

Department. 

 EHP’s of the LDM were responsible for inspection and monitoring of food preparation 

activities in all five Local municipalities 

 Lejweleputswa District Municipal Health Office received a certificate for rendering 

outstanding environmental health services during the 2017 -18 Fiscal period and came 

second in the Country. 

             FIRE, RESCUE SERVICES and FLEET MANAGEMENT 

 
 In the year 2016/17 Lejweleputswa District Municipality offered training to 12 

Firefighters in Local Municipalities. Training was aimed at establishing District Fire 

fighting Section. 

 In 2017/18 Plans of such developments were esacalated to the MEC taking into 

cognizance number of fire incidents which take place within the District 

 Lejweleputswa District municipality for thr year under review Conducted +/- 8 Fire 
Campaigns across Municipal District area. 

     

 

 

26  
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      Disaster Management 

 
 Lelweleputswa District Municipality assisted Masilonyana Local Munnicipality rainfall 

which caused storms and severe damages to few houses. 

 Disaster Congency and Evacuation plans established and Training to be given all senior 

staff. 

 Flood and drought awareness campaigns were held in collaboration with 8 primary 

schools in the District Municipal area. 

 Lejweleputswa District Municipality, in collaboration with the South African National 

Roads Agency executed two accident simulations on the N1. 

 Over the last 5 years the Lejweleputswa District Municipality through its Cluster 

meetings has been assisting in building capacity at local authority levels, facilitating 

formal and informal training sessions. 

 
 LDM: ROADS SERVICES 

 

Network Extent The asset extent reported relates to the total extent of roads and 
structures identified through field surveys, historical shapefiles/datasets 
and digitising of aerial/satellite imagery. It is understood that these 
values may change as further field surveys are made and data becomes 
available. At completion the asset extent will have been verified through 
field surveys.  

Condition Progress in terms of road asset condition assement is made here. This 
asset condition assessment progress reported should be less than or 
equal to the asset inventory extent. Condition assessment must be 
carried out using the relevant TMH guideline. 

RCAM 
Classification 

Extent of the idenitfied road network which has been classified 
according to RISFSA and/or RCAM. 

Asset Usage The total number of planned traffic counts and the number of traffic 
counts actually carried out, from those planned, are to be reported here.  

Expenditure The expenditure of the annual grant allocation for the municipal 
financial year to date and within the reporting quarter are to be input.  
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CORPORATE-/STRATEGIC SERVICES 

Objectives  
 

 Employee well being of Employees through Employee wellness programmes 

 Ensuring well developed human capital through Training  

 Ensuring Local Development through Offering Bursaries to Disadvantaged and well 

deserving youth. 

 Finalization of Municpal employee job evaluation  

   TOURISM 

Main objective was to improve sustainable tourism through increasing awareness of tourism 
attractions and ensure improved infrastructure development. 

 ICT 
    Successful implementation MScoa financial System 

 Inadequate Staff to execute IT functions – this issue has being addressed 

 Adoption of IT Policies 

Legal Services 

 Contract management   
 The delegation register and the Rules of Order were reviewed. 

 

 

FINANCIAL SERVICES 

 Improvement of Municipal Audit Opinion. 

 Improvement of cash and financial position. 

 Improvement in cash reserve balances through investments 

   SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

 

 SCM made use of the National Treasury’s central electronic tender bulletin. 

 Use of National Treasury’s CSD for sourcing quotations 

 Majority of the SCM officials completed their certificates. 
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   FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW 

Refer to Section 3 of the annual report for the highlights and challenges of the finance department as contained in the 

annual performance report. 

Financial overview COld stats) New stats  

Details Original  
Budget 

Adjustment  Final Budget Actual Amounts 

Grants 116 162 000 351 000 116 513 000 116 327 673 

Interest Received 

Trading 

293 000 37 000 330 000 707 451 

Interest Received 

Investment 

1 839 800 1 940 200 3 780 000 5 587 601 

Other Income 105 100 524 950 630 050 811 171 

Gain on Disposal of Assets     

Total Revenue 118 399 900 2 853 150 121 253 050 123 433 896 

Less Total Operating 

Expenditure 

116 665 104 3 041 074 119 706 178 103 964 864 

Net total 1 734 796 187 924 1 546 872 19 469 032 

********Old stats : New stats to be updated after Auditing 

Operating Ratios   

Detail    

Employee Costs including Councilors remuneration 71 211 966   

Repairs and Maintenance 476 160   

Finance Charges and Impairment 2 331 166   

 

COMMMENT ON OPERATING RATIOS 

Employee Costs 

The employee related costs are very high and the municipality has applied for 
Exemptions on yearly increments as an endeavour to control ever increasing salary 
bill. Management is investigating turn around strategies to decrease this ratio Repairs 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

44 

 

and maintenance. Municipal resources were inadequate to allocate some to repairs 
and maintenance. 

 
 

COMMENT ON OPERATING RATIOS: 

Employee Costs:  

 

The employee related costs are higher than the norm, as the majority of the core functions must have a 
minimum of employees as stated in legislation to perform the functions.  

 

Repairs and maintenance:    

There are limited funding available to allocate to repairs and maintenance. However, repairs and 
maintenance were done. 

The challenge still remains of funding to source the increased maintenance. The main source of income 
increases 3% which is not aligned to the average CPIX. 

 

Finance Charges and Impairment 

No new loans have been taken up for a number of years. 

 

  Total Capital Expenditure: 2016/17 to 2017/18 (R’000) 

Detail 2014/15   2015/16                     2016/17                             2017/18 
 

Original Budget 3 975 000 700 000 1 660 000 4 745 000 

Adjustment Budget 2 611 000 3 250 000 1 775 000 4 745 000 

Actual 2 354 000 1 371 015.87 756 557.20 3 151 748.69 

 

 

COMMENT ON CAPITAL EXPENDITURE: 

Municipal Capital expenditure is a true reflection that a municipality is facing dire financial 

constraints. There is a drastic decline in Capital expenditure in three prior Fiscal periods 2013/14, 

2014/15, 2015/2016/17. Although there facing serious financial constraints in 2017/18. The 

municipality was able to acquire some assets compared to previous years. Efforts by management 

to improve municipal cash flow problems paid off. 
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1.5 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW 

 
The Human Resources Section consists of the following disciplines: 

 Human Resource Management 

 Employment Equity 

 Recruitment and Selection 

 Human Resources Administration & Conditions of Service 

 Training and Development 

 Labor Relations 

 Occupational Health and Safety 

 Wellness and Employee Assistance 

1.5.1 BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVE 

 Lejweleputswa District Municipality is consistent with the constitutional mandate of Local 
Government, the legislative obligations for Human Resources and the Organisational 
Strategies, the Human Resources Section regards its mission as dedicating itself to serve 
and support the organization in achieving its strategic objectives, whilst serving the interest 
of its employees. To give effect to its mission, HR endeavour to : 

(i) Empower employees towards maximizing their personal potential and deliver on 
and exceed organizational requirements,  

(ii) Continuously align the HR Strategy with the Organizational Strategy (IDP), 
Legislative Requirements and Best Practices in the HR field.  

(iii) Champion the cause of our human resource (employees/people) as 
Lejweleputswa District Municipality’s most valuable resource and the key to 
success in service delivery,  

(iv) Promote and practice “People First Principles”, Equity, Fairness, Objectivity and 
Consistency,  

(v) Actively influence the achievement of an employee corps with high morale, high 
commitment to organizational goals/values and dedication to 
public/community service,  

(vi)  Commit to professional conduct, promote professional HR management 
practices and advance the knowledge and proficiency of HR to the benefit of the 
LDM, and  

(vii) Develop and adopt appropriate systems and procedures to ensure fair, efficient, 
effective and transparent personnel administration 
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BENEFITS OF HR STANDARDS 

The vision of the project is to set national HR standards in order to improve the quality of 

HR work, irrespective of the location of a HR professional, or industry and organizational 

differences. Ultimately, HR professionalism will be enhanced by reducing inconsistencies 

in the profession. 

The goals of the project are as follows: 

 To improve standardised approaches to professional HR practices and thus 
promoting HR professionalism; 

 To develop a national HR scorecard with specific HR measurements and metrics, 

supported by a National HR Research and Benchmarking Centre; 

 To create a National HR Academy with a standardised HR Curriculum; 

 To ensure that HR features in integrated reporting; 
 To develop a foundation for integrating HR in the King IV Code of Governance. 

 

AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 

       AUDITED OUTCOMES 

Year 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Status Unqualified 

with matters 

Unqualified 

with matters 

Unqualified 

with matters 
Unqualified 
with matters 

Unqualified 
with matters 
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         STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS 

Nr. Activity Time Frame 

1.  Consideration of next financial year’s Budget and IDP process plan. 
Except for the legislative content, the process plan should confirm in-
year reporting formats to ensure that reporting and monitoring feeds 

seamlessly into the Annual Report process at the end of the Budget/IDP 
implementation period. 

August 2018 

2.  Implementation and monitoring of approved Budget and IDP 
commenced (In-year financial reporting). 

Monthly 

3.  Finalise the 4th quarterly Report for previous financial year. August 2018 

4.  Submit draft 2017/18 Annual Report to Internal Audit and Auditor-
General. 

August 2018 

5.  Municipal entities submit draft annual reports to MM. August 2018 

6.  Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Report of 
municipality and entities (where relevant). 

August 2018 

7.  Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Report. August 2018 

8.  Municipality submits draft Annual Report including consolidated 
annual financial statements and performance report to Auditor General. 

August 2018 

9.  
Annual Performance Report as submitted to Auditor General to be 

provided as input to the IDP Analysis Phase. 

August 2018 

10.  Auditor General audits Annual Report including consolidated Annual 
Financial Statements and Performance data. 

Sept – Oct 2018 

11.  Municipalities receive and start to address the Auditor General’s 
comments. November 2018 

12.  Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to 
Council complete with the Auditor- General’s Report. 

January 2019 

13.  Audited Annual Report is made public and representation is invited. February 2019 

14.  Oversight Committee assesses Annual Report. 

15.  Council adopts Oversight report. 

16.  Oversight report is made public. March 2019 

17.  Oversight report is submitted to relevant provincial council 

18.  Commencement of draft Budget/IDP finalization for next financial 
year. Annual Report and Oversight Reports to be used as input. 
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CHAPTER 2 
GOVERNANCE 
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INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE 
 
2.1.1. Introduction to Governance 
 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality has, as all other municipalities, essential administrative 

and other support functions that are not necessarily statutory prescribed, but that are necessary 

in order for the organization to function. These functions are referred to as support services 

functions. 

Good governance ensures Excellent, Accurate, Effective and Efficient administrative and 

secretarial/support service to Council, Mayoral Committee, Section 79 and 80 Committees and 

other standing Committees. 

 

2.1.2. Introduction to Political and Administrative Governance 

 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality Corporate/Strategic Services ensures that Council, 

Executive Mayoral Committee, Portfolio Committees and other standing Committees meets 

regularly as per approved Council’s meeting schedule. 

The directorate ascertains arrangement of special meetings, as and when required to do so. 

Agendas of all Council and Committee meetings are compiled, produced and distributed to 

thirty five (36) Councillors, Management and officials. Minutes of all meeting proceedings are 

recorded and safeguarded for record purposes and future reference. 

Lejweleputswa District municipality makes use of Resolution register to keep track of all 

Council resolutions and its implementation, thereof.
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                Political Structure 

 

                             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Mayor                                                                              Speaker 
Cllr Sebenzile Ngangelizwe                                                         Cllr Phindiwe Maleka              

                                                                                

Section 80: Portfolio Committee chairpersons 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

  

                                                    

 
Cllr M J Meli                                     Cllr MMT Matlabe                  Cllr MH Ntsebeng                      Cllr MJ Pereko 

      IDP, PMS, Policy Development    Community Services               Municipal Infrastructure           Community Services  
      Monitoring 

 

 
 
  
  
 
  
  
  
  
 
 
 

 
Cllr M S Sehloho                                                    Cllr  JS Mabitle                                           Cllr  ML  Tlhone                                                           
Economic, Small Economic Small Business     Finance: Budget & Treasury                     Municipal Health Services &Disaster 
 & Rural Development:                                                                                                                management:   Fire Fighting           

Agriculture and Tourism                                                                                                        
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      2.1.3. COMPOSITION OF COUNCIL 
 

          Lejweleputswa District Municipality consists of 15 Councillors 

 

             COMPILATION OF COUNCIL 

Proportional Matjhabeng 
Municipality 

Tswelopele 
Municipality 

Nala 
Municipality 

Masilonyana 
Municipality 

Tokologo 
Municipality 

21 13 3 2 2 1 

 
 

Political Party Name of 
Councillor Representing 

1. ANC Cllr S Ngangelizwe LDM Executive Mayor 

2. ANC                         Cllr PP Maleka LDM Speaker 

3. ANC Cllr ML Tlhone  Chairperson of Municipal Health Service & Disaster 
Management :Fire Fighting  

4. ANC Cllr MJ Meli  Chairperson of IDP PMS Policy Development and   
Monitoring 

5. ANC  Cllr MMT Matlabe  Chairperson of Corporate Service :HR and Legal 

6. ANC   Cllr MS Sehloho Chairperson of Economic Small Business and Rural 
Development : Agriculture & Tourism  

7. ANC Cllr MJ Pereko Chairperson of Community Services 

8. ANC Cllr JS Mabitla Chairperson of Finance (Budget and Treasury) 

9. ANC  Cllr ML Ntsebeng  Chairperson of Municipal Infrastructure 

10. DA Cllr GP Botha Member of Portfolio Committee 

11. DA Cllr MS Ntlhakeng  Member of Portfolio Committee 

12. DA Cllr SA  Merafe  Member of Portfolio Committee 

13. EFF Cllr PD Malakoane  Member of Portfolio Committee 

14. EFF Cllr MI Lentsa  Member of Portfolio Committee 

15. ANC Cllr V Qabela  Member of Portfolio Committee 

ANC DA EFF FF+ 

                                          

23 7  5   1 
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16. ANC Cllr N V 
Ntakumbana 

Chairperson of MPAC 

17. ANC Cllr SJ Tsatsa  Member of Portfolio Committee 

18. ANC Cllr KSV Moipatle  Member of Portfolio Committee 
19. ANC Cllr NE Thelingoane  Member of Portfolio Committee 

20. ANC Cllr XN Masina Chairperson for the Public Participation Committee 

21. ANC Cllr MR Tsupa Member of Portfolio Committee -  Replaced by Gllr KV  
Van Rooyen 

22. ANC Cllr NE Monjovo   Member of Portfolio Committee 

23. DA Cllr (Dr) JS Marais   Member of Portfolio Committee 

24. DA Cllr LN Presente   Member of Portfolio Committee 
25. ANC Cllr MG Mafaisa   Member of Portfolio Committee 

26. DA Cllr EJ Jacobs   Member of Portfolio Committee 

27. FF + Cllr SDM Taljaard   Member of Portfolio Committee 
28. EFF Cllr AM Sithole   Member of Portfolio Committee 

29. ANC Cllr BP Eseu   Member of Portfolio Committee 

30. ANC Cllr DA Njodina   Member of Portfolio Committee 

31. DA Cllr MM Snyer Member of Portfolio Committee 

32. ANC Cllr GK Magomo   Chairperson of Disciplinary and  ethics Committee 

33. ANC Cllr TL Molutsi Chairperson of Language and  Public Places committee 

34. EFF Cllr LJ Nanyane    Member of Portfolio Committee 

35. ANC Cllr VT Phashe   Chairperson of Rules Committee 

36. EFF Cllr MT Hogo   Member of Portfolio Committee 
 

2.1.4 RACE AND GENDER REPRESENTATION IN COUNCIL 

During the year under view, political parties were represented as follows:  
Note: A = Africans, C = Coloured, I = Indians and W = Whites 

  
 

Political Party 
Male Female 

TOTAL 
A C I W A C I W 

African National Congress (ANC) 8 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 23 

Democratic Alliance (DA) 2 0 0 2 2 1 0 0 7 

EFF 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 5 

Ff+ 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 

                                      TOTAL 11 0 0 2 22 0 0 1 36 
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Number of Meetings Held 

Types of Meetings No of 
Meetings 

Number of Members 
per Porttfolio 

Committe 

Agendas Distributed per 
Sitting 

Council Meetings              6 50 300 

Mpac Meetings 18 11 288 

Corporate services Portfolio 
Committees 

4 11 44 

Finance Portfolio Committees 5 12 60 

Led Portfolio Committees 4 15 60 

Public Participation Committee 1 11 11 

Municipal Health Services 1 11 11 

Sports, Arts, Culture and Recreation 
Portfolio Committee 

1 9 9 

Special Programmes Portfolio 
Committees 

2 12 24 

Municipal Support and Infrastructure 
Portfolio Committes 

1 10 10 

Mayoral Committees 7 16 96 

Rules Portfolio Committee 1 10 14 

Language and Public Places  2 2 4 

Ethics and Desciplinary Committee 1 6 6 

IDP, Pms Policy development and 
Monitoring Portfolio Committee 

3 6 18 

Total 53  955 
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2.1.5 EXECUTIVE MAYORAL COMMITTEE 

The Executive Mayor is at the centre of the system of governance; therefore executive powers are 

vested in him to manage the day-to-day affairs. This means that he has an overarching strategic 

and political responsibility. (Refer to Section 60 of the Structures Act). 

Although accountable for the strategic direction and performance of the Municipality, the 

Executive Mayor operates in consultation with the Mayoral Committee. The Mayoral Committee 

is chaired by the Executive Mayor.   

MEMBERS OF MUNICIPAL COUNCIL 
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The name and portfolio of each member of the Mayoral Committee for 1 July 2017 - 30 June 

2018: 

Name of Member Capacity 

Cllr MJ  Meli IDP, PMS, Policy Development & Monitoring 

Cllr  MH Ntsebeng Road Infrasructure 

Cllr JS Mabitle Financial Services 

Cllr  MJ Pereko Community Services 

Cllr MS Sehloho 
Small Economic, Small Business   &  
Rural Development: Agriculture and Tourism                                                                                                         

 

 

                                                                                                          

Cllr ML Tlhone Municipal Health Services & Disaster management:   Fire Fighting           

Cllr MMT Matlabe Corporate Services 
 

2.1.6. COMMITTEES  

The Municipal Structures Act allows a municipal council to establish two types of committees 

- Section 79 and Section 80 Portfolio Committees. 

Section 79 Committee, also known as council committees, meet every second month and 

report their oversight outcomes to Council, via the MAYCO. Lejweleputswa DM has the 

following Section 79 Committees: 

 MPAC 

 Training & Development 

 Occupational Health & Safety  

 Local Labour Forum; and 

 Disciplinary Committee. 

 

Section 80 Portfolio Committees meet on a monthly basis to discuss matters referred to them 

and to make suitable recommendations to the MAYCO. Members are appointed to assist the 

Executive Mayor with his/her duties. Lejweleputswa District Municipality has the following 

Section 80 Committees: 

 Road Infrastructure 

 Financial Services 

 Community Services 

 Municipal Health Services & Disaster management:   Fire Fighting           
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 Small Economic, Small Business   Rural Development: Agriculture and Tourism                                                                                                         

 Corporate Services 

 IDP, PMS, Policy Development & Monitoring 
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2.1.7 SECTION 79 AND 80 COMMITTEES 

SECTION  80 COMMITTEES 

Committee Functions Chairperson Executive Manager 

Roads infrastructure Roads Infrastrucure 
 
 

MH Ntsebeng MM Mthombeni 

Financial Services Income and Expenditure,  
Supply Chain, BTO, 

Revenue  
Management, Asset  
Management, Stores,  
Financial Statements, 

GRAP  
Statements 

JS Mabitle 

 

PK  Pitso 

Community  
Services 

Sport   MJ Pereko MM  Mthombeni 

Small Economic, Small 
Business   Rural 
Development: 

Agriculture and Tourism 

Local Economic 
Development through 

Training of Smmes, 
Africultural Cooperatives 

Development and 
Tourism Promotion  

MS Sehloho L Makhetha 

Municipal Health 
Services & Disaster 
management:   Fire 
Fighting           

 

Municipal 
Environmental 
Protection and 
Disaste Management 

ML Tlhone MM Mthombeni 

Corporate  
Services 

Human Resource  
Development, Support  

services. 
Access Control), 

Committee  
Services, Legal Services,  

Gender / Disability related  
matters. 

MMT Matlabe MS Rabie - Khonkhe 

IDP, PMS, Policy 
Development & 
Monitoring 

 

 IDP, Performance 
management System 

MJ Meli DF Maselwa/ S 
Musapelo 
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2.1.8 POLITICAL DECISION-MAKING PROCESS 

Step 1 Executive Managers Submit Reports to Portfolio Committee 

Step 2 Council Committees For notice and/or Recommendations 

Step 3 Mayoral Committee Recommendation 

Step 4 Council Approve / Consider 
Step 5 Executive Manager Execution 

All decisions taken by Committees or Council are listed on municipal Resolution Register for 
Implementation. 

 

 

 

 

2.1.8.Section 79 Committees 
Committee Chairperson Other political representation Unions 

  MPAC 
Cllr NV Ntakumbana 
(ANC) 

Cllr V Qabela( Anc), Cllr Ksv Moipatle ( Anc), Cllr MG 
Mafaisa(Anc), Cllr NE Monjovo (Anc),Cllr XN Masina 
(Anc), Cllr DA Njodima(Anc), Cllr MM Snyer(Da), Cllr 

LJ Nanjyane (Eff) , Cllr SDM Taljaard ( FF+) 

 

Rules 
Committee 

Cllr VT Pashe( ANC) Cllr Ksv Moipatle ( Anc), Cllr MG Mafaisa(Anc), Cllr 
NE Monjovo (Anc),Cllr XN Masina (Anc), Cllr DA 

Njodima(Anc), Cllr MM Snyer(Da), Cller LJ Nanjyane 
(Eff) , Cllr SDM Taljaard ( FF+), Cllr  MT Hogo ( 

Eff),Cllr GP Botha( DA), Cllr MH Ntsebeng (ANC) 

 

Desciplinary 
and Ethics 
Committee 

Cllr GK Magomo(Anc) 

 

Cllr NE Thelingoane ( Anc), Cllr MM Snyer ( Da), Cllr 
LJ Nanyane (Eff), Cllr SDM Taljaard ( FF+) 

Samwu 

Imatu 

Language and 
Public Places 
Committee  

Cllr TL Molutsi ( Anc) Cllr GK Magomo (Anc), Cllr XN Masina( Anc), Cllr XE 
Thelingoane( Anc). Cllr DA Njodima ( Anc), Cllr LN 
Presente (DA), Cllr SA MErafe ( DA), Cllr AM Sithole 

(EFF) 

 

Public 
Participation 

Cllr Masina ( Anc) Cllr NV. Ntakumbana(Anc), Cller V Qabela (Anc),Cllr 
MR Tsupa (Anc)Cllr BP Eseu (Anc), Cllr GK Magomo 
(Anc), Cllr NE Monjovo (Anc), Cllr MS Ntlhakeng ( 

DA), Cllr EJ Jacobs (DA),Cllr PD Malakoane (EFF), Cllr 
SDM T 

 

) 
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2.2 ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

2.2.1 INTRODUCTION TO ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

The Municipal Manager is regarded, in terms of legislation, as the head of 

administration and is responsible and accountable for the management of the 

municipality’s administration. The Accounting Officer must at all times act with 

fidelity, honesty, integrity and in the best interests of the municipality in managing 

its financial affairs. 

The Management team comprises of the following officials: 

Municipal Manager                Me Palesa Kaota 

Executive Manager: Corporate Services                              Mrs Rabie-Khonkhe 

Executive Manager: Financial Services                            Mr P.K. Pitso  

Executive Manager: Local Economic Development     Mr L. Makhetha 

Executive Manager: Basisc Services                                     Mr MM Mthombeni 

In order to ensure that administrative governance is enforced and elevated, a 

number of departmental structures have been put in place viz; 

 Senior Management meetings (Exco); 

 Middle Management meetings  

 Operation Clean Audit  

 Departmental Management meetings. 

The administration ascribes to the Batho Pele Principles and the values are 

contained in the vision and mission of the Municipality. The administration has 

also implemented an Anti-Fraud & Anti-Corruption Hotline during February 

2014, which is aimed at fostering a clean administration and enhancing a code of 

ethics and good governance. 

Senior Management is continuously striving at elevating the corporate culture of the 

administration, by inculcating corporate values, high levels of integrity and 

professionalism. 

 

 

 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

60 

 

 

 

 

TOP ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

                                                                       Me PME Kaota   
                                                                    Accounting Officer     

 

   Mr PK Pitso                            Mr MM Mthombeni             Me LS Rabie –Khonkhe             Mr L Makhetha 
Chief Financial Officer           Director: EHS                         Director:  Corporate Services    Director: LED 

                                                                                                           
        
 

Performance Agreement Status 

Name of official Department 
Performance 
Agreement  

Signed? Y/N 

Me PME Kaota Municipal Manager Yes 

Mrs Rabie – Khonkhe Corporate Services Yes 

Mr PK Pitso Financial Services Yes 
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Mr L Makhetha Local Economic Development Yes 

Mr MM Mthombeni Basic Services Yes 
 

 

2.3. COMPONENT B: INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

2.3.1 INTRODUCTION TO CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND        

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

Lejweleputswa DM, via the utilisation of its Intergovernmental Relations function 

and established functions, seeks to achieve the following: 

 To promote horizontal and vertical partnership building towards coherent 

governance for the effective provision of municipal services and the 

realization of national priorities; 

 Co – ordinate and partake in district, provincial and national 
intergovernmental structures; 

 The implementation, reporting and monitoring of the Back – to Basics – 
Programme; 

 To co-ordinate and facilitate good relationships with municipalities and 

Provincial and National spheres of government; 

 To ensure that internal departments and sections build strategic 

developmental partnerships with their technical counterparts; 

 To co-ordinate the sharing of best practices, knowledge and information 
amongst municipalities; and 

 To enhance both municipal human and financial resources capacity, leading 

to improved municipal service delivery. 

2.3.2 PROVINCIAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE 

The major structure envisaged to promote and facilitate intergovernmental relations 
between the provinces and local governments in the province is the Premier's 
Intergovernmental Forum. Lejweleputswa District Municipality actively participates 
on various provincial intergovernmental structures. In this regard there is direct 
engagement on a political and senior management level with regard to the following 
provincial structures: 
District IDP Managers’ Forum, LED Managers’ Forum, Chief Financial Officer’s 
forum, Intergovernmental Political Forum. Intergovernmental Technical Forum, 
Mayor’s forum. 
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Through this process, all agenda settings and engagement matters relating to 
Lejweleputswa District Municipality and local municipalities in its area of 
jurisdiction are elevated to a provincial level. The under – mentioned meetings are 
held Quarterly 

 Provincial IDP forums 
 Provincial IDP assessment Panel 
 Provincial LED Forums 
 Provincial Disaster Management Forums 
 Provincial Performance Management meetings 

Reason for attendance 

 To attain guidance to municipal planning process 

 To report on district s planning process 

 For attainment of financial support and technical support on municipal 

Idp and public participation 

 To ensure alignment of Policies with National and Provincial sector 

 & For identification of Capacity gaps, training and development 

 

2.3.3 Relationship with Municipal Entities 
 

Below is various internal municipal platforms utilised by both Lejweleputswa 

district municipality and Lejwe leputswa development urgency to enhance 

accountability.  

 Management Committee 

 Council’s Section 79 and Section 80 Committees 

 Mayoral Committee 

 Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) 

 Audit  Management Committee 

 Budget Steering Committee 

 Training and Development Committee 
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2.3.4 DISTRICT INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURES 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality as a custodian of inter-governmental 
relations structures in the district has facilitated the establishment of the following 
11 forums for better coordination with the five local municipalities. The Executive 
Mayor of Lejweleputswa District municipality envisaged the significance of IGR 
Political especially with regard to information sharing with local municipality and 
district’s playing its oversight role 

 

Forum 
Name 

Does it  
have a  
TOR? 

Is 
Forum 
Active 

Frequency 
of Meeting 

Purpose of forum Composition 
of Forum 

Chairperson 

Mayors Forum Yes Yes 4 Both Local And 
District Executive 
Mayors and 
Locals meet to 
engage on 
Governance 
issues 

1) District 
Mayor 
2) 5 Local 
municipalities’ 
Executive 
Mayors 

District 
Mayor: Cllr 
Sebenzile 
Ngangeliz
we 

Speakers Forum Yes Yes 4 To identify and 
implement 
programs 

1)District 
Speaker 2)5 
Local 
Municipalities’ 
Speakers 

District 
Speaker: Cllr 
PP Maseko 

Municipal 
Managers Forum 

Yes Yes 4 For discussions of 
matters of 
Municipal interest 

1)District 
Municipal 
Manager 2)5 
Local 
Municipalities’ 
Accounting 
Officer 

District 
Municipal 
Manager: Me 
Palesa Kaota 

IDP Managers 
Forum 

Yes Yes 4 It’s a Platform of 
engagement by 
IDP managers to 
discuss IDP 
processes and 
alignment 
between District 
and Locals 

1)District IDP 
Manager. 2)5 
Local 
municipalities’ 
IDP managrers 
and Cogta 
members 

Mr Silone 
Musapelo 
District IDP 
Manager 

50 
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LED Managers 
Forum 

Yes Yes 4 LED 
practitioners of 
both District and 
Local engage in 
ways to improve 
projects and 
stimulate local 
economic growth 

1) District LED 
Manager. 
2)5 Local 
municipalities’ 
LED managers 

Mr 
Thamsanqa 
Skele District 
LED 
Manager 

Internal Audit   Yes Yes 4 Internal Auditors 
of Both District 
and Locals meet 
to engage on 
ways to improve 
Audit, AG’s 
audit Finding 
and exchange 
Ideas on Best 
Audit Practices 

1) District 
Internal Audit 
Manager. 2)5 
Local 
municipalities’ 
Internal Audit 
managers 

Andre Bester 

Performance 
Management 
Forum 

Yes Yes 4 Performance 
Managers of Both 
District and 
Locals meet to 
engage on ways 
to improve 
Performance 
System, reporting 
, AG’s and 
Performance 
Findings. 

1)District 
Performance 
Manager 
Manager. 
2)5 Local 
municipalities’ 
Internal Audit 
managers and 
Cogta 

D F 
Maselwa 

IGR Technical Yes Yes 4 Officials of Both 
Local 
Municipality and a 
District meet to 
discuss issues of 
intergovernmental 
relations and best 
practices 

District 
Officials and 

Locals 

Me Palesa Kaota 

Waste 
Management Forum 

Yes Yes 4 To discuss waste 
management matters 

Provincial waste 
managers, District 
waste managers 
and Local 
municipalities’ 
waste managers. 

Mr Louis 
Vollchenk 

Disaster 
Management Forum 

Yes Yes 4 To discuss 
disaster related 
issues 

Provincial Disaster 
managers, District 
disaster managers 
and Local 
municipalities’ 
disaster managers 

Mr Sibonda 
Nzume 

Labor Relations 
Forum 

Yes Yes 4 Labor related 
Issues 

Management and 
Employee 
representatives 

Clllr MMT 
Matlabe 
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COMPONENT C: PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY 

Overview of Public Accountability and Participation 

MSA section 15 (b) requires a municipality to establish and organise its administration to facilitate a culture 

of accountability amongst its staff. Section 16 (i) states that a municipality must develop a system of 

municipal governance that complements formal representative governance with a system of participatory 

governance. Section 18 (i) (d) requires a municipality to supply its community with information 

concerning municipal governance, management and development. 

The participation outlined above is required in terms of: 

o the preparation, implementation and review of the IDP; 

o the preparation, implementation and review of the municipal SDF; 

o the drafting of the municipal budget; 

o strict adherence to Section 27 of the Municipal Systems Act; 

o MPAC and APAC oversight committee; 

o notifying the public on council meetings; 

o publication of Performance Agreements on the municipal website; 

o Supply Chain Management procedures and processes; 

o the development, implementation and mitigation of municipal risks through a risk        
register; 

o implementation of iComply Eunomia to ensure legislative compliance; 

o the municipal Annual Report; 

2.4 IDP PARTICIPATION & PERFORMANCE ALIGNMENT 

IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria Yes/No 

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators? Yes 

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPIs, development strategies? Yes 

Does the IDP have multi-year targets? Yes 

Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score? Yes 

Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align to the Section 57 Managers Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPIs as per the SDBIP? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 Outcomes Yes 

Were the indicators communicated to the public? Yes 

Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames? Yes 

* Section 26, Municipal Systems Act 2000 
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COMPONENT D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate governance is the set of processes, practices, policies, laws and stakeholders affecting 

the way an institution is directed, administered or controlled. Corporate governance also 

includes the relationships amongst the many stakeholders involved and the goals for which the 

institution is governed. 

2.5 RISK MANAGEMENT 

    2.5.1 GOOD GOVERNANCE: RISK MANAGEMENT 

To maintain an overall positive perception of the municipality and confidence in  the 

municipality from the public and other stakeholders, well planned goals and objectives 

should be coordinated and achieved within the district. Lejweleputswa DM has instituted 

Risk Management as a systematic and formalised process in order to identify, assess, manage 

and monitor risks which effectively ensures achievement of those planned goals and 

objectives. Thus, Risk management is essentially a good governance measure instituted to 

ensure the municipality accomplishes its vision, mission and strategic plans. 

Risk refers to a beneficial or unwanted outcome, actual or potential, to the organisation’s service 

delivery and other performance objectives, caused by the presence of risk factors. A risk factor 

is seen as any threat or event which creates, or has the potential to create risk, i.e. it is the root 

cause of the risk. The occurrence of these risks would be an example of a factor that could hamper 

service delivery. Some risk factors also present upside potential, which management must be 

aware of and be prepared to exploit. Such opportunities are encompassed in this definition of 

risk. 

 
2.5.2 BENEFITS OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk management is a valuable management tool which increases an institution’s prospects of 

success through minimising negative outcomes and optimising opportunities. 

Instituting a system of risk management may have the following beneficial outcomes for 
Lejweleputswa DM: 

 More sustainable and reliable delivery of services; 

 Informed decisions underpinned by appropriate rigour and analysis; 

 Achievement of strategic goals as set out in the Integrated Development Plan; 

 Reduced waste; 

 Prevention of fraud and corruption; 
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 Better value for money through more efficient use of resources; and 

 Better outputs and outcomes through improved project and program management. 

 

2.5.3     LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

Sections 62(1)(c)(i) and 95(c)(i) of the MFMA specifically require Accounting Officers to ensure 

that their municipalities and municipal entities have and maintain effective, efficient and 

transparent systems of risk management. 

2.5.4   THE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS 

The risk management process is the basic structure that guides the entire risk management unit 

and consists of 8 vital steps: 

Step 1: Internal Environment the municipality’s internal environment is the base of 
all other components of risk management and needs to be thoroughly assessed. 

Step 2: Objective Setting – this is a precondition to event identification, risk assessment and 

risk response. There must first be objectives before management can identify risks to their 

achievement and take necessary actions to manage the risks. 

Step 3: Event identification – as part of event identification management recognises that 

uncertainties exist, but does not know when an event may occur, or when its outcome 

should occur. 

Step 4: Risk Assessment – management considers the mix of potential future events 

relevant to the municipality and its activities. This entails examining factors 

including the municipality’s size, complexity of operations and degree of regulation 

over its activities that shape the municipality’s risk profile and influence the 

methodology it uses to assess risks. Individual risks are assessed on inherent and 

residual levels, and on impact and likelihood of occurrence. 

Step 5: Risk Response – this involves identifying and evaluating possible responses to the 

risks identified. Evaluation of likelihood and impact of risks is done then plotted on the 

following graph (which is used to categorise risks as low, medium or high) in order to 

gauge the type of response needed. 

 

 Graph: Risk Response required according to impact and likelihood. 

                  Medium Risk 

 

 

 

Share ( Insurance) 

                  High Risk 

 

 

 

Avoid & Reduce ( Control) 
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                   Low Risk 

 

  

Accept ( Risk Appetite) 

                  Medium Risk 

 

 

Reduce ( Control ) 

                                                                               Likelihood 

 

Step 6:   Control Activities –   three types of control activities are recognised in risk           
management. These are preventative controls (striving to eliminate the 
occurrence of certain risks), detective controls (striving to identify and bring 
attention to risks that have already occurred or materialised), and corrective 
controls (striving to counteract the effects of risks that have already occurred or 
materialised).  

In order for activities and operations to run effectively and efficiently LDM must 

optimally distribute its resources according to significance of those activities and 

operations. 

Step 7: Information and Communication – information should be delivered to 

personnel in a form and timeframe that enables them to carry out their risk 

management and other responsibilities. 

Step 8: Monitoring – risk management operates in an ever-changing and dynamic 

environment.  

Management needs to regularly determine whether the functioning of each risk 

management component continues to be effective. 

It should be noted that the below risks were identified during the annual risk assessment and 

has not been approved by council yet. 

As at 30 June 2018, the top 7 risks to the municipality 

No. Risk Group Risk Cause of risk (root cause) 

1.  Ensure Financial  
Sustainability. 

Loss of Assets. Theft of assets, Theft of fire vehicles prohibiting 
service delivery. 

2.  Promote good  
Governance 

Failure to properly 
execute the  

Individual and 
Organizational  
Performance 

Capacity constraints, Lack of cooperation from 
departments, Incomplete performance updates 
and evidence files. 

3.  Ensure Financial  
Sustainability 

Failure to implement 
mSCOA 

(AFS) 

Reluctance to adapt to change. Limited 
understanding of staff. Negatively affecting 
business processes. Significant costs of  
system implementation. Insufficient support by 
service provider. 
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As at 30 June 2018, the top 7 risks to the municipality, in no particular order 

No. Risk Group Risk Cause of risk (root cause) 

   Loss of clean audit report, work load impair 
mSCOA  

implementation due to capacity constraints. 

6.  Ensure Financial  
Sustainability. 

Lack of / insufficient 
revenue. 

 Lack of accountability and  
responsibility. Economic realities. 

7.  Ensure Financial  
Sustainability 

Do not have the 
resources  

to effectively  
implement projects. 

Iandequate Grants for a Dsitrict to execute its 
main powers anf functions. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT: ACCOMPLISHMENTS AND THE WAY FORWARD 

Risk management remains an ongoing process and an important factor in change management 

in Lejweleputswa DM. Also, best practices are being formulated and evaluated within the 

field of risk management on a provincial level on a continuous basis. The Leljweleputswa 

District Internal Audit and Risk Management Forum was established which includes all B 

Municipalities in the district. This allows all members to give constructive inputs into risk 

discussions that affect the whole district. mSCOA implementation for municipalities was a big 

challenge but most municipalities curbed this momentous change in legislation and are moving 

forward with great strides. 

Risk Champions are involved in the identification of risk and the input of controls within 

their respective departments. Full circle communication is yet to be established and the 

communication gap with the mitigation of risks within LDM is still a problem. 

 

2.6 ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 

Section 83(c) of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA) refers to the implementation of effective 

bidding structures to minimize the possibility of fraud and corruption and the Municipal 

Finance Management Act (MFMA), Section 112(1) (m) (i) identifies supply chain measures to be 

enforced to combat fraud and corruption, favouritism and unfair and irregular practices. Section 

115(1) (b) of the MFMA further states that the accounting officer must take steps to ensure 

mechanisms and separation of duties in a supply chain management system, to minimize the 

likelihood of corruption and fraud. 
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2.6.1 L     DM ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY 

Lejweleputswa has established its own Anti – fraud and Corruption which is handled by Risk Management 

Section in the Office of the Accounting Officer. The policies and Plans for Anti – Corruption and Fraud were 

reviewed by municipal Council in 2016/17.  

 

2.7 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

- Lejweleputswa District Municipality’s supply chain maturity has evolved to become 

more stringent to statutory financial compliance and this can be clearly witnessed in 

the Municipal Audit report. In the Fiscal period under review Lejweleputswa’s 

supply Chain Management had minor issues with the municipality getting an 

Unqualified Audit Opinion. It is a norm that financial maladministration issues such 

unauthorised expenditure, irregular and wasteful expenditure and fruitless 

expenditure emanate from supply Chain. Lejweleputswa District municipality has 

taken a stance in supply chain management in ascertaining that goods procured are 

in a manner that’s fair, equitable and cost effective. 

- Developed internal Control systems by our Internal Audit section, ranging from 

sourcing of quotations to facilitation of procurement through a variety of tender 

processes played a very important role. 

- Supply chain management personnel were capacitated to enable them to execute their 

responsibilities appropriately and in accordance to supply chain management rules 

and regulations. Free State National Treasury played a major role not only in training 

but through securing very competent service providers in executing these function. 

- 2017/18 financial year has seen new reforms being introduced and implemented, 

a good indication that supply chain management is continuously evolving and 

keeping in line with international trends on good corporate governance. 

- 1st of July 2017 brought into effect the use of the National Treasury’s Central 

Supplier Database, an exciting innovation that is intended to reduce the burden of 

doing business between Public Sector and Private Sector. Government initially had 

placed the responsibility of Maintenance of a supplier or vendor database with 

each and every individual institution and that meant for any entity that had 

services to offer it had to register on the individual databases of each institution. 

The process was not just cumbersome in itself but redundant and costly as the same 

documents had to be lodged with each institution. Any amendment in those details 

had to undergo the same process. Central Supplier Database has done away with 

such and provided the business sector one entry point to the entire government. 

This initiative has been seen as a milestone in government interventions and 
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innovations and not only has it reduced the cost and administrative process but it 

has provided the business fraternity an exponential exposure to all of government 

business. 

- In addition to the National Treasury Central Database, was the introduction of e-

tender portal, all public institution are now required to publish all their tenders on 

e-tender, thus making it easy and accessible to all service providers. Not only is it 

making publication of tenders to be easily accessible to all at one central location, 

but it also save the public the cost and time of having to go through various 

publications to identify potential business. We trust that such innovations can only 

increase the level of satisfaction and public trust in dealing with government.  
 

2.7.1 SUMMARY OF BEE COMPANIES DIFFERENTIATING BETWEEN CAPITAL AND NON-CAPITAL  
ITEMS FOR FORMAL TENDERS 

Capital projects exceeding R 1 000 000 

Type 

Total number of  

tenders awarded  

for the year 

Total No. of companies 

with  

BEE Certificates to whom  

tenders were awarded 

Total No. of companies 

without  

BBE Certificates to whom  

tenders were awarded 

Percentage of BEE  

Certified Companies 

GOODS 2 2 0 100% 
     

 

 

 

 
Capital projects less than R 1 000 000 

GOODS 1 1 0 100% 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Non-Capital Projects (Less than R 1 000 000) 

Type 

Total number of  

tenders  

awarded for the  

year 

Total No. of companies  

with BEE Certificates to  

whom tenders were  

awarded 

Total No. of companies 

without BBE Certificates 

to whom tenders were 

awarded 

Percentage of BEE  

Certified Companies 

GOODS 1 1 0 100% 
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2.7.2 THE WAY FORWARD 

Section 217 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, When an organ of state in 

the national, provincial or local sphere of government, or any other institution identified in 

national legislation, contracts for goods and services, it must do so in accordance with a system 

which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective. Subsection 1 does not 

prevent the organs of state or institutions referred to in that subsection from implementing a 

procurement policy providing for, categories of preference in all allocation of contracts and the 

protection of advancement of persons, or categories of persons, disadvantaged by unfair 

discrimination. 

Supply Chain Management is no longer just about procurement, it has evolved to become a key 

strategic tool to any public sector entity that seeks to realise much more than just goods and 

services. Supply Chain Management within public sector remains at the heart of much 

discussion whether as a key driver for economic empowerment, transformation or under the 

scrutiny of public as a fertile ground for corruption and maladministration. Proper strategic 

planning has to be embedded in public sector practise to ensure that government can live up to 

the promises of section 217 of the constitution of the South African Republic. 

Economic empowerment, sustainable development and growth will not take place if all sectors 

of society do not share in the same vision. The revision of the Preferential Procurement 

Regulation 2011 to 2017, can only translate that regulations and institution need to actively 

participate in the economic and empowerment process willingly without government enforcing 

stricter reforms to achieving these objectives. 

Council endeavours to create an economic buzz in this region that will ensure growth and 

sustainability in the long term. Having a Policy and system that enforces fairness, equitability, 

transparency, competitiveness and cost effectiveness as a means for obtaining value for money 

and local economic development is an objective we seek to achieve. Public confidence in the  

manner that Council executes its mandate is of paramount importance and council will ensure 

through its financial systems that Lejweleputswa District Municipality is forever synonymous 

with excellent corporate governance. 
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2.8 MUNICIPAL WEBSITE 
Section 75 of the Municipal Finance Management Act requires municipalities to 
place key documents and information on their website, including the IDP, the 

annual budget, adjustments budgets and budget related documents and 
policies.Sections 21 (a) & 21 (b) of the Municipal Systems Act also obliged 
municipalities to convey specific documents and information to the public, 

displaying these documents on the municipality’s official website. Based on the 
abovementioned, the Communication Unit strive to place all relevant and update 

information on the website. The Municipality views its website as an integral part of 
communication infrastructure and strategy. The website serves as a tool for 

community participation, information sharing and disclosure information about 
decisions taken, council’s finances and activities. 

Documents published on the Municipality's  Website 

Yes/No 

Current annual and adjustments budgets and all budget-related documents 
(2017/18) Yes 

All current budget-related policies for the 2017/18 budget Yes 

The annual report for 2016/17 Yes 

The annual report for 2017/18 to be published March 2019 

All performance agreements required in terms of section 57(1)(b) of the Municipal 
Systems Act  

(2017/18) and resulting scorecards 

Yes 

All supply chain management contracts above a prescribed value Yes 

An information statement containing a list of assets over a prescribed value that have 
been disposed  

of in terms of section 14 (2) or (4) during Year 1 

Nothing 
disposed 

Contracts agreed in Year 1 to which subsection (1) of section 33 apply, subject to 
subsection (3) of 

that section 

Yes 

Public-private partnership agreements referred to in section 120 made in Year 1 No 

All quarterly reports tabled in the council in terms of section 52 (d) during Year 1 Yes 
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2.9.   Municipal Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee of Lejweleputswa District Municipality herewith presents its Annual 

Audit Committee Report that reflects on progress made as well as the provision of feedback 

on activities performed by the Committee during the 2017/18 financial year.  

 

The Audit Committee, as an independent advisory committee appointed by Council, has been 

established in terms of the provisions of section 166 of the Local Government: Municipal 

Finance Management Act No. 56 of 2003 (hereinafter “MFMA”) as well as section 79 of the 

Local Government: Municipal Structures Act No.117 of 1998 (hereinafter “MSA”).  

 

The Audit Committee was effectively appointed from the 30th of March 2017 and will conclude 

its term of 3 years on the 29th of March 2020.  In accordance with good governance prescripts, 

the Municipality ensured continuity in the appointment of the new Audit Committee. 

 

The Audit Committee is focussed on ensuring the integrity of the Lejweleputswa District 

Municipality’s financial reporting and improving the internal control environment. 

 

2.9.1. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS ATTENDANCE 

 

The Audit Committee consists of 05 (five) independent external members appointed by the 

Municipal Council in terms of Section 166 of the MFMA and during the 2017/2018 financial 

year the following meetings were convened: 

a) Two (04) Ordinary Meetings, and 

b) Two (02) Special Meetings. 

 

2.9.2 SCHEDULED ORDINARY MEETINGS: 

 

Name of Member Position Attended Apologies Total 

Mr. L J Makoro *** Chairperson / Member 3 1 4 

Mr. N S Marota * Member / Chairperson 2 0 2 

Mr. N L Masoka Member 4 0 4 

Adv. L S Khonkhe** Member 3 0 3 

 Mr. T A 
Motshoikha  Member 4 0  

 

2.9.3 SPECIAL MEETINGS:  
 

Name of Member Position Attended Apologies Total 

Mr. L J Makoro *** Chairperson / Member 0 2 2 

Mr. N S Marota *  Member / Chairperson 2 0 2 

Mr. N L Masoka Member 2 0 2 

Adv. L S Khonkhe** Member 2 0 2 
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Name of Member Position Attended Apologies Total 

 Mr. T A Motshoikha  Member 1 1 2 
 

* Mr. Marota resigned effectively 1 December 2017. 
** Adv. Khonkhe resigned effectively 1 May 2018. 
*** Mr. Makoro was appointed as Chairperson for the remainder of the financial year. 
 

The following stakeholders participate in the meetings of the Audit Committee either on a 

permanent or Ad Hoc basis: 

1. The Auditor General’s office (External Auditor); 

2. Municipal Manager; 

3. Chief Financial Officer; 

4. Internal Audit Unit; 

5. Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee; 

6. Risk Manager; 

7. Chief Executive Officer of the Lejweleputswa Development Agency (LDA); and 

8. Free State Provincial Treasury Representatives. 
 

2.9.4 AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Audit Committee has adopted clear and formal Terms of Reference as its Audit Committee 

Charter.  The Charter is subjected to a process of review on an annual basis and the latest one 

was approved by the Municipal Council on 6 December 2017.  This document serves as a guide 

to the Committee in order for same to navigate on its critical roles and responsibilities and to 

give effect to its mandate in clear terms.  

 

The key objective of the Audit Committee is to assist and advice the Lejweleputswa District 

Municipality in ensuring the integrity of their financial reporting. 

The Audit Committee responsibilities entail the following: 

 

o Internal Control Environment, 

o Internal Audit, 

o Adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial reporting and information, 

o Risk Management, 

o Compliance with Laws and Regulations, 

o Performance Management, 

o Effective Governance,  

o Annual Financial Statements, and 
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o Any other matters referred to it by the Council. 

2.9.5 REPORT ON THE OPERATIONS OF THE AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

 

In discharging its responsibilities as stated above and in its terms of reference, the Audit 

Committee has developed a schedule of quarterly meetings and has adopted a standard 

agenda aligned to the MFMA and to reporting guidelines as published from time to time by 

National Treasury.  The attendance of the meetings is disclosed in paragraph 2 above. 

 

At its meetings during the 2017/2018 reporting period, the Audit Committee focussed on 

financial reporting, internal and external audit and risk management.  It also reviewed the 

charters for both the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Unit. 

The Audit Committee’s overall opinion is that the municipality has and maintains appropriate 

levels of internal controls to ensure that it achieves its service delivery objectives. Furthermore 

both the Municipal Council and Management have taken appropriate steps in strengthening 

the control environment over the last few years.  This opinion is informed by the information 

(documentary and otherwise) as well as explanations given by Management, Internal and 

External Auditors. Given the inherent nature of the municipality’s business, there will always 

be areas of improvement, these are highlighted herein under and narrated as follows: 

2.9.5.1 Financial Reporting  

In addressing our key objective, which is to assist and advice the Lejweleputswa District 

Municipality in ensuring the integrity of their financial reporting, we reviewed the 20172018 

Annual Financial Statements at a Special Audit Committee Meeting during August 2018, 

concentrating on the following: 

 

o Compliance with financial reporting standards and governance reporting requirements, 

o Areas requiring significant judgements to be made in applying accounting policies, 

o The appropriateness of accounting policies, 

o The procedures and controls around estimates in applying accounting policies, 

o Whether the Annual Report and accounts, is fair, balanced, understandable and 

provides the information necessary for stakeholders to assess the performance of the 

Municipal Council and its employees, and 

o Any relevant correspondence from regulators. 
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2.9.5.2 Year-End Statutory Audit  
 

The Office of the Auditor General (hereinafter “AGSA”) presented the Audit Strategy for the 

year ended 30 June 2018 prior to the commencement of the year-end audit and was considered 

and approved by Audit Committee.  There was an overall increase of 5.6% in the proposed 

audit fees from the previous year mainly as a result of tariff increases proposed by the 

oversight committee of the AGSA.  The Audit Committee requested that the AGSA office must 

have a closer collaboration with Internal Audit so as to increase areas of reliance as this will 

consequently result in the reduction of audit fees. 

 

The Audit Committee remains optimistic that the Municipality will retain its unqualified 

opinion with significant improvement in matters of emphasis henceforth or at best, attain a 

clean audit if such matters are addressed robustly and with the commitment and support of 

all relevant stakeholders. 

 

2.9.5.3   Control Environment 

A.  Internal Control Environment 

The assessment made by the Committee in relation to the internal control environment is 

informed by the assertions made by Management, Internal Audit Unit as well as the External 

Auditors’ reports. Our opinion is that the control environment is effective and has 

strengthened greatly over the last few years as the number of queries issued/raised by the 

AGSA have reduced significantly in comparison to those of previous external audits inter alia. 

 

The Audit Committee has approved a risk-based three-year Rolling Internal Audit Strategy 

and an annual operational audit plan. Amongst others, the Internal Audit Strategy focuses on: 

 

o Follow-ups in AG’s findings; 

o Performance management system;  

o Cash flow management; 

o Expenditure management;  

o Legal and regulatory compliance;  

o IT and IT governance; and 

o Risk management. 
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B. Risk Management 

 

The implementation of risk management has progressed well, albeit from a lower base.  

Policies and frameworks were adopted and utilized in the execution of risk related 

instructions.  A new Risk Management Chairperson was appointed effectively 1 May 2018.  

Provincial Treasury, from the results of their assessments, initiated a support program for the 

2018/2019 financial year which we believe will have positive results.  

 

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations 
 

The Committee has noted the initiatives that management has implemented towards the 

establishment of an effective compliance program focusing at this stage on the MFMA and 

legislated duties.  The completion and reporting on the compliance program are reported to 

the Audit Committee during ordinary meetings, however, compliance remains an area of 

concern, which the Municipality should zoom into and find ways or a model for improvement. 

 

D. Performance Management 

 

The Municipality has made significant progress in implementation of the Performance 

Management System.  Internal Audit Unit is working with the office of the Auditor General 

and Municipal Manager to improve the collation; packaging; and submission of portfolio of 

evidence on Municipal performance information.  The KPI’s have been redefined using the 

SMART (Simple, Measurable, Attainable, Reliable, Time bound) principle and this is one of 

the first steps towards a clean audit opinion on the predetermined objectives.  The next area of 

focus for the ensuing year will be to define technical indicators underpinning the KPIs and as 

the Audit Committee, we recognize the current efforts and believe that this will assist in the 

compilation of the annual report.   

 

i. Effective Governance 

 

The municipality has developed and implemented necessary policies to regulate and guide the 

day to day decision making and ensure appropriate control environment.   

 

ii. IT Governance 

 

An Information Technology Governance Framework was developed to assist and guide day 

to day decision making and ensure the appropriate control environment.   
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E. Lejwe Le Putswa Development Agency 

 

The Audit Committee and Internal Audit at the Municipality are extended to cover the 

Development Agency. This is done to ensure consistency and/or alignment in the application 

of applicable policies and procedures in improving governance as well as the control 

environment. 

The Development Agency continues to struggle with adequate resourcing and this has limited 

its ability to deliver on its mandate. The going concern status of the Development Agency 

remains a critical area of concern to the Audit Committee and this is a red flag not to be 

ignored. The Agency has the potential to grow as it sees itself in a turf that is economically 

vibrant and can only do better. The Council, Board of Directors, Shareholder Municipality and 

Management are working together to address the challenges facing the Agency. The Audit 

Committee is pleased at the progress made by the Agency at the introduction of their Revenue 

Enhancement Strategy which is part of their turnaround strategy towards an effective 

Development Agency.  This is viewed as a step in the right direction that will not only  assist 

the Agency with issues relating to its  sustainability but will be a value adding mechanism that 

will  benefit local communities in and around its jurisdictional area. The Committee remains 

optimistic that lasting solutions will be found in addressing other challenges facing the 

Agency.  

2.11 INTERNAL AUDIT 
 

The Accounting Officer is obliged, in terms of section 165 of the MFMA, to ensure that the 

entity has a system of internal audit under the control and direction of the Audit Committee. 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function has properly discharged its 

functions and responsibilities during the year under review. The Audit Committee expects that 

charters, programmes, evaluations and training plans will contribute to the internal audit 

function becoming more efficient, more responsive to challenges and better able to provide 

audit reports of a high quality to management and the committee on a timely basis. 

 

2.12 COUNCIL RESOLUTIONS 

 

Audit Committee, in their quarterly reports to the Council, make recommendations for 

implementation.  These recommendations are important to clear out avoidable risks during 

the financial year in preparation for improved performance. 
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2.13. EVALUATION  
 

Provincial Treasury in their bi-annual Key Performance Indicators Assessment for the period 

1 July 2017 – 31 December 2017 assessed the Audit Committee and Internal Audit Unit as 

follow: 

 Audit Committee  92%, 

 Internal Audit Unit  86%. 

Provincial Treasury highlight that the Lejweleputswa Municipality’s Audit Committee and 

Internal Audit Unit are performing well in the province. 

2.14. APPRECIATION 
 

The Audit Committee wishes to thank the Accounting Officer of Lejweleputswa District 

Municipality, municipal officials and all other stakeholders for the cordial manner in which 

the preparation of the 2017/18 financial year audit was conducted together with the 

enthusiasm portrayed by management in ensuring that issues raised/identified in prior year 

audits were addressed.  This is a task, and however daunting it may seem,  with a collective 

effort by all – from the lowest ranking support staff to Executive Management and Councilors, 

the municipality will surely reach greater heights and be a benchmark municipality not only 

in the province but nationally. In the end, a clean audit is a result of everybody’s effort and 

determination and fundamentally, it is achievable! 
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CHAPTER 3 

     SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE 

(PERFORMANCE REPORT PART 1) 
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CHAPTER 3:   OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE WITHIN THE  

ORGANISATION 

  3.1 OVERVIEW 

Performance management is a management tool which is 

used to plan, monitor, measure and review performance 

indicators to ensure efficiency, effectiveness and the 

optimum impact of service delivery by the Municipality. 

At local government level, performance management is 

institutionalised through the legislative requirements on the 

performance management process for local government. 

Performance management provides the mechanism to 

measure whether targets to meet its strategic goals, set by the 

organization and its employees, are met. 

The Constitution of South Africa (1996), Section 152, dealing with the objectives of local 

government, paves the way for performance management with the requirements for an 

“accountable government”. The democratic values and principles in terms of Section 195(1) are 

also linked with the concept of performance management, regarding the principles of inter alia: 

 the promotion of efficient, economic and effective use of resources;  

 accountable public administration; 

 to be transparent by providing information; 

 to be responsive to the needs of the community; and 

 to facilitate a culture of public service and accountability amongst staff. 

The Municipal Systems Act (MSA), 2000 requires municipalities to establish a performance 

management system. Further, the MSA and the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) 

requires the Integrated Development Plan (IDP) to be aligned to the municipal budget and to 

be monitored for the performance of the budget via the Service Delivery and the Budget 

Implementation Plan (SDBIP). 

Performance 

management is 

a process which 

measures the 

implementation 

of the 

organisation’s 

strategy” 
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  Legislative requirements: 

IN TERMS OF SECTION 46(1)(A) OF THE MSA, A MUNICIPALITY MUST PREPARE FOR 

EACH FINANCIAL YEAR A PERFORMANCE REPORT REFLECTING THE MUNICIPALITY’S 

PERFORMANCE AND ANY SERVICE PROVIDER’S PERFORMANCE DURING THE FINANCIAL 

YEAR, INCLUDING COMPARISON WITH TARGETS OF AND WITH PERFORMANCE IN THE 

PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR. THE REPORT MUST INDICATE THE DEVELOPMENT AND 

SERVICE DELIVERY PRIORITIES AND THE PERFORMANCE TARGETS SET BY THE 

MUNICIPALITY FOR THE FOLLOWING FINANCIAL YEAR AND MEASURES THAT WERE OR 

ARE TO BE TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE. 

 

3.1.1 ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

Strategic performance indicates how well the municipality meet its objectives and which 

policies and processes are working. All government institutions must report on strategic 

performance to ensure that service delivery is efficient, effective and economical. 

Municipalities must develop strategic plans and allocate resources for the implementation. 

The implementation must be monitored on an ongoing basis and the results must be reported 

on during the financial year to various role-players to enable them to timeously implement 

corrective measures where required. This report highlights the strategic performance in terms 

of the municipality’s Top Layer SDBIP per strategic objective and the National KPI’s prescribed 

in terms of Section 43 of the MSA, 2000. 

 
3.1.2 THE PERFORMANCE SYSTEM FOLLOWED FOR 2016/17 

 
Performance 
Management  
Framework:  

Approved by 
Council:  

23 November 
2015 
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a) Adoption of a Performance Management Framework 

Regulation 7(1) of the Local Government: Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations, 2001 states that “A 

Municipality’s Performance Management System entails a framework that describes and represents how the municipality’s cycle 

and processes of performance planning, monitoring, measurement, review, reporting and improvement will be conducted, 

organised and managed, including determining the roles of the different role players.” Performance management is not only 

relevant to the organisation but also to the individuals employed in the organization as well as the external service providers and 

municipal entities. This framework, inter alia, reflects the linkage between the IDP, budget, SDBIP and individual and service provider 

performance. 

Council approved and adopted a Performance Management Framework and Policy in November 2015. The Municipality reviewed the policy 

during May 2014. The policy was adjusted and approved during the 2016/17 financial year. 

 

3.1.3 THE IDP AND THE BUDGET 

The reviewed IDP and budget for 2017/18 was approved by Council on 27 May 2016. 

The strategy map below illustrates the strategic link of the focus areas of the Municipality with the National Key Performance Areas (KPAs). The 

strategic objectives that were identified in the 2016/17 IDP are aligned with the National KPAs. The strategic objectives are linked to the outcomes 

for 2017/18. 

 

 

 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

85 

 

3.1.4 THE SDBIP 

The organisational performance is evaluated by means of a municipal scorecard (Top Layer SDBIP) at organisational level and at 

directorate levels. 

The Top Layer SDBIP was approved by the Executive Mayor on 10 June 2016. 

The Top Layer SDBIP was revised with the adjustment budget in terms of Regulation 26(2)(c) of the Municipal Budget and 

Reporting Regulations and approved by Council on 3 1 January 2017. The following were considered in the development of the 

amended Top Layer SDBIP: 

 Areas to be addressed and root causes of the Auditor-General Management Letter, as well as the risks identified during the 

2016/17 audit 

 Alignment with the IDP, National KPA’s, Municipal KPA’s and IDP objectives 

 Alignment with the adjustments budget 

 The risks identified by the Internal Auditor / Risk Manager during the municipal risk analysis 

 The recommended changes by the Internal Auditor 

 The requested changes by Executive Managers and Line Managers 

 The development of Technical Indicator descriptions. 
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3.3. SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE AND BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

This section provides an overview of the key service achievements of the Municipality that came to fruition during 2017/18 in terms 

of the deliverables achieved, compared to the KPIs and objectives in the IDP. It furthermore includes an overview on achievement 

in 2017/18 compared to actual performance in 2016/17. 

The images below indicate the method by which the overall assessment of actual performance against targets set for the KPI’s of the 

SDBIP is measured. 

The graphs below give an indication of how the Municipality performed in terms of its Top Layer SDBIP: 

 
 
 
 
 

Lejweleputswa 
District 

Municipality 

 Key Performance Areas 
 Municipal 
Institutional 
Transformati
on and 
Developmen
t 

Basic Service 
Delivery 

Local 
Economic 
Development 

Municipal 
Financial 
Viability and 
Management  

Good 
Governance 
and Public 
Participation  

Achieved 
Kpi s 

102  14 15 12 15 46 

Unachieved 
Kpi’s 

7  0 2 4 0 1 

 109  14 17 16 15 47 
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a) Overall performance per strategic objective for the 2017/18 financial year 
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b. Overal Municipal Performance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

94%

6%

Overall Performance on KPA's

Achieved

Unachieved
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Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development 

CORPORATE SERVICES ANALYSIS 

As shown by the Chart above. It is evident that Coorporate services worked very 
hard in execution of its objectives for 2017/18 Fiscal period. Hence it registered 100 
% achievement from its objectives.  

Good performance in Corporate services means; 

a. Timeous distribution of Council information 
b. Accurate and Successful implementation of Council resolution. 
c. Significant progress in Capacitating Human Capital 
d. Development of new policies and reviewal of existing policies 
e. Successful implementation of Employee wellness programmes 
f. Good working relations between Employee’s respresentative and Employer 

in resolving Disputes. 

 In the year under review Corporate Services amassed tremendous achievements in their 
Annual performance. The Executive Director of Corporate services was very optimistic in 
execution of own responsibilities, implementing new strategies and controls which 
assisted her section to perform exceptionally well. Ldm is carving out a niche for itself as 
the best municipality especially in training and development on its Human Capital and 
attending to the most impending adversities such as Communication and Municipal 
Archiving. There is an improvement in flow of work as a result of planning, 
communication and the municipal performance has increased drastically across all 
various sections. A newly appointed Executive Director’s principle is: When people work 
together in an atmosphere of trust and accountability toward a common goal, they put 
aside turf issues and politics and focus on the tasks to be done.Thus, these focus helped 
overcome barriers, helped in identification of new opportunities and helped build a 
momentum that leads to three major benefits which are: A) Better problem solving, 
Greater productivity and more effective use of resources. 

 

100%

0%

CORPORATE SERVICE OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Achieved Unachieved
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Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

1.1 Portfolio 

committee 

meetings  

To adhere to 

all 

administrative 

responsibilities 

Develop and 

distribute 16 

signed 

portfolio 

committee 

agendas and 

minutes 

16 Portfolio 

committee 

meetings by 30 

June 2018. 

Number of signed 

portfolio committee 

agendas and 

minutes developed 

and distributed by 30 

June 2018. 

Portfolio 

committee 

meetings  

16 18 

 

 

16 

 

 

19 

 
Achieved 

Finance had 1 

more Portfoloio 

Committees as 

aresult of Budget 

Adjustemnt  and 

Corporate 

Services had 2 

more Portfolio 

Committes to 
discuss Policies 

1.2 MAYCO 

meetings 

To adhere to 

all 

administrative 

responsibilities 

Develop and 

distribute all 

signed 

MAYCO 

agendas and 

minutes 

4 MAYCO 

meetings by 30 

June 2018. 

Number signed 

MAYCO agendas 

and minutes by 30 

June 2018. 

MAYCO 

meetings 

4 

 

4 

 

4 

 

7 

Achieved 
Due to Special 

Mayco by Council 
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Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

1.3 Council 

meetings 

To adhere to 

all 

administrative 

responsibilities 

Develop and 

distribute 

signed council 

agendas and 

minutes 

4 Council meetings 

by 30 June 2018. 

Number of signed 

council agendas and 

minutes by 30 June 

2018. 

Council 

meetings 

4 11 

 

4 

 

 

 

6 
Achieved 

Due to Special 

councils 

1.4 Local Labor 

Forum 

To ensure 

functional LLF 

in order to 

promote sound 

labor relations 

in the 

workplace 

Ensure 

compliance 

with Collective 

Agreements, 

Basic 

Conditions of 

Employment 

Act, Labor 

Relations and 

& institutional 

policies 

pertaining to 

labor relations.  

Convene 4 

quarterly LLF 

meetings by 30 

June 2018 for the 

promotion of sound 

labor relations in 

the workplace. 

Number of LFF 

meetings convened 

towards the 

promotion of sound 

labor relations in the 

workplace by 30 

June 2018.   

LLF 

meetings 

4 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 
Achieved 

 

 

 

 

1.5 

Skills 

Development 

Support 

indigent  

students with 

bursaries to 

register and 

attend tertiary 

institutions in 

pursuit of post 

matric 

qualifications  

Allocate 

bursaries to  

deserving 

students in the 

district  

Provided bursary 

opportunities to 10 

deserving students 

in the district by 31 

January 2018.  

Number of deserving 

students provided 

with bursary 

opportunities by 31 

January 2018.   

Student 

Bursaries 

 

 

10 

 

 

53 

 

 

10 

 

 

13 

Achieved 

 
 
 
Change of 
Municipal Focus. 
No longer funding 
University student 
but TVET students 

1.6 Skills 

Development 

To give 

experiential 

training to 

students at 

tertiary 

Enrol students 

within the 

district for 

Register 10 

students within the 

district for 

Number of student’s 

successfully enrolled 

for experiential 

Experiential 

training 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Influx of Training to 
the municipality is 
controlled by TVET. 
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Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

institutions to 

complete their 

qualifications. 

experiential 

training. 

experiential training 

by 31 January 2018 

training by 30 June 

2018. 

10 18 10 18 Achieved 

1.7 Workplace 

Skills Plan 

(WSP) 

To upgrade 

the skills of the 

staff members  

Enroll 

employees of 

the 

municipality 

with 

accredited 

institutions of 

higher 

learning to 

improve their 

skills in a form 

of  short 

courses  

Prepare & submit 

Workplace Skills 

Plan (WSP), 

Annual Training 

Report (ATR), and 

Professional, 

Vocational, 

Technical & 

Academic Learning 

(PIVOTAL) Report 

for 2017/18financial 

years to LGSETA 

by 30 April 2018.  

Date of submission 

WSP, ATR and 

PIVOTAL Report for 

financial year to 

LGSETA by 30 April 

2018.  

Short 

Courses for 

the 

employees 

of the 

municipality 

(WSP) 

 

 

 

10 

 

 

 

34 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 
Achieved 

 

1.8 Workplace 

Skills Plan 

(WSP) 

To upgrade 

the skills of the 

staff members  

Enroll 

employees of 

the 

municipality 

with 

accredited 

institutions of 

higher 

learning to 

improve their 

skills in a form 

of  short 

courses  

Ensure submission 

of 12 WSP monthly 

monitoring and 

implementation 

reports to LGSETA 

within 7 days after 

the end of each 

month during 

2017/18 financial 

year.  

Number of monthly 

WSP monitoring and 

implementation 

reports submitted to 

LGSETA within 7 

days after the end of 

each month during 

2017/18 financial 

year. 

Short 

Courses for 

the 

employees 

of the 

municipality 

(WSP) 

 

New 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12 

 

 

 

12 Achieved 

 

 

. 

1.9   Workplace 

Skills Plan 

(WSP) 

Support staff 

members to 

Provide 

financial 

assistance to 

deserving staff 

Provide financial 

assistance to at 

least 5 employees 

in a form of internal 

Number of LDM 

employees provided 

with internal 

Financial 

assistance 

for 

furthering 

5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

More Funds was 

Made Avilable to 
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Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

further their 

qualifications. 

members of 

the LDM to 

further their 

studies 

bursary to 

deserving 

employees of the 

LDM by 31 March 

2018.   

bursaries to further 

their studies. 

educational 

studies.  

14 5 15 Achieved Empower Municipl 

Employees  

1.10 Employee 

Wellness 

Programme 

 Conduct 

employee  

wellness  

programmes 

Facilitate 

employee’s 

wellness 

programmes 

for the LDM.  

Prepare an annual 

employee-wellness 

programme for 

2017/18 financial 

years by 1 July 

2018, prepare and 

present 4 quarterly 

reports in relation 

thereto  to senior 

management 

meeting by 30 June 

2018 

An annual 

employee-wellness 

programme and 

number of quarterly 

report in relation 

thereto prepared and 

presented to senior 

management 

meeting by 30 June 

2018.  

Employee 

wellness 
 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

4 

Achieved 
 

1.11. Employment 

Equity  

To ensure that 

the 

municipality 

achieves 

reasonable 

progress 

towards 

employment 

equity in the 

workplace, 

develop and 

submit 

Employment 

Equity report 

to the 

Develop 

Yearly 

Employment 

Equity Plan for 

LDM and 

submit reports 

to the 

Department of 

Labor.  

Develop Yearly 

Employment Equity 

Plan for the LDM 

and submit reports 

to the Department 

of Labor by 30 

June 2018. 

A. Date of 

submission of the 

Yearly Employment 

Equity Plan for the 

LDM and  

 

 

B. Number of 

employment equity 

reports submitted to 

the Department of 

Labor by 30 June 

2018. 

Employment 

Equity 

Report 
new 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

1 

 

Achieved 
 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

94 

 

Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

Department of 

Labor. 

1.12 Security 

Management 

Create an 

environment to 

improve safety 

of public 

members, 

councillors, 

staff and 

assets  

including 

Disaster 

Management 

Centre 

Prepare 

consolidated 

security 

access reports 

of all 

municipal 

entrances 

and develop 

security 

management 

plan for the 

LDM 

Prepare 12 monthly 

security 

assessment and / 

or incidents reports 

regarding potential 

security threats to 

the municipality, 

employees, 

information and 

other interest of the 

municipality and 

develop Security 

Management Plan 

for the LDM by 30 

June 2018.  

Number of monthly 

security assessment 

and / or incidents 

reports regarding 

potential security 

threats to the 

municipality, 

employees, 

information and 

other interest of the 

municipality and 

Develop Security 

Management Plan 

for the LDM by 30 

June 2018.  

Security 

Managem

ent 

12 

 

 

 

12 

 

 

 

12 

 

 

 

12 

Achieved  

1.13 Policy 

Development 

Policy 

Development 

Development 

of  new 

municipal 

policy 

Prepare 1 Human 

Resource related 

policy reviewed, 

updated and 

approved by 

Council by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of Human 

Resource related 

policy reviewed, 

updated and 

approved by Council 

by 30 June 2018. 

New 

municipal 

policies  

2 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 

 

Achieved 
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a) Introduction to Human Resources (HR) 

The HR section delivers a support service to the other departments in the organisation. Its primary function is to coordinate all 

HR activities to achieve the Municipality’s objectives of service delivery and to adhere to legislative requirements which will 

enhance staff performance and play a fundamental role within the District Municipality. 

The HR Unit strives to: 

 Empower employees towards maximizing their personal potential and deliver on and exceed 

organizational requirements; 

 Continuously align the HR Strategy and the IDP, legislative requirements and best   practices in HR fields; 

 Promote and practice “Putting people first” equity, fairness, objectivity and consistency; 

 Committed to professional conduct; and 

 Develop and adopt appropriate systems and procedures to ensure fair, efficient, effective and transparent 

personnel administration. 

The HR Unit consists of the following disciplines: 

 Learning and Development, Employment Equity and Employee Wellness 

 Employee Relations (Labour Relations) 

 Recruitment and Selection and Contract Administration 

 Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) 
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 Leave administration and  Conditions of Service 

  Highlights: HR 

The following highlights were achieved during the financial year: 

Highlights Description 

11 Permanent appointments 

 

There were 11 new permanent appointments on the approved 
organisational structure for the 2016/17 financial year 

Updated policy and procedures  Various policies and procedures have been updated 

Employee wellness Improve employees’ wellbeing  through Employee wellness 
programmes 

Offering Unemployed Graduates Work place 
Experience. 

Ensuring that Unemployed Graduates are Equiped with 
necessary skills and training. 

 Establishment of OHS  Through the interaction of Dept of Labor District established its 
own OHS. 
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b) Challenges: HR 

   The table below indicates the challenges faced during the financial year: 

Description Actions to address 

    Alignment of Job descriptions 

 

 

Job description to be properly aligned with 
Municipal IDP. This will eanable Cascading of 

performance to lower Levels.  

 

Leave Management  More employees needed to execute these 
function properly. 

 

Clocking System   Municipal Clocking system should be fixed it is 
an efficient way of curbing late coming and an 
effective tool of controlling Absenteeism 

Skills development 

 

Empowerment of Employees with necessary 
skills to enable them to execute their 

responsibilities 

Training needs of All Departments to be 
centralized to Corporate Services 

 Centralised Training leads to Accurate 
administration and enhance accountability   
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Labour relations statistics 

The table below indicates the labour relations activities throughout the financial year:  

Description 
Number 

2016/17 2017/18 

Cases 2 1 

Terminations 1 1 

Counselling sessions 0 1 

Disputes 3                                          2 

Incapacities 0 0 

Grievances 1 2 

Suspensions 2 1 
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Employees: HR 

(T-grade) 

2016/17 2017/18 

Employee
s Posts Employees 

Vacancies (fulltime  
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of  
total posts) 

Number % 

0 - 3 

 

0 1 0 0 

4 - 6 13 12 1 7.10 

7 - 9 6 4 2 33.33% 

10 - 12 11 10 1 9.10% 

13 - 15 14 12 2 14.29% 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 

Total  44 39 6 13.63% 
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BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY 

    Introduction to Environment Health Services 

 Safe and Healthy Environment: 

 LEGAL FRAMEWORK 
 

According to the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 1996, the Local 
Government: Municipal Structures Act No.117 of 1998 and the National Health 
Act, no. 61 of 2003, it is the statutory responsibility of the District Municipality to 
render municipal health services. Section 24 of the Constitution of the Republic of 
South Africa entrenches the right of all citizens to live in an environment that is 
not harmful to their health or well-being. Section 1 of the National Health Act, 
2003 (Act 61of 2003), defines municipal health services and clearly stipulates the 
responsibilities of municipalities in the performance of such services. 
Environmental Health comprises those aspects of human health, including 
quality of life, that are determined by physical, chemical, biological, social and 
psychosocial factors in the environment. It also refers to the theory and practice of 
assessing, correcting, controlling and preventing factors in the environment that 
can adversely affect the health of present and future generations. 
 
Environmental Health Services are services that implement environmental health 
policies through monitoring and controlling, which improve environmental 
parameters and encourage the use of environmentally friendly and healthy 
technologies and behaviours. Controlling and monitoring also play a leading role 
in suggesting and developing new policy areas. (These definitions are in line with 
the definitions of the WHO) Residential, business and public premises are 
regularly monitored to ensure that there are no health nuisances.  
 
This is done to ensure compliance with the applicable legislation, the principles of 
Agenda 21 and the "Healthy Cities" approach, and the minimisation of any 
detrimental environmental health risk. 
 
Key Performance Areas: 
 
• Chemical safety 
• Disposal of the dead 
• Environmental pollution control 
• Food control 
• Health surveillance of premises 
• Surveillance and prevention of communicable diseases 
• Vector control/monitoring 
• Waste management and Water quality monitoring 
• Administration – general 
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HEALTH INSPECTION, FOOD AND ABATTOIR LICENSING AND 
INSPECTION. 

 
Introduction to Health Inspection; Food and Abattoir Licensing and Inspections, etc. 

 
In order to fulfil its constitutional and legal obligations, the LDM Municipal Health 
Services fulfils its mandate through highly qualified and skilled environmental 
health practitioners (EHPs). They provide and facilitate comprehensive, pro-active 
and need-related services to ensure a safe, healthy and clean environment, thereby 
preventing and eliminating sources of disease. Within the District there are 
functional municipal health offices in 2 Municipalities within the district. The 
Municipal Health Inspectorate is divided into 5 regions which form our district 
namely: Matjhabeng, Tswelopele, Tokologo, Nala and Masilonyana. Municipal 
health services are personnel driven function due to the fact that monitoring, 
according to the scope of practice of environmental health, form the basis of 
performing this function. Performing these functions will add value to “healthier 
people in healthier living environment” 
 

Main functions: 
 
•    Monitoring of water reticulation. 
•    Protection of water sources by enforcement of laws and regulations. 
•    Implementation of health and hygiene awareness. 
•    Control of food premises by issuing compliance certificates to food premises. 
  Ensure that food is safe and healthy for human consumption by the enforcement    

of laws    and    regulations. 
•    The monitoring of the storage, treatment, collection, handling and disposal of the 

various       categories of waste. 
•    The identification, monitoring and evaluation of health risks, nuisances and 

hazards. 
•    The promotion of health and hygiene aimed at preventing the incidence of 

Environmental   conditions that will result in contagious diseases. 
•    Monitoring, identification, evaluation to ensure the prevention of vectors. The 

identification, evaluation, monitoring and prevention of the pollution of soil, 
water and air. 

•    Monitoring of cemeteries, crematoriums and other facilities for the disposal of 
corpses. 

•    The monitoring, identification, evaluation and prevention of risks relating to 
chemicals hazardous to humans. 
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Achievement for a fiscal year 2017/18 

BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY ANALYSIS 

 

As shown by the Chart above. It is evident that Basic Service delivery worked 
tirelessly in execution of its objectives for 2017/18 Fiscal period. It registered 88% 
achievement of its objectives.  

Good performance in Basic Service Delivery means; 

a. Regularly sampling of Drinkable water and retest are recommended if 
water chlorine is inadequate. 

b. Ensuring successful implementation of Food Sampling and Monitoring 
programmes. 

c. Landfill sites are monitored and compliance with regulations is enforced 
d. Air Quality programmes are performed non – complying entities are 

penalised. 
e. Disaster awareness campaigns are performed and there are disaster 

recovery and contingency plans 
f. Fire Campaigns are carried out in five local municipalities in the District. 
g. Waste management Campaigns are Rolled out in five District local 

Municipalities

88%

12%

BASIC SERVICES DELIVERY OVERALL 
PERFORMANCE

Achieved Unachieved
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  Key Performance Area 2: Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development 

ID 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP 

Strategic 

Objective 

Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement 
Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

2.1 Infrastructu
re 
Developme
nt 

To provide 
road 
infrastructur
e for the 
community 
of the LDM 

Upgrading and 
maintenance of roads 

Implementation of roads 
related projects 
executed by 30 June 
2018.  

 Implement road related 
projects by 30 June 
2018.  

Road 
maintenance 

1 

 

1 1 

 

1 
Achieved  

2.2 EPWP To facilitate 
the creation   
jobs for 
disadvantag
ed youth, 
women and 
people with 
disabilities 

Create jobs for 80 
unemployed  youth, women 
and people with disability 

 Employ 80 youth, 
women and people with 
disability by 30 June 
2018. 

Number of jobs created 
by June 2018. 

EPWP 

 

80 

 

 

80 

 

 
80 

 

93 
Achieved 

Availability of 

more Grant 

Funding 

prompted the 

municipality to 

employ more 

people. 

2.3 Municipal 
health 
services 

To provide 
Municipal 
Health 
Services 
effectively & 
equitably in 
the District. 

Ensure equitable allocation 
and distribution of 
Municipal Health Services 
resources across the 
district so as to ensure fair 
and equitable health 
services within the district. 

4 quarterly Water 
Quality reports indicating 
the status of water in 
various towns across the 
5 local municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018.  

Number of quarterly 
Water Quality reports 
indicating the status of 
water in various towns 
across the 5 local 
municipalities in the 
district by 30 June 2018. 

Water 
quality 
monitoring 

 

 

204 

 

 

198 

 
 
 

4 

 

 

4 

Achieved  

2.4 Municipal 
health 
services 

To provide 
Municipal 
Health 
Services 
effectively & 
equitably in 
the District. 

Ensure equitable allocation 
and distribution of 
Municipal Health Services 
resources across the 
district so as to ensure fair 
and equitable health 
services within the district. 

4 quarterly reports 
indicating number of 
food selling outlets 
complying with relevant 
legislation by 30 June 
2018. 

Number of quarterly 
reports indicating the 
status of food selling 
outlets in compliance 
with relevant legislation 
by 30 June 2018.   

Food quality 
monitoring 

500 

 

 

589 

 
 
 
 

4 

 

 

4 

Achieved 
 

2.5 Municipal 
health 
services 

To provide 
Municipal 
Health 
Services 
effectively 
& equitably 
in the 
District. 

Ensure equitable 
allocation and 
distribution of Municipal 
Health Services 
resources across the 
district so as to ensure 
fair and equitable health 
services within the 
district. 

4 quarterly reports 
indicating the status 
of food samples taken 
in various towns 
across the 5 Local 
Municipalities in the 
district by 30 June 
2018. 
 
 

Number of quarterly 
reports indicating 
thereof samples 
taken in various 
towns across the 5 
Local Municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018. 

Food 
sampling 

 

 

160 

 

 

213 
 

4 
 

4 
Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 2: Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development 

 

ID 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP 

Strategic 

Objective 

Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement 
Project 

Name 

Basel
ine 

Annu
al 

Target 
2017/1

8 

Annual  
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

2.6 Municipal 
health 
services 

To provide 
Municipal 
Health 
Services 
effectively 
& equitably 
in the 
District. 

Ensure equitable 
allocation and 
distribution of Municipal 
Health Services 
resources across the 
district so as to ensure 
fair and equitable health 
services within the 
district. 

4 Quarterly reports 
indicating awareness 
campaigns conducted 
in respect of 
Municipal Health 
Services across 5 
Local Municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018. 

Number of awareness 
campaigns conducted 
in respect of 
Municipal Health 
Services across 5 
Local Municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018. 

Environme
ntal health 
awareness 
campaign 

 

 

4 

 

 

4 4 

 

 

4 

 

Achieved 

 

2.7 Environme
ntal 
Manageme
nt Service  

To provide 
Municipal 
Environment
al Services 
effectively & 
equitably in 
the District. 

Ensure equitable allocation 
and distribution of Air 
Quality Management 
resources across the 
district so as to ensure fair 
and equitable air quality 
management services 
within the district. 

4 quarterly Air Quality 
Management reports 
indicating services 
rendered in various 
towns across the 5 local 
municipalities in the 
district by 30 June 2018.  

Number of quarterly Air 
Quality Management 
reports indicating 
services rendered in 
various towns across the 
5 local municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018.  

Licenses 
issued and  
audited 

 

 

4 

 

 

5 

4 

 

 

       4 

Achieved 

 

2.8 Environme
ntal 
Manageme
nt Service  

To provide 
Municipal 
Environment
al Services 
effectively & 
equitably in 
the District. 

Ensure equitable allocation 
and distribution of 
Municipal Health Services 
resources across the 
district so as to ensure fair 
and equitable health 
services within the district. 

4 quarterly 
environmental services 
reports with specific 
focus on waste 
management activities 
performed in various 
areas across the 5 local 
municipalities in the 
district by 30 June 2018. 

Number of quarterly 
environmental reports 
with specific focus on 
waste management 
activities performed in 
various areas across the 
5 local municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018. 

Waste 
managemen
t monitoring 

16 

 

 

16 

4 
 

 

 

4 

Achieved 

 

2.9 Environme
ntal 
Manageme
nt Service  

To provide 
Municipal 
Environment
al Services 
effectively & 
equitably in 
the District. 

Ensure equitable allocation 
and distribution of 
Municipal Health Services 
resources across the 
district so as to ensure fair 
and equitable health 
services within the district. 

4 quarterly reports on 
waste management   
awareness campaigns 
conducted in various 
areas across the 5 local 
municipalities in the 
district by 30 June 2018 

Number of quarterly 
reports on waste 
management awareness 
campaigns conducted in 
various areas across the 
5 local municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018. 
 
 

Waste 
managemen
t campaigns 

 

4 

 

 

 

4 

 
 

4 
 

 

 

 

4 

Achieved 
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Highlights:  Basic Service Delivery: MHS 

The following highlights were achieved during the financial year: 

Highlights Description 

Food Premises Inspections 

Successful monitoring of informal food premises, public toilet facilities and waste facilities. 
Improvement of hygiene standards which can be prescribed to the inspection rates 

Funeral Undertakers 
Regular inspections ensured that owners understood and complied with the relevant legislation to 

be certified as prescribed by law 

Water Quality Analysis 
Improvement on the quality of drinking water in the region. 

Control of Listeriosis  Countless tests were Conducted in Collaboration with Shop owners who helped remove 
Contaminated Cold Meats from their Shelves to curb new Infections. 

Bird Flu Outbreak Tests were Conducted on Chicken breeding Companies and those affected were closed down.  

 Air quality monitoring 
 

Establishment of Air Quality Section and Its Succesful Acquisition of Revenues in the form of Air 
Quality Levies 

Operation Hlasela A campaign undertaken by MHS in collaboration with SAPS to visit informal shops to check 
existence of expired goods in their shops. 
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  Challenges: MHS 

   The table below indicates the challenges faced during the financial year: 

Description Actions to address 

Inadequate Human Capital 

Hiring additional staff to enable MHS to comply with set 
regulations on MHS staff compliment. Atleast 52 new staff 
members. 

 

 Employing more staff   No equipment to monitor air quality 
AQM 65 Ambient monitoring station (mobile) be made 
available 

 

Foot-Print calculator accreditation 
 Acquring these tools for Air Quality section to enablethem to 
raise accurate penalties to Defaulting Entities 
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Introduction to Disaster Management Services 

Disaster Management Services 

The main objectives of Disaster Management Section is to promote a culture of risk reduction, disaster prevention and mitigation 

within Lejweleputswa District Municipality region. It also acts as the main source of disaster management related information 

and aims to capacitate communities, internal and external disaster management role-players. Furthermore, it promotes a rapid, 

coordinated and effective reponse to disastrous events by all role-players. 
             

The legislative mandate of the Municipality in terms of disaster management services are:  

 The 1996 Constitution RSA 

 Disaster Management Amendment Act, 16 of 2015 as amended 

 Disaster Management Amendment Act, 57 of 2002 

 National Disaster Management Framework, GN 654 OF 2005 

 The Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 

 The Municipal Structures Act 117 of 1998 

South Africa faces increasing levels of disaster risk it is exposed to a wide range Of weather hazards, including drought, cyclones and 
severe storms that can trigger Widespread hardship and devastation. Climate change is altering the face of disaster risk, not only 
through increased weather related risks and sea – level and Temperature rises, but also through increases in societal vulnerabilities, 
for example, from stresses on water availability, agriculture and ecosystems. 
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  Key Performance Area 2: Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development 

ID 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP 

Strategic 

Objective 

Strategies KPI 
Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 
  
2.10 

Disaster 
Manageme
nt 

To ensure 
effective & 
efficient 
disaster 
managemen
t services in 
the district. 

Ensure equitable 
allocation and 
distribution of 
Disaster 
Management 
resources across 
the district so as to 
ensure fair and 
equitable provision 
of services within 
the district. 

4 quarterly Disaster 
Management 
reports indicating 
services rendered 
in various towns 
across the 5 local 
municipalities in the 
district by 30 June 
2018. 

Number of quarterly 
Disaster 
Management reports 
indicating services 
rendered in various 
towns across the 5 
local municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018. 

Disaster 
Managemen
t reports  

4 

 

 

5 

4 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 

 

 

 

Unachieved.  

Not Many 

Incidents Took 

Place in the 

Fical year Under 

review. Only 

three Incidents 

were 

Registered. 

2.11 Disaster 
Manageme
nt Forum 
meetings 

To promote 
and facilitate 
Intergovern
mental 
Relations 
amongst 
stakeholders 
in the 
district. 

Facilitate 
compliance with the 
principles of co-
operative 
government and 
intergovernmental 
relations within the 
district. 

4 Disaster 
Management 
Forum meetings 
held by 30 June 
2018.  

Number of Disaster 
Management Forum 
meetings held by 30 
June 2018.  

Disaster 
Managemen
t Forum 
meetings 

 

5 

 

 

5 

 
 
 
 
4 
 
 
 

 

 

9 

Achieved 
More Forums 

needed to 

address Disaster 

management 

issues like Fires 

and Storms 

 2.12 Disaster 
Manageme
nt 

To ensure 
effective & 
efficient 
disaster 
managemen
t services in 
the district. 

Ensure equitable 
allocation and 
distribution of 
Disaster 
Management 
resources across 
the district so as to 
ensure fair and 
equitable provision 
of services within 
the district. 

Develop, review 
and implement 
disaster mitigation 
strategies; 
Contingency Plans; 
Evacuation Plans; 
and Draft a Relief 
Assistance Policy 
for Incidents by 30 
June 2018. 

Number of disaster 
mitigation strategies, 
contingency plans, 
and evacuation plan 
and relief assistance 
policy developed, 
reviewed and 
implemented by 30 
June 2018.  

Disaster 
Relief  

New 

 

1 

 

 

0 

 

Unachieved. 

Policy 

Developed but 

was late for 

Council 

Approval for 

Implementaion. 

 2.13 Disaster 
Manageme
nt 

To ensure 
effective & 
efficient 
disaster 
managemen
t services in 
the district. 

Ensure equitable 
allocation and 
distribution of 
Disaster 
Management 
resources across 
the district so as to 
ensure fair and 
equitable provision 

Conduct 12 
monthly disaster 
awareness 
campaigns in 
schools and 
communities in 
conjunction with the 
5 local 
municipalities in the 

Number of monthly 
disaster awareness 
campaigns in schools 
and communities 
conducted in 
conjunction with the 5 
local municipalities in 
the district by 30 June 
2018. 

 Disaster 
awareness 
campaigns  

12 

 

 

19 
 

12 

 

 

17 

 

Achieved 
More Awareness 

Campaigns 

executed to 

cover larger 

arears within our 

District to 
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  Key Performance Area 2: Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development 

ID 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP 

Strategic 

Objective 

Strategies KPI 
Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 
of services within 
the district. 

district by 30 June 
2018. 

minimise impact 

of Disasters.  

2.14 Disaster 
Manageme
nt 

To ensure 
effective & 
efficient 
disaster 
managemen
t services in 
the district. 

Ensure equitable 
allocation and 
distribution of 
Disaster 
Management 
resources across 
the district so as to 
ensure fair and 
equitable provision 
of services within 
the district. 

Conduct 1 Disaster 
Management 
workshops for 
Councillors and 
Officials in 
conjunction with 
SALGA and the 
Provincial Disaster 
Management 
Centre by 30 June 
2018. 

Number of disaster 
management 
workshops for 
councillors and 
officials in conjunction 
with SALGA and 
Provincial Disaster 
Management Centre 
conducted by 30 
June 2018. 

 Disaster 
awareness 
campaigns 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 
1 

 

 

1 

 

Achieved 

 

2.15  Disaster 
Manageme
nt  
 

Ensure 
Attendance 
of Provincial 
Advisory 
Forum 
meetings. 

Ensure Attendance 
of 4 Provincial 
Advisory forum 
Meetings 

Attend 4 Provincial 
Advisory Forum 
meetings. 

Number of Provincial 
Disaster 
Management 
Meetings attended by 
30 June 2018 

Advisory 
Forum 
meetings 

 

4 

 

4 

 

 
 
       4 
 

 

4 

 

Achieved 

 

2.16 Disaster 
Manageme
nt 

Ensure an 
integrated, 
and multi-
sectoral 
approach to 
Disaster 
Managemen
t in the 
District 

Participate in Sector 
Departments’ public 
awareness 
campaigns.   

1 Disaster Relief 
Awareness by 
30June 2018. 

Number of sector 
departments’ public 
awareness 
campaigns attended 
by 30 June 2018. 

Disaster 
Relief 
Awareness 

 

 

1 

 

 

1 
1 

 

 

1 

 

Achieved 

 

2.17  Fire 
services 

To ensure 
effective & 
efficient 
disaster 
managemen
t services in 
the district. 

Ensure   
coordination of fire 
services throughout 
the District. 

Conduct 4 quarterly 
fire safety 
awareness 
campaigns across 
5 local 
municipalities in the 
district by 30 June 
2018. 

Number of quarterly 
fire safety awareness 
campaigns conducted 
across 5 local 
municipalities in the 
district by 30 June 
2018. 

Fire Safety 
awareness 
Campaigns. 

 

 

4 

 

 

6 4 
 

 

 

7 

 

 

Achieved 

More Fire 

Campaigns 

executed to 

minimize fire 

incidents in our 

district. 
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Disasters and major incidents that occurred during the year 
 

A. Storms in Masilonyana. 

The purpose of this report is to appraise all stakeholders about the events in the wake of Torrential Storms that swept 
across the Municipality. 

Torrential Storms swept across the municipality on the evening of Wednesday, 31
st

 January 2018 between 22:00 and 
24:00 
The affected towns were: 

1. Theunissen/Masilo,  
2. Brandfort/Majwemasweu and  
3. Wniburg/Makeleketla. 

  The most affected towns were: Theunissen/Masilo and Brandfort/Majwemasweu 

                  The impact per town is as follows: 

                   Winburg/Makeleketla:  

 
 Gravel roads were washed out and Roofs were blown away 

 

                   Brandfort/Majwemaseu: 

 
 Shacks were destroyed in Slovo Park and Roofs were blown 
 Trees uprooted and Pump stations B and C roof tops were blown away. 
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The folloeing damages were noted in Theunissen MASILONYANA 

 Trees were uprooted and Electrical poles broken, 
 Most overhead powerlines were damaged and Power supply was cut in Masilo and Theunissen, 
  Water supply to Masilo was cut and Water Pump Stations A, B and C supplying water to Brandfort had their roofs 

blown away thus affecting supply.  
 

The purpose of this exercise was to conduct preliminary assessment of damages and offer assistance in most severe cases 

 A team of officials was assembled by the Municipal Manager;  
 These were divided into 7 teams. Per sections of Masilo ( Tshepong, Lusaka, Basil Reid, Phahameng, Masilo, Joel Park 

and Theunissen)   
 

b. Train Incident. 

The train was derailed and seven of the twelve carriages caught fire resulting in 21 People being killed and 254 people injured. The 
cause of the fire was the overhead electrical wires which snapped during the collision, causing the fire. 
 
The first responders were local farmers and their workers who rushed to the collision site with firefighting equipment. The 
Moqhaka Local Municipality took charge of the incident as the train accident was considered to have occurred on their side of the 
border, and Matjhabeng Local municipality assisted with emergency equipment and personnel. 
 
The Matjhabeng Fire Brigade and emergency the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) from Welkom responded to the accident, and 
were joined at the scene by Moqhaka Fire Services and Emergency Medical Services as well as private emergency practitioners. The 
injured patients were transferred to Boitumelo Hospital in Kroonstad, while some were transferred to Bongani Regional Hospital 
in Welkom and Katleho District Hospital in Virginia. Some of the injured were discharged on the same day while others were 
admitted and treated overnight and discharged the following day.  

All medical costs, the transportation of the patients to their homes or destinations and other incidental cost were taken care of by 
the Shosholoza Meyl (Spoornet), who on arrival took charge of the scene, and undertook the responsibility of the cleaning and 
clearing up of the scene as well as the repair to the infrastructure that was damaged as a result of the accident 
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b. Highlights:  Diaster Management Services 

The following highlights were achieved during the financial year: 

Highlights Description 

Fire Awareness Campaigns  
The section succsfully held these campaigns with an aim of minimizing 
fire incidents in the whole district 

Disaster Relief awareness Campaigns 
These are mitigation strategies and contingency plans, evacuation and 
relief assistance and were implemented successfully in various towns 
within our District area. 

Advisory forum Meetings  
Joint advisory forum meetings were successfully held for the year 
under review with provincial Department dwaling specifically with 
Disaters. 

Disaster management Forum Meetings  Joint meeting were held with various district with an aim of sharing 
information and strategies in mitigating disaters in our Regions. 
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  The table below indicates the challenges faced during the financial year: 

 

 
BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY EMPLOYEES 

(T-grade) 

2016/17 2017/18 

Employees Posts Employees 
Vacancies (fulltime  

equivalents) 
Vacancies (as a % of  

total posts) 

Number % 

0 - 3 

 

2 2 0 0 

4 - 6 15 13 2 13.33% 

7 - 9 15 14 1 6.67% 

10 - 12 1 1 0 0 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 

Total  33 30 3 9.10 

Description Actions to address 

Fire Fighters 
Hiring adequate Fire Fighting Personnel to help fight fires withing our 
District 

 

 Employing more staff   
Fire Fighting Equipment For A disaster Management to execute its legislative mandate effectively 

the municipality needs to acquire 12 Fire Fighting Engines for the whole 
district. 

Existing Capital Budget  There should be an existing Capital Budget which will be utilized in case 
of Disasters. 

Response Vehicles Acquisition of A response vehicle during Disasters 
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Introduction to Local Economic Development (LED) 
  
Lejweleputswa District Municipality’s intentions regarding the vigorous and 
determined intentions is to mobilise local stakeholders, the youth and the adults, 
informal and formal business sector to work together towards creation of Job 
opportunities and improving the economy of our region. It is a fact that cannot be 
denied or ignored that, Local economic development (LED) is one of the most 
important ways of decreasing poverty. In order to achieve or make this possible key 
stakeholders in a Municipality area must come together, brainstorm and reach 
agreement and take decisions to make the economy grow and create income 
opportunities for all people, more especially the poor. Lejweleputswa District 
Municipality is intending to effectively work together with the other spheres of 
government such as National and Provincial to solicit necessary and sufficient funds, 
research and other support for local economic development.  
 
In terms of Section 88 of the Local Government: Structures Act, 1998, calls  
for co-operation between district and local municipalities that: 
 

 A district municipality and local municipalities within the area of that district 

municipality must co-operate with one another by assisting and supporting 

each other; 

 A district municipality on request by a local municipality within its area may 

provide financial, technical and administrative support services to that local 

municipality to the extent that that district has the capacity to provide those 

support services; 

 
The above –mentioned responsibilities are taken seriously by LDM Local Economic 
Development hence in the year under review the following plans were executed 
successfully in collaboration with local municipalities 

- Training of SMMES in our region  

- Solicit funding for Agricultural projects from Chamber of Businesses. 

- Ensure that Tourism Audit is done on all tourist attractions in the District with the 

help of Local municipalities with the purpose of sourcing funds and refurbish 

them. 

- Lejweleputswa district municipality provides facilitation in the form of a forum 

which is the locus for discussions concerning economic development collaboration 

and for coordinating actions through a programme of work for joint initiatives 

 
 Lejweleputswa District municipality is located in area which had mineral reserves. 
Currently, it is faced with a scourge of high rate of unemployed due to mines which 
stopped operations due to unavailability of gold deposits. However, there is a huge 
available land which could still be utilised in minimising poverty in our communities. 
Land which could be used to advance interest of our communities through Agricultural 
cooperatives and Farm together projects. 
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Local Economic Development 

Achievement for a fiscal year 2017/18                                            

 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ANALYSIS 

 

 

As shown in the Chart above. Local economic Development performed accordingly 
though they failed to achieve 100 % in the achievement of their Objectives. They 
achieved 81% percent is also impressive with non – achieved 19%. 

LED Performance means; 

a. Most of their planned objectives for the year were achieved. 
b. Providing training in Agriculture 
c. Facilitated development of  1 Cooperative 
d. Youth Development through training 
e. Tourism Audits executed successfully  
f. Flower Festival was supported in the Free state 
g. Farm together Campaigns held successfully 
h. Solicit Funding from Chambers of Businesses for Smmes in our region. 

 

  

75%

25%

LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OVERALL 
PERFORMANCE

Achieved Unachieved
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Key Performance Area 3:  Local Economic Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

3.1 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Expand and 

diversify 

sustainable 

agriculture 

production and 

food security 

 Improve 

institutional 

support and 

capacity building 

of Municipal 

Officers  

1 Institutional 

support and capacity 

building programme 

by 30 June 2018.  

Number of 

institutional capacity 

building 30 June 

2018.   

capacity 
building 

 

 

2 

 

 

2 

 
 
 
1 

 

 

1 

Achieved  

3.2 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Facilitate 
Economic 
Development 
and business 
support  

Convene a 
district  business 
development 
and investment  
event 

1 District Investment 
Fair 30 June 2018. 

Number of 
Investment Fair 
convened by 30 
June 2018. 

Investment 
Fair 

New 

 

1 

 

0 

Unachieved 

Non Cooperation 

from 

Municipalities in 

terms of 

identifying spatial 

land and 

packaging 

business 

incentives for 

investors  

Waiting for the 

approval of the 

date by the  FS 

Premier  

 

3.3 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Facilitate 
Economic 
Development 
and business 
support  

Strengthen 

agricultural 

knowledge and 

skills 

2 Entrepreneurial 

focused training and 

development by 30 

June 2018.   

Number of capacity 

entrepreneurial 

training and 

development by 30 

June 2018. 

Entrepreneu
rial training 
and 
developmen
t 

New 

  
 
2 
 
 
 
 

 

2 

 

Achieved  

3.4 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Facilitate 
Economic 
Development 
and business 
support  

Support 
Cooperative 
Enterprise 
Development 

2 Cooperative 
Enterprise 
Development by 
June 2018. 

Number of 
Cooperatives 
supported by 30 
June 2018. 

Cooperative 
Enterprise 
Developmen
t 

New 

 

 
2 

 

1 Unachieved 

Local 

Municipalities 

(LED Managers) 

did not cooperate 
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Key Performance Area 3:  Local Economic Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

on the 

identification of 

Cooperatives and  

were  also part of 

the Investment 

Fair preparatory 

meetings  and as a 

result could not 

identify 

Cooperatives 

SMMEs to be part 

of the Workshop 

3.5 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Facilitate 
Economic 
Development 
and business 
support  

Youth  
Development 
Support  

1 Youth Enterprise 
Development by 30 
June 2018. 

Number of Youth 
enterprise 
Development 
Projects by June 
2018. 

Youth 
enterprise 
Developmen
t 

 

New 

 

1 

 

1 Achieved 

 

3.6 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Facilitate 
Economic 
Development 
and business 
support  

Develop the 

LDM SDBIP 

Implementation 

Plan 

LED SDBIP 

Implementation Plan 

by 30 June 2018. 

Number of 

Developed LED 

SDBIP plan by 30 

June 2018. 

LED SDBIP 
Implementat
ion Plan 

 

New 

 1 
 
 
 
 

1 

 Achieved 

 

3.7 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Facilitate 
Economic 
Development 
and business 
support  

Strengthen  LED 

Stakeholder 

Collaboration  

2 LED  

Business Forum by 

30 June 2018. 

Number of LED 

Business Forum by 

30 June 2018. 

LED 
Business 
Forum 

2 

 

2 

 

2 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

 
Achieved 

 

3.8 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Facilitate 
Economic 
Development 
and business 
support  

SMME 

Development on 

BID 

1 SMME Workshop 

On BID by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of SMME 

Bid Workshop by 30 

June 2018. 

SMME Bid 
Workshop 

 

2 

 

1 
 
1 

 

1 Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 3:  Local Economic Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

3.9 Local 

Economic 

Development 

Facilitate 
Economic 
Development 
and business 
support  

LED Database 1 Database updated 
by 30 June 2018. 

Number of LDM LED 
Database updated 
by 30 June 2018. 
 

LDM LED 
Database 

 

New 

 

 
1 

 

1 Achieved 

 

3.10 Tourism 
Development 
and Support 

Support 
tourism 
development 
and growth 

Review District  
Tourism 
Strategy 

1 Tourism Strategy 
Reviewed by 30 
June 2018. 

Number of District 
Tourism strategy 
developed 30 June 
2018. 

Tourism 
Strategy 

 

New 

 

 
1 

 

0 Uachieved 

Tourism strategy 

Reviewed and not 

Developed as 

Planned 

3.11 Tourism 
Development 
and Support 

Support 

programme for 

tourism 

development 

and growth 

Enhance 

Government 

capacity for 

tourism 

development 

2 Tourism 

Awareness 

campaigns by 30 

June 2018. 

Number of tourism 

awareness 

campaigns 

undertaken 30 June 

2018. 

Tourism 
Awareness 
campaigns 

 

New 

 

2 

 

2 Achieved 

 

3.12 Tourism 
Development 
and Support 

Support 

programme for 

tourism 

development 

and growth 

Strengthen 

District tourism 

Forum 

4 Districts tourism 

Forum by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of District 

Tourism Forum 

Meetings convened 

by 30 June 2018. 

Districts 
tourism 
Forum 

 

New 

 

4 

 

4 Achieved 

 

3.13 Tourism 
Development 
and Support 

Support 

programme for 

tourism 

development 

and growth 

Improve tourism 

marketing  

Audit 8 tourism 

attractions by 30 

June 2018. 

Number of tourism 

attractions audited 

by 30 June 2018. 

Audit of 
tourism 
attraction  

 

New 

 
 
 
 
 
8 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

9 

 

 

Achieved 

Because of more 

potential tourists 

attractions in 1 

local municipal 

area 

3.14 Tourism 
Development 
and Support 

Support 

programme for 

tourism 

development 

and growth 

Improve tourism 

marketing  

1 Phakisa Flower 
Tourism Festival 
event by 30 June 
2018. 

Number of Phakisa 
Tourism Events 
supported by 30 
June 2018. 

Phakisa 
Flower 
Tourism 
Events 

New 

 

1 

 

1 Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 3:  Local Economic Development 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

3.15 Tourism 
Development 
and Support 

Support 

programme for 

tourism 

development 

and growth 

Improve tourism 

marketing  

1 Tourism 
Accommodation 
Brochures by 30 
June 2018. 

Number of Tourism 
Accommodation 
Brochures by 30 
June 2018. 

Tourism 
Accommoda
tion 
Brochures 

New 

 

 
1 

 

 

 

 

0 
Unachieved 

Service providers 

quoted way above 

the budgeted 

amount and so 

they (brochures) 

could not be 

procured tre-

advertisement 

Quoted price 

exceeded the 

Budgeted amount. 

3.16 Tourism 
Development 
and Support 

Support 

programme for 

tourism 

development 

and growth 

Improve tourism 

marketing  

1 Tourism Promotion 
by 30 June 2018. 

Number of Durban 
Indaba Tourism 
Show Products 
assisted by 30 June 
2018. 

Durban 
Indaba 
Tourism 
Show 

New 

 

1 
 

 

1 

 

Achieved 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

120 

 

HIGHLIGHTS: TOURISM 

The following were achieved during the financial year 

 

HIGHLIGHTS DESCRIPTION 

Auditing of Tourist 
Attractions  

A total of 8 Tourist Attractions were audited in Nala, Tswelopele and Masilonyana Local Municipalities.  
 
Desired Objective – Turn LDM into a desired destination In order for us to fully carry our mandate of promoting 
Tourism, our Tourist attractions need to be marketable and be able to enhance visitor’s experience. 
 
Challenge: Funding is needed to refurbish and beautify our attractions. This will in turn increase visitors experience 
and length of stay.             

  

Madeira, FS Flower 
Festival in Parys 

The Free State Madeira Flower Festival, took place from November 24 -25 in Parys, and included  500 dancers from the 
5 District Municipalities, five massive float and giant flowers puppets performing around a spectacular flower precinct 
in Disney-like flower story. It was the second time a fully-fledged, massive flower parade took to the streets of Parys. 

The event is a joint venture between the governments of the Free State and Madeira, who host the world’s largest 
flower festival and is meant to have joint trade and tourism benefits. 

Our District transported 100 dancers from different towns within the District. Not only the children are the 
beneficiaries to this international event but also SMMEs from the Matjhabeng Municipality benefited as taxis and buses 
ferried the children to Parys. Also the clothing for the dancers are made by local designers that are identified by the 
Province. 

Challenge: More funding needed in order for the Unit to be able to transport children from other towns and not only 
Welkom.     
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TOURISM 
AWARENESS 
CAMPAIGN 

 An awareness campaign was held at Kgololesego Secondary School, a school that was adopted by our Executive 
Mayor. The campaign was attended by Councilors Mabitle and Sehloho, the Director of LED, Planning & Tourism, 
ntate Makhetha, the Manager and officials responsible for Tourism from LDM, DESTEA. FSGLTA, the career 
development Co-Coordinator from the Department of Education in Lejweleputswa District, educators, members of the 
Lejweleputswa Tourism Forum, and learners who were the main guests at the event.  
Holding the event at Tokologo Local Municipality was informed by our observation during the National Tourism 
Career Expo that was held in our Province during 2015,2016 and 2017, where we observed that only schools from 
Matjhabeng were attending and none from the other local municipalities 
 
Challenge: More support from the politicians within the respective local municipality 

AFRICA TRAVELL 
INDABA 

Africa’s Travel Indaba is one of the largest tourism marketing events on the African calendar and one of the top three 
‘must visit’ events of its kind on the global calendar. 

It showcases the widest variety of Southern Africa's best tourism products and attracts international buyers and media 
from across the world. Africa’s Travel Indaba is owned by South African Tourism and organised by Synergy Business 
Events (Pty) Ltd. 

Africa’s Travel Indaba has won the awards for Africa’s best travel and tourism show. This award was presented by the 
Association of World Travel Awards. 

Venue 

 Inkosi Albert Luthuli Convention Centre (Durban ICC) 

 Durban Exhibition Centre (DEC) 

 KwaZulu-Natal 

 South Africa 

As Free State, we attend this international event under the umbrella of Free State Gambling , Liquor & Tourism 
Authority. 
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On rotational basis, District Municipalities are requested to supply corporate clothing for the exhibitors. For 2017-2018 
Financial year, Lejweleputswa District Municipality supplied beautiful blue shirts that were worn on the second day of 
event.   
Two of our MMCs, Councilor Sehloho and Councilor Mabitle attended the event on behalf of the LDM. 
 
Challenge:   More funding needed in order for our Municipality to be able to transport and accommodate Exhibitors 
and officials of the Tourism Unit to this international event.  

  

 

1) SUMMARY: LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

 
           Local economic Development 
 

- To facilitate Economic Development and Business Support for Cooperatives and Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises in 

the District   

- To Expand and Diversify Sustainable Agricultural Production and Food Security through capacitating Agricultural Entities 

on the Requires Skills  

- To support Free State Youth Chamber Business Enterprise to realize it Strategic Goals on Youth Empowerment Projects 

- Strengthen Economic Development Stakeholder Engagements and Collaborations on Economic Development through the 

convening of quarterly LDM District Business LED  Forum 
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2) HIGHLIGHTS : LED SUB-DIRECTORATE  

The following highlights were achieved during this financial year: 

 

Highlights Challenges 

The highlights of the Departments are the imparting skills and 

training for Agricultural Products (Cooperatives and SMMES) in 

partnership with the National Department of Agriculture, Forestry 

and Fisheries (DAFF) on a programme called Farm Together 

Project at Wesselsbron at Nala Local Municipality. 

 

Lack of resource (funding) to make meaningful intervention and 

alleviate poverty, facilitate the sustainability’s of Enterprises to grow 

and create employment opportunities for our communities in the 

District. 

 

The Second highlight is the Convening of Workshops as part of 

capacity building intervention for our Cooperatives and SMMEs 

capaciting them on the Financial Management, Business 

Management, Markets, and Costing Business Skills for their 

Enterprises. 

 

Lack of coordinated PPP Engagements and Collaboration to maximise 

impact on the ground on Economic Development Initiatives in the 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality   

Also the funding our Youth Chamber of Business on their Youth 

Intervention Programmes and Workshops   
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LED AND TOURISM EMPLOYEES 
 

(T-grade) 

2016/17 2017/18 

Employees Posts Employees 
Vacancies (fulltime  

equivalents) 
Vacancies (as a % of  

total posts) 

Number % 

0 - 3 

 

3 3 0 0 

4 - 6 5 5 0 0 

7 - 9 2 2 0 0 

10 - 12 0 0 0 0 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 

Total  10 10 0 0 
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3) MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL SERVICES 

         Introduction to Financial Services 

Financial Services 2017/18 priorities: 

A municipality’s KPA financial Viability which deals with all Finance related 
matters as stipulated in the MFMA section 56 of 2003. We continued with a 
sterling performance in the fiscal period under review by reducing matters 
of emphasis from 1 matter in the year 2016/17 and we hope in the year under 
review we will be clean in terms municipal financial administration. Our 
Supply chain unit worked tirelessly and ascertained that Fruitless, Wasteful 
and Unauthorized expenditure non – existent. Treasury played a pivotal role 
in ensuring that our Supply chain Unit is trained and is equipped with new 
Scm regulations. 

 Cash backed credible budget presented to Council for approval by end of 
May 

 Timeous submission of all required reports by prescribed due date 
 Timeous submission of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

(GRAP) compliant annual financial statements by 31 August 
 Submission of draft financial statements to the internal audit unit and the 

Audit Committee for review by 25 August 
 Implementation of the Credit Control and Debt Management Policy to 

ensure debt is recovered 
 Revision of the Supply Chain Management (SCM) Policy and 

implementation thereof 
 Review of all current finance policies 
 Compilation of new policies not yet in place and presented to Council 

for approval 
 Review of electronic SCM and contract management system to 

eliminate irregular expenditure as identified by the Auditor-
General and ensure all relevant SCM procedures are followed. This 
is the responsibility of all personnel involved in the procurement of 
goods and services, starting with the user department 

 Workshops by SCM to familiarise all involved of the correct 
processes and procedures to follow to ensure adherence to the 
SCM Policy and SCM Regulations 

 Creditors paid within 30 days after receipt of invoice/statements as 
required by the MFMA 

 Optimal interest generated on investments 
 Salary payments by the 25th of each month 
 Adequate asset management 
 Safeguarding of assets by all personnel 
 Ensure GRAP compliant fixed asset register are maintained 
 Ensure compliance to GRAP requirements/standards with regards to 

assets 
 Annual asset count to ensure all assets is physically verified annually 
 Ensuring the safeguarding of inventory/stock items 
 Ensure minimum stock levels are maintained for service delivery 
 Support services rendered to the other departments 
 Workshops/training provided to other departments by request 
 Implementation of mSCOA 
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Achievement for a fiscal year 2017/18 

MUNICPAL FINANCIAL SERVICES ANALYSIS 

 

As shown by the Chart above. It is evident that Municipal financial services worked 
tirelessly in execution of its objectives for 2017/18 Fiscal period. Hence it registered 
100% achievement of its objectives.  

Good performance in Municipal Financial Services means; 

a. All legislated finance reporting regulations were complied with 
b. Finance policies reviewed to comply with new regulations 
c. Successful revenue enhancement through investment 
d. Debt Collection plan 
e. Cash Backed Budget 
f. Fiance Portfolio Committee executed as Planned. 

 

 

 

 

100%

0%

MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL SERVICE OVERALL 
PERFORMANCE

Achieved Unachieved
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Key Performance Area: 4 Municipal Financial Viability 

ID 

 
 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

4.1 Obtain 

clean audit 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

4 Post Audit Action 

Plan matters for 

2016/17 relating to 

finance addressed by 

30 June 2018. 

Post Audit Action Plan 

matters for 2016/17 

relating to finance 

addressed by 30 June 

2018. 

Clean 

audit 

 

 

      1 

 

 

1 

 

4 4 
Achieved 

 

4.2 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

100% cash-backed 

approved budget for 

2017/18 financial year.  

100% cash-backed 

approved budget for 

2017/18 financial year 

Funded 

Annual 

Budget  

 

 

New 

 

1 1 
Achieved  

4.3 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

4 Budget related 

policies reviewed, 

updated and approved 

by Council by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of Budget related 

policies reviewed, updated 

and approved by Council 

by 30 June 2018. 

Funded 

Annual 

Budget  

 

 

      4 

     

 

 

5 

 

 

4 

 

5 

 

Achieved 
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Key Performance Area: 4 Municipal Financial Viability 

ID 

 
 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

4.4 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

4 quarterly reviews 

and updating of 

financial management 

related internal 

controls based on the 

quarterly Internal Audit 

reports by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of quarterly 

reviews and updating of 

financial management 

related internal controls 

based on the quarterly 

Internal Audit reports by 30 

June 2018. 

Internal 

Controls 

  

 

  New 

  

 

4 

 

4 

 

Achieved 
 

4.5 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

Suppliers and service 

providers paid within 

30 days of receipt of 

valid invoice, with no 

disputed delivery of 

goods / services 

throughout 2017/18.  

Number of days it takes to 

pay suppliers and service 

providers after receipt of 

valid invoice, with no 

disputed delivery of goods 

/ services throughout 

2017/18. 

Internal 

Controls 
 

 

4 

 

 

4 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

4 

 

Achieved 

 

4.6 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

Prepare 4 reports on  

payment vouchers and 

accompanying 

supporting documents 

of filed, registered and 

kept in safe custody 

Quarterly  throughout 

2017/18 financial 

years. 

Number of reports on 

payment vouchers and 

accompanying supporting 

documents of filed, 

registered and kept in safe 

custody Quarterly 

throughout 2017/18 

financial year. 

Internal 

Controls 
 

 

New 

  

4 

 

4 

 

Achieved  

 

4.7 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

Prepare 4 reports on 

contracted services 

creditors on the 

system reconciled to 

Number of reports on 

contracted services 

creditors on the system 

reconciled to supporting 

Internal 

Controls 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Achieved 
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Key Performance Area: 4 Municipal Financial Viability 

ID 

 
 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

supporting 

documentation 

Quarterly throughout 

2017/18 financial 

years. 

documentation quarterly 

throughout 2017/18 

financial years. 

 

New 

 

4 

 

4 

 

4.8 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

2 biannual assets 

verification performed 

and asset registers 

updated with all assets 

movements, and 

report any damaged / 

missing items by 30 

June 2018. 

Number of biannual assets 

verification performed and 

asset registers updated 

with all assets movements, 

and report any damaged / 

missing items by 30 June 

2018. 

Internal 

Controls 

 

 

New 

  

 

2 

 

2 

 

Achieved 

 

4.9 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

Review and sign-off 

one (1) Audit File and 

Audit File schedule 

respectively for 

2016/17 financial year 

that is compliant with 

Annexure A of MFMA 

Circular 50 

Number of reviewed and 

signed-off audit file 

schedule and the actual 

Audit file for 2016/17 

financial year that is 

compliant with Annexure A 

of MFMA Circular 50  

Internal 

Controls 

 

 

 

New 

  

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

Achieved 

 

4.10 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

2017/18 signed-off 

Annual Financial 

Statements prepared 

in accordance with the 

South African 

Standards of Generally 

Auditor-General’s Report 

on the 2016/17 Annual 

Financial Statements 

(AFS) with no paragraph 

relating to AFS not being 

compiled in accordance 

Internal 

Controls 
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Key Performance Area: 4 Municipal Financial Viability 

ID 

 
 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

Recognized 

Accounting Practices 

(GRAP) and section 

122 of MFMA by 31 

August 2018. 

with GRAP and section 

122 of MFMA. 

New 1 1 

 

 

 

Achieved 

4.11 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

Nil / Zero amount of 

unauthorized, irregular 

and fruitless & 

wasteful expenditure 

incurred due to non-

compliance to the 

municipality’s Supply 

Chain Management 

Policy, Supply Chain 

Management 

Regulations, 2005 and 

the MFMA by 30 June 

2018. 

Amount of unauthorized, 

irregular and fruitless & 

wasteful expenditure 

incurred due to non-

compliance to the 

municipality’s Supply 

Chain Management Policy, 

Supply Chain 

Management Regulations, 

2005 and the MFMA by 30 

June 2018.  

Internal 

Controls 

 

 

 

 

  New 

  

 

 

 

4 

 

 

4 

Achieved 

 

4.12 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

 

12 signed-off monthly 

budget statement 

reports (Section 71 of 

MFMA), 4 quarterly 

financial reports  

A)Number of signed-off 

monthly budget statement 

reports (Section 71 of 

MFMA), quarterly financial 

reports 

Internal 

Controls 

 

 

 

   14 

  

 

 

14 

 

 

 

12 

 

12 

Achieved 
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Key Performance Area: 4 Municipal Financial Viability 

ID 

 
 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

4.12    (Section 52 (d) of the 

MFAMA) for 2017/18 

produced and 

submitted to the 

Executive Mayor by 30 

June 2018. 

B) (Section 52 (d) of the 

MFAMA), for 2017/18 

produced and submitted to 

the Executive by 30 June 

2018. 

 

 

      

 

  NEW 

 

4 4 
Achieved 

 

4.13 Implement 

financial 

control 

To ensure financial 

management practices 

that enhances viability 

& compliance with the 

requirements of MFMA 

& other relevant 

legislation in order to 

achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 

monitor and report 

financial management 

activities in accordance 

with MFMA, its 

associated regulations 

and prescribed 

accounting norms and 

standards 

12 signed-off monthly 

bank reconciliation 

statements of all bank 

accounts by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of signed-off 

monthly bank reconciliation 

statement of all bank 

accounts by 30 June 2018.  

Internal 

Controls 

 

 

  New 

 

  

 

 

     12 

 

 

12 

Achieved 

 

4.14 Render 

effective 

and 

efficient 

ICT 

services  

To provide information 

through the available 

ICT platforms to the 

municipality and to 

improve the corporate 

image of the 

municipality 

Ensure that the 

municipality’s 

information is regularly 

updated on the 

municipality’s website 

and other digital 

communication 

platforms of the 

municipality. 

12 updates (i.e. 1 per 

month) of the 

municipality’s website 

performed by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of updates of the 

municipality’s website 

performed by 30 June 

2018. 

ICT 

Service  

    

 

     1 

 

 

1 

 

 

12 12 
Achieved 
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Highlights: Financial Services 

The following highlights were achieved during the financial year: 

Highlights Description 

Improved Human Capital The organogram was approved and Vacant positions in 
Finance were Filled 

Improvement of cash and financial position Increase in cash balances  
 
 
Challenges: Financial Services 

The table below indicates the challenges faced during the financial year: 

Challenge Actions to address 

Compilation of a credible cash backed budget 
The municipality largely depend on Grants and which to a 

certain extent is unable to meet the Municipal Needs. 

Limited own revenue sources 
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INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) SERVICES 

Ldm ICT function is currently serving 130 (ICT-related) users with computer and network services within the District 

Municipality. 

Our coverage area consists of Lejweleputswa District Head Office and Disaster Management centre. We are directly involved 

with the local municipalities in our region with regards to shared services offer and in fulfilling our constitutional mandat e. 

The ICT Unit actively serves as members on the following forums: 

 LDM district IT Forums 

 LDM ICT Steering Committee 

 

Highlights: ICT Services 

The following highlights were achieved during the financial year: 

Highlights Description 

Purchase of new IT hardware : Mscoa 
Server 

Municipality acquired server to enable LDM to be MScoa Compliant 

Employed IT Technicians  
IT managed to employ one personnel to beef up  IT services to the 

municipality 

mSCOA requirements successfully met 

Successfully uploaded the budget to be aligned with the requirements 
of National  

Treasury database 

All posts on organogram filled (ICT 
Section) 

Vacant positions were a challenge for effective service delivery. This 
has been 

addressed 
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K) Challenges: ICT Services 

The table below indicates the challenges faced during the financial year: 

Description Actions to address 

Infrastructure: IT Municipal IT infrastructure has reached its lifespan. Funds be made 
available for replacements. 

 

L) Service statistics – ICT Services 

The table below indicates the services rendered by the Unit: 

Details 2016/17 2017/18 

% of software licensed 130 130 

% of back-ups done 120 125 

% of viruses attended to 65 80 

% of network downtime 0.1 0.06 
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Employees: Financial Services 

The table below indicates the number of staff employed by the Unit: 

 

A. Financial Services 
 

(T-grade) 

2016/17 2017/18 

Employees Posts Employees 
Vacancies (fulltime  

equivalents) 
Vacancies (as a % of  

total posts) 

Number % 

0 – 3 

17 

3 2 1 33.33% 

4 – 6 8 6 2 25% 

7 – 9 8 7 1 12.5% 

10 – 12 0 0 0 0 

13 – 15 0 0 0 0 

16 – 18 0 0 0 0 

19 – 20 0 0 0 0 

Total  19 15 4 21.5% 
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INTRODUCTION: ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

The Municipal Manager must advise the political structures and office-bearers. Particular issues where the municipal manager must render 
advice are:  
 

 financial matters (eg financial considerations to proposed policies);  

 issues related to the internal administration, such as human resources matters;  

 policy matters; and  

 legal and technical matters;  

 

The administration and implementation of the municipality’s by-laws as well as the implementation of national and provincial legislation or 
assigned legislation is the responsibility of the municipal manager. When the council has passed a by-law, the Municipal Manager must ensure 
that:  

 any structures, processes or mechanisms, provided for in the by-law are established; and  

 the by-law is enforced through the sectoral functionaries of the municipality or, if necessary, the applicable courts of law 

The Municipal Manager must manage the communication between the political structures and office-bearers and the administration (section 
55(1)(j)). Instructions, queries and other communications from council, committees, the (executive) mayor or the speaker to the 
administration cannot bypass the municipal manager’ office because the municipal manager is accountable for the entire municipal 
administration      

     

    Highlights for 2017-18 

Municipal accounting officer reviewed municipal financial reports and other documents to ensure they are accurate.  She reviewed the 
books of account with the assistance of Chief Financial Officer that records of expenditures and revenue of a municipality is correct. She 
analyzed all other fiscal activities and certified that they comply with accounting and legal requirements. In the event a municipality 
encountered financial constraints she developed mitigation strategies to counter such adversity and table such plan to municipal Council for 
approval. 
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Budgetary Follow-Up 

Preparation of an annual cash backed budget for a municipality is the responsibility of 
the Accounting Officer and Chief Finance Office. The officer assisted in formulating and 
monitoring the budget of a municipality and provideed recommendations on budgetary 
allocation. The accounting officer also monitored expenditures, revenue and efficient use 
of Municipality’s scarce resources to ensure a municipality operate within budget. She 
also provided monthly and quarterly reports to Council on budgetary performance and 
may offer guidance on necessary adjustments to stay within budget in a given year. She 
has an in-depth knowledge of the financial weaknesses and strengths of a Municipality. 
Hence, through management meeting she would evaluate internal finance management 
systems, procedures and business risks and provides management with 
recommendations on how to improve the municipality's financial status. 

     5.1. GOOD GOVERNANCE: ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

Achievements for a fiscal year 2017/18 

GOOD GOVERNANCE: ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

 

As shown by the Chart above. It is evident that Municipal financial services worked 
tirelessly in execution of its objectives for 2017/18 Fiscal period. Hence it registered 
100% achievement of its objectives.  

Good performance in Good Governance: MM means; 

a. Ensured Successful implementation of all Council resolution 
b. Promoted Intergovernmental relations especially with Locals and Province 
c. Assissted In cash Backed budget. 
d. Managing the Municipality through management meetings which are held 

regularly  
e. Ensured Audit and Performance reports are tabled before Audit Committee 

and Council. 
f. Ensuring improved performance management system  
g. & Successful risk management sytem. 

96%

4%

GOOD GOVERNANCE: MM OVERALL 
PERFORMANCE

Achieved Unachieved
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance :Accounting Officer 

ID 

Municipa

l Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

5.1 District 
IDP 
Manager
s Forums 

To ensure 
development of 
legally compliant 
and credible 
IDPs in the 
district & local 
municipalities 
within the district  

Ensure that the 
municipality’s IDP is 
aligned with the IDPs 
of local municipalities 
within the district, and 
that all IDPs 
incorporate 
communities and 
stakeholders views 
and inputs and that 
they are prepared in 
accordance with the 
prescribed framework.  

3 District IDP 
Managers Forums 
Meetings held by 
30 June 2018. 

Number of District 
IDP Managers 
Forums Meetings 
held by 30 June 
2018. 
 

District 
IDP 
Managers 
Forums 

 
 
 
 
 
 
4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
4 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3 
Achieved  

5.2 IDP 
Steering 
committe
e  

To ensure 
development of 
legally compliant 
and credible 
IDPs in the 
district & local 
municipalities 
within the district  

Ensure that the 
municipality’s IDP is 
aligned with the IDPs 
of local municipalities 
within the district, and 
that all IDPs 
incorporate 
communities and 
stakeholders views 
and inputs and that 
they are prepared in 
accordance with the 
prescribed framework.  

4 IDP Steering 
committee 
Meetings held by 
30 June 2018. 

Number of IDP 
Steering committee 
Meetings held by 30 
June 2018. 

IDP 
Steering 
committee  

 
 
 
 
 
New 

 

4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4 

Achieved 

 

5.3 IDP Rep 
Forum  

To ensure 
development of 
legally compliant 
and credible 
IDPs in the 
district & local 
municipalities 
within the district  

Ensure that the 
municipality’s IDP is 
aligned with the IDPs 
of local municipalities 
within the district, and 
that all IDPs 
incorporate 
communities and 
stakeholders views 
and inputs and that 
they are prepared in 

2 IDP Rep Forum 
Meeting by 30 
June 2018 

Number of IDP Rep 
Forum Meeting by 
30 June 2018 

IDP Rep 
Forum  

 
 
 
 
 
 
New 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance :Accounting Officer 

ID 

Municipa

l Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

accordance with the 
prescribed framework.  

5.4 District 
IDP 
framewor
k plan. 

Ensure 
implementation 
of a District wide 
integrated  
planning 
process  

To review and 
approve a District IDP 
framework plan to 
inform process plans 
of all local 
municipalities. 

District IDP 
framework plan by 
30 June 2018. 

Number of 
framework plans 
reviewed by 30 June 
2018. 
 

District 
IDP 
framework 
plan. 

 
 
1 

 
 
1 

1 

 
 

1 

Achieved  

5.5 District 
IDP 
process 
plan. 

Ensure 
implementation 
of a District wide 
integrated  
planning 
process  

Review  and  approve 
a district IDP process 
plan   

1 District IDP 
process plan by 30 
June 2018. 

Number of process 
plans reviewed by 
30 June 2018. 

District 
IDP 
process 
plan. 

 
 
1 
 

 
 
1 

1 

 
 

1 

Achieved  

5.6 Local IDP 
process 
plans 

Ensure 
implementation 
of a district wide 
integrated  
planning 
process  

Coordinate the review 
and approval of local 
IDP process plans 

5 Local IDP 
process plans by 
30 June 2018. 

Number of local IDP 
process plans 
reviewed 30 June 
2018. 

Local IDP 
process 
plans 

 
 
5 

 
 
5 
 

5 

 
 

5 

Achieved  

5.7 Performa
nce 
Manage
ment  

To ensure Good 
Governance 
practices to 
ensure effective, 
functioning 
municipality  

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the 
municipality’s 
Performance 
Management System 
from planning to 
reporting, 

A. Submit 1 draft 
SDBIP for the 
2017/18 budget 
year and  
 
 
 
 
B. 5 drafts of the 
annual 
performance 
agreements for the 
same period to the 
Executive Mayor 
by 14 July 2018. 

A. Number of draft 
SDBIP for the 
2017/18 budget 
years and 
 
 
 
 
B. number of drafts 
of the annual 
performance 
agreements for the 
same period 
submitted to the 
Executive Mayor by 
14 July 2018.  

Performan
ce 
Managem
ent  

New  1 
 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        5 
 
     

1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 

Achieved 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Achieved 

 

5.8 Performa
nce 
Manage
ment  

To ensure Good 
Governance 
practices to 
ensure effective, 

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the 
municipality’s 
Performance 

5 Signed 
Performance 
Agreements & 
Plans for the 

Number of signed 
Performance 
Agreements & Plans 
for the senior 

Performan
ce 
Managem
ent  

 
 
New 

 

5 

 
5 
 

Achieved  
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance :Accounting Officer 

ID 

Municipa

l Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

functioning 
municipality  

Management System 
from planning to 
reporting, 

senior managers 
including the 
Municipal 
Manager for 
2017/18 financial 
years concluded 
by 31 July 2018.  

managers including 
the Municipal 
Manager for 
2017/18 financial 
year concluded by 
31 July 2018.  

5.9 Performa
nce 
Manage
ment  

To ensure Good 
Governance 
practices to 
ensure effective, 
functioning 
municipality  

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the 
municipality’s 
Performance 
Management System 
from planning to 
reporting, 

A. 4 quarterly 
performance 
assessment 
reports for 5 senior 
managers 
(including the 
Municipal 
Manager) 
concluded and 
signed-off not later 
than 30 days after 
the end of each 
quarter during 
2017/18 and  
 
B. 1 Annual 
performance 
report for 2016/17 
signed-off and 
submitted to the 
Auditor-General by 
31 August 2018. 

A. Number of 
quarterly 
performance 
assessment reports 
not later than 30 
days after the end of 
each quarter and 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Number of 
Annual Performance 
reports by 31 August 
2018 for 2016/17 

Performan
ce 
Managem
ent  

 
 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New 

 
 
4 

 
 
4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 

 
 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

Achieved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Achieved 

 

5.10 Performa
nce 
Manage
ment  

To ensure Good 
Governance 
practices to 
ensure effective, 
functioning 
municipality  

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the 
municipality’s 
Performance 
Management System 
from planning to 
reporting, 

Submit 1-signed-
off Mid-term 
budget and 
performance 
assessment report 
for 2017/18 to the 
Executive Mayor, 
Provincial & 
National 

Number of signed-
off mid-term budget 
and performance 
assessment report 
for 2017/18 
submitted to the 
Executive Mayor, 
Provincial & National 
Treasuries by 25 
January 2018. 

Performan
ce 
Managem
ent  

 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
1 

 
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance :Accounting Officer 

ID 

Municipa

l Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

Treasuries by 25 
January 2018. 

 
 
 

5.11 Performa
nce 
Manage
ment  

To ensure Good 
Governance 
practices to 
ensure effective, 
functioning 
municipality  

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the 
municipality’s 
Performance 
Management System 
from planning to 
reporting, 

Submit 1 audited 
annual report for 
2016/17 to 
Provincial 
Treasury, CoGTA 
and National 
Treasury by 
31January 2018. 

Number of audited 
annual report for 
2016/17 to 
submitted to 
Provincial Treasury, 
CoGTA and National 
Treasury by the end 
of 31January 2018. 

Performan
ce 
Managem
ent  

1 

 
 
 
1 

1 

 
 
 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
Achieved 

 

5.12 Monitorin
g and 
evaluatio
n   

Ensure 
implementation 
of a single 
window of 
coordination in 
the district. 

Conduct M & E site 
visits per year. 

Conduct 2 M & E 
site visits per year 
by30 June 2018. 

Number of 
monitoring and 
evaluation site visits 
conducted per year 
by30 June 2018. 

Monitoring 
and 
evaluation   

 
 
 
4 

 
 
 
4 

2 

 
 

2 

 
 
Achieved 

 

5.13 IGR To promote and 
facilitate 
Intergovernment
al Relations 
amongst 
stakeholders in 
the district. 

Facilitate compliance 
with the principles of 
co-operative 
government and 
intergovernmental 
relations within the 
district. 

2 Technical IGR 
meetings held by 
30 Jun 2018.  

Number of Technical 
IGR meetings held 
by 30 June 2018.  

IGR  
 
 
4 

 
 
 
2 

2 

 
 
 

4 
 
 

 
 
 
Achieved 

More meetings 

were called 

byAccounting 

Officer regarding 

financial issues 

facing 

municipalities. 

5.14 IGR To promote and 
facilitate 
Intergovernment
al Relations 
amongst 
stakeholders in 
the district. 

Facilitate compliance 
with the principles of 
co-operative 
government and 
intergovernmental 
relations within the 
district. 

2 Political IGR 
meetings held by 
30 Jun 2018.  

Number of political 
district coordinating 
forum meetings 
held. 

IGR  
 
 
 
4 

 
 
 
 
3 
 

2 

 
 
 
 

1 

 

Unachieved 

Meeting cancelled 

more than twice 

due to emergency 

meetings in the 

province that 

needed MM’s and 

Mayors ugerntly. 

5.15 Internal 
Audit  

To ensure 
oversight over 
the affairs of the 
municipality 

Provide reasonable 
assurance as to the 
effectiveness of 
internal controls of the 

4 quarterly Internal 
Audit reports on 
the performance 
assessment of the 

Number of quarterly 
Internal Audit 
reports on the 
performance 

Internal 
Audit  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance :Accounting Officer 

ID 

Municipa

l Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

municipality through 
Internal Audit service  

effectiveness of 
the controls within 
the municipality 
submitted to the 
Audit –Committee 
by 30 June 2018.  

assessment of the 
effectiveness of the 
controls within the 
municipality 
submitted to the 
Audit –Committee 
by 30 June 2018. 

4 4 4 4 

5.16 Internal 
Audit 

To ensure 
oversight over 
the affairs of the 
municipality 

Submit the quarterly 
internally audited 
performance reports 
and the annual report 
to the audit Committee 
& MPAC 

A. 4 Quarterly 
performance 
reports and  
 
 
 
 
B. a draft annual 
report for 2017/18 
internally audited 
and submitted to 
the Audit 
Committee & 
MPAC by 30 June 
2018. 

A. Number of 
quarterly 
performance report 
internally audited  
 
 
 
B. and annual report 
submitted to the 
Audit Committee & 
MPAC by 30 June 
2018. 

Internal 
Audit  

 
 
 
New 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New 

 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 

 
 
 

4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

 

Achieved 

 

 

 

Achieved 

 

5.17 Risk 
Manage
ment  

To build a risk 
conscious 
culture within the 
organisation. 

Reduction of high risk 
levels to tolerable 
levels by performing 
regular risk 
assessment, updating 
risk registers and 
following up on 
implementation of risk 
treatment plans by 
departments  

4 quarterly risk 
assessment 
performed by 30 
June 2018 and 
risk register and 
risk mitigation 
plans 
subsequently 
updated. 

Number of quarterly 
risk assessment 
performed by 30 
June 2018 and risk 
register and risk 
mitigation plans 
subsequently 
updated. 

Risk 
Managem
ent  

 
 
 
 
 

4 

 
 
 
 
 
1 

4 

 
 
 
 

4 

 

 

Achieved 

 

5.18 Internal 
audit 

Facilitate 
achievement of 
a clean audit of 
the municipality 
and its entity 

Conduct quarterly 
internal audits to 
ensure improvement 
of service delivery. 

4 quarterly Internal 
Audit Reports and 
related 
Management 
Action Plans with 
specific focus on 
Risk Management, 
Internal Controls, 

Number of quarterly 
Internal Audit 
Reports and related 
Management Action 
Plans with specific 
focus on Risk 
Management, 
Internal Controls, 

Internal 
audit 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New 

 

 
 
4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4 
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance :Accounting Officer 

ID 

Municipa

l Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action 
and Reasons for 

Over/Under 
Achievement 

and Performance 
Management by 
30 June 2018. 

and Performance 
Management by 30 
June 2018. 

 
 
 

Achieved 

5.19 Internal 
audit 

Improve 
administrative 
and financial 
capability of the 
municipality. 

Establish and 
implement good 
governance practices 
in line with Treasury 
Regulations to ensure 
proper risk 
management, 
adequate internal 
controls for improved 
financial management, 
and improved overall 
organisational 
performance. 

 Post Audit Action 
Plan matters for 
2016/17 relating to 
leadership, 
predetermined 
objectives and 
other matters 
addressed by 30 
June 2018. 

 Post Audit Action 
Plan matters for 
2016/17 relating to 
leadership, 
predetermined 
objectives and other 
matters addressed 
by 30 June 2018. 

  
New 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

Achieved  

5.20 Municipal 
signage 
and 
banners 

Ensure effective 

branding of LDM 

activities 

Procure signage and 

banners for a 

municipality 

Municipal signage 

and banners 

procured by 30 

June 2018. 

Number of municipal 

signage and 

banners procured by 

30 June 2018. 

Municipal 
signage 
and 
banners 

 
 

2 

 
3 1 

 
 

1 

 

Achieved 

 

5.21   Ensure effective 
branding of LDM 
and 
communication 
with all its 
stakeholders 

Reflect quarterly 
Communication of 
Achievements of the 
Municipality through 
newsletters , print or 
electronic Data 

Advertise in 
various media 
sources by 30 
June 2018. 

Number of Adverts 
in the Media by 30 
June 2018. 

Adverts in 
the Media 

 
 

10 

 
22 2 

 
 
 

7 

 

Achieved 

As a result of 

special  Council  

advertised in 

newspapers 
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The following highlights were achieved during the financial year: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Highlights Description 

Performance “ SMART” principles 
Succesful implementation of performance “ SMART” principle with the 

help of Audit Committee Member. 

 Section 57 Mangers vacant posts The Municipality has filled Vacant posts of All Executive   Directors. 

 Support to Local Municipalities 
District Municipality has offered assistance to (A) Masilonyana:        
Paving Roads and (B) Tswelopele with Water Losses 

 

Compliance with Acts and Regulations 

The municipality has Complied with most Legislated requirements. All 
issues of Compliance are seriously taken into considerations i.e Back to 
basics reporting, Act regulating section 57 managers’appointment and 
Budgetary requirements. 
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  Challenges: Accounting Officer  

   The table below indicates the challenges faced during the financial year: 

Description Actions to address 

Funds Acqusition of Funds 
Municipality needs ample resources to execute its legislative Mandate. 
Currently, municipal focus is more internal than external.  

Reporting and 
Accountability Executive Directors’s reports are scrutinised and used by AO for reporting to 

Council and other stakeholders, untimely submission of reports leads to poor 
quality of reporting.  Report to be submitted on time. 

 

Muncipal Entity The municipal Entity functions should be aimed at the development of parent 

municipality and ensure that parent municipality‘s mandate is delivered. Disconection 

of ME creates poor management and mismanagement of scarce resourcea . 
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EMPLOYEES S ACCOUNTING OFFICE

 
 

(T-grade) 

2016/17 2017/18 

  

Employee
s Posts Employees 

Vacancies (fulltime  
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of  
total posts) 

Number % 

0 - 3 

 

5 4 1 20% 

4 - 6 6 5 1 16.67% 

7 - 9 4 4 0 0 

10 - 12 0 0 0 0 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 

Total  15 13 2 13.33 
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 INTRODUCTION TO SPEAKER’S OFFICE 

The functions of the Speaker are set out in Section 37 of the Municipal Structures Act 

as follows: 

 presides at meetings of the Council; 
 performs the duties and exercises the powers delegated to the speaker by 

the Council 
 must ensure that the council meets at least quarterly; 

 must maintain order during meetings; 
 must ensure compliance in the council and council committees with the 

Code of Conduct for Councillors as set out in Schedule 1 of the Municipal 
Systems Act ; and 

 must ensure that council meetings are conducted in accordance with the 

rules and orders of the council. 

In addition to the statutory functions listed above, in the Ldm, the Speaker has 
been assigned further responsibilities and duties which are articulated in the 
Delegation Policy. A summary of these are listed hereunder: 

 encouraging participation of communities and community organisations 

in the decision making process of the municipality 
 developing mechanisms to ensure and monitor participation of 

communities in the decision making process; 

 ensuring that communities and community organizations are educated on 

their rights and responsibilities to participate and give input to the 

municipality's policy development processes as well as planning and 

budget processes; 

 ensuring that the Standing Rules of Council are developed and regularly 

updated, and in this regard is delegated the authority to establish the 

Rules Committee and to ensure the functioning of the committee; 
 in consultation with the Executive Mayor and the Whip, developing a 

schedule of meetings for the Council and Committees of Council in line 
with Rule 12 of the Standing Rules; 

 ensure that Council and Standing Committees observe the calendar and 

meet on the dates allocated in the schedule of meetings; 
 receiving and considering apologies and leaves of absence from 

Councillors in relation to meetings that Councillors are required to attend 
in terms of item 3 of Schedule 1 of the Municipal Systems Act . 
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GOOD GOVERNANCE: OFFICE OF THE SPEAKER ANALYSIS 

 

 

As shown by the Chart above. It is evident that Office of the Speakers’ Offcie worked 
tirelessly in execution of its objectives for 2017/18 Fiscal period. Hence it registered 
100% achievement of its objectives.  

Good performance in Good Governance: Office of the Speaker means; 

 
a. Ward Committee competition held successfully 
b. District Speaker’s forum held as planned 
c. Outreach Programmes were held as as expected. 
d. Councillors’ Training. Municipal Councillors were offered Taining to 

execute their own responsibilities as planned. 
 
 
The execution of    Office of the Speaker in terms of their objectives for the year 
under review was excellent. There is a great improvement  as all legislative 
requirements were planned and executed  according to plan tht includes Idp and 
Annual report public participation in various municipality was  a success. 
 
 
 

100%

0%

OFFICE OF THE SPEAKER'S 
OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Achieved
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance : Speaker’s Office 

ID 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action and 
Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

5.22 Men’s 

Forum  

To strengthen a 

meaningful 

community 

participation and 

interaction 

program. 

Develop and implement 

annual community 

participation and 

interaction program aimed 

at interacting with the 

community regarding 

various matters of local 

governance including 

public awareness 

campaigns, civic 

education about various 

programs that are initiated 

at other spheres of 

government. 

4 men’s forum 

sessions 

convened by 30 

June 2018. 

Number of men’s 

forum sessions 

convened by 30 

June 2018. 

Men’s 

Forum  

 

20 

 

 

 

 

22 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

 

4 
Achieved 

 

5.23 Ward 

competitio

ns 

To strengthen a 

meaningful 

community 

participation and 

interaction 

program. 

Reward best performing 

ward committees in the 

district 

Convene ward 

committee award 

by 30 June 2018. 

Number of ward 

awards convened by 

30 June 2018. 

Ward 

competitio

ns 

 

3 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 
Achieved 

 

5.24 Councilor 

training 

programm

e  

To upgrade the 

skills of councilors 

Enroll LDM councillors 

with accredited institutions 

of higher learning for short 

courses to improve their 

skills.  

Enroll 2 LDM 

councillors with 

accredited 

institutions of 

higher learning for 

a short course by 

30 June 2018.  

Number of LDM 

councillors enrolled 

with accredited 

institutions of higher 

learning for short 

courses by 30 June 

2018.  

Councilor 

training 

programm

e  

 

2 

 

 

2 

 

2 

 

 

3 Achieved 

Because of the need 

for skills the 

municipality decided to 

train more Councilors  
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance : Speaker’s Office 

ID 

Municipal 

Focus 

Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI 

Unit of 

Measurement 

Project 

Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 

2017/18 
Achieved 

Comments 
by Internal 

Audit 

Remedial  Action and 
Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

5.25 Outreach 

programs 

Coordinate 

continuous 

registration of new 

born babies and  

all citizens  from 

16 years upwards  

Convene outreach 

programmes 

In 5 local municipality. 

Outreach 

programs by 30 

June 2018. 

Number of outreach 

programme 

coordinated by 30 

June 2018. 

 

Outreach 

programs 

 

10 

 

 

0 

 

 

2 

 

 

2 
Achieved 

 

5.26 Public  

Participati

on  

 

Provide a platform 

for the promotion 

of stakeholder 

participation 

Convene three public 

participation meetings. 

3 Public 

Participation 

meetings by 30 

June 2018. 

 

Number of Public 

participation 

meetings convened 

by 30 June 2018. 

Public  

Participati

on  

 

 

 

3 

 

 

6 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

3 

 

Achieved 
 

5.27 Mpac 

Meetings 

Provide a platform 

for the promotion 

of stakeholder 

participation 

Convene 5 Mpac Meetings 

per Local Municipality  

5 Mpac Meetings 

convened by 30 

June 2018 

Number of Mpac 

Meetings Convened 

by 30 June 2018. 

Mpac 

meetings  

 

New 

 

5 

 

6 Achieved 

Due to matters which 

were referred to 

MPAC for re-

evaluation 

5.28 Speaker 

Forums  

Provide platform of 

participation by all 

Speakers in the 

District. 

Convene 4 Speakers 

forum a year 

4 Speakers 

Forums Convened 

by 30 June 2018 

Number of Speakers 

Forums Convened 

by 30 June 2018 

Speakers 

Forums 
 

New 

  

 

4 

 

 

5 

Achieved 
Due to urgent matters 

for discussion 

 
 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

151 

 

 HIGHLIGHTS: SPEAKER’S OFFICE 

 

                B. CHALLENGES: SPEAKER’S OFFICE 

Description Actions to Address 

A. Inadequate resources to execute Speakers 

programmes 

A. Resources be made available for speakers’ programmes 

No Highlights Description 

1. Men’s Forum  Men’s forums were successfully held throughout five locals in the District 

2. Public participation IDP & ANNUAL REPORT IDP and ANNUAL report were successfully presented to local municipalities. 

3. Outreach programmes Communities were assisted with Identity Documents 
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   EMPLOYEES SPEAKER’S OFFICE 

EMPLOYEES: SPEAKER’S OFFICE 

JOB 
LEVE

L 

30-Jun-18 

Employees- Male Employees- Female Number of 
Employees 

Approved Posts Variance Variance % 

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2 
– 
3 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

4 
– 
6 

1 0 1 1 0 0 

7 
– 
9 

3 1 5 5 0 0 

1
0 
– 
1
2 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

1
3 
– 
1
5 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

T
O
T
A
L 

                                                   4 1 5 5 0 0 
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EXECUTIVE MAYOR 

           1. INTRODUCTION TO EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S SECTION 

The functions, power and responsibilities of the Executive Mayor are assigned by legislation, in terms of section 56 of the Municipal 
Structures Act and Chapter 7 of the MFMA, as well by resolutions of Council passed from time to time to allocate specific 
responsibilities to the Executive Mayor. Provided that the legislation permits sub-delegation, or Council has authorized the power to 
sub-delegate in respect of Council delegations of authority made to the Executive Mayor, the Executive Mayor may sub-delegate such 
functions to the Mayoral Committee members of Standing Committees; 

A summary of the powers and functions of the Executive Mayor assigned in terms of Section 56 of the Municipal Systems Act, are as 
follows: 

1. Identify the needs of the municipality and recommend to Council strategies, programmes and services to address such needs;  

2. Identify and develop criteria for the evaluation of strategies, programmes and services implemented to  address needs of the 

municipality; 

3. evaluate progress against key performance indicators; 

4. review the performance of the municipality in terms of its: economy, efficiency and effectiveness; Credit control and debt 

collection efficiency; 

5. monitor the management of Administration; 
6. oversee the sustainable provision of services to communities; 
7. perform duties and exercises powers as delegated by Council; 
8. reports annually on the involvement of communities and community organisations in  the affairs of the   municipality; 
9. such reports must be presented at institutional political forum to ensure ownership of the reports by the Executive; 

10. He gives attention to the public views and report on the effect of consultation on the decisions of council. 
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OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE MAYOR 

GOOD GOVERNANCE: OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE MAYOR ANALYSIS. 

 

As shown by the Chart above. It is evident that Office of the Executive Mayor worked 
tirelessly in execution of its objectives for 2017/18 Fiscal period. Hence it registered 
100% achievement of its objectives.  

Good performance in Good Governance: Office of the Executive Mayor means; 

 
a. Succesful implementation of All planned Campaigns 
b. Needy Community being assisted with Grants 
c. Youth Development and Games being implemented succesfully 
d. Feeding our communities through Food Gardens. 
e. Implementation of Motivational talk for students in the District

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

100%

0%

OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE MAYOR'S  OVERALL 
PERFORMANCE

Achieved
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance : Executive Mayor’s Office 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement Project Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

5.29  Moral 

regeneration 

To promote ethical 

behavior & social 

values & principles 

enshrined in the 

country’s 

constitution among 

the communities 

within the district 

Engage communities 

through various special 

programs of the 

municipality in 

pursuance of promotion 

of ethical behaviour and 

values. 

4 moral 

regeneration 

awareness 

campaigns in the 

district targeting 

youth, men and 

women schools 

held by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of moral 

regeneration awareness 

campaigns in the district 

targeting youth, men, 

women and schools held 

by 30 June 2018. 

 Moral 

regeneration 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

6 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

4 

 

Achieved 
 

5.30 Gender, 

Disability,  

Elderly  and 

Children’s 

Programme 

To strengthen a 

meaningful 

community 

participation and 

interaction 

program. 

Develop and implement 

annual community 

participation and 

interaction program 

aimed at interacting with 

the community regarding 

various matters of local 

governance including 

public awareness 

campaigns, civic 

education about various 

programs that are 

initiated at other spheres 

of government. 

 Community 

awareness 

campaigns in the 

district targeting 

the interest of 

designated groups 

i.e. elderly, 

women, and 

people living with 

disabilities and 

children by 30 

June 2018. 

Number of community 

awareness campaigns in 

the district targeting the 

interest of designated 

groups i.e.  

 

A.elderly,  

 

Targeted 

Campaign  

 

1 

 

 

 

 

1 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

1 
Achieved 

 

      

   B.Women, 

 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 
Achieved 

 

      C.people living     with 

disabilities and 

 
 

 
 

 

Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance : Executive Mayor’s Office 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement Project Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

1 1 1 1 

     D.children by 30 June 

2018. 

 1 1 1 

 

      1 

Achieved  

5.31 Mandela day To participate in 

the 67 minutes 

Mandela day in 

July. 

Launch Mandela day 1 Mandela Day 

held by 30 June 

2018 

Number of  Mandela day 

held by 30 June 2018 

Mandela day   

1 

 

1 
1 

 

1 Achieved 
 

5.32 HIV & AIDS To contribute 

towards the 

reduction in the 

prevalence of 

HIV/AIDS in the 

district 

Develop and implement 

high profile HIV/AIDS 

awareness campaigns 

and promote regular HIV 

testing & disclosure 

amongst communities 

within the District. 

4 HIV/AIDS 

awareness 

campaigns in the 

district targeting 

youth, men and 

women schools 

held by 30 June 

2018. 

Number of HIV/AIDS 

awareness campaigns in 

the district targeting youth, 

men, women and schools 

held by 30 June 2018. 

HIV and AIDS 

awareness 

campaigns 

 

 

4 

 

 

4 
4 

 

 

4 

 

Achieved 
 

5.33 HIV & AIDS Reduce the 

spread of  HIV & 

AIDS in the District 

Coordinate  District Aids 

Council meetings 

Coordinate   4  

District Aids 

Council meetings 

by 30 June 2018 

Number of DAC meetings 

coordinated by 30 June 

2018 

DAC  

4 

 

4 

     

      4 

 

 

4 
Achieved 

 

5.34 Youth 

development 

To plan, 

coordinate & 

support sports 

amongst the youth 

Ensure exposure of 

youth to new 

opportunities in sports. 

Host 1 annual OR 

Tambo Games by 

30 June 2018.  

Number of annual OR 

Tambo Games hosted by 

30 June 2018.  

Youth 

development 
1 

 

1 
       1 

 

    1 Achieved 
 

5.35 Youth 

development 

To ensure that the 

needs of young 

Organize youth  

activities in the District 

Youth activities 

organized 30 June 

2018 

Number of youth 

development activities 

organized by June 2018 

Youth 

development 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 
Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance : Executive Mayor’s Office 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement Project Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

people are catered 

for 

5.36 Grant -in –

Aid 

Create a 

conducive 

environment for 

the provision of 

aid during times 

of need to 

destitute 

families 

Donate money to 

members of the 

communities during 

times of need to 

destitute families. 

Assisting 

communities in 

times of need by 

30 June 2018 

Number of members  

given donation by 30 

June 2018 

 

Grant -in –

Aid 

27 

 

 

47 10 

 

 

23 
Achieved 

 

5.37 National 

Campaign 

Ensure 

coordination of 

all national and 

provincial 

campaigns in 

the district. 

Organize international 

women’s day 

celebration activity 

Convene 1 

international 

women’s day 

celebration 

activity by 30 

June 2018 

Number of international 

women’s day 

celebration activity 

convened by 30 June 

2018. 

International 

women’s day  

 

1 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 Achieved 
 

5.38 National 

Campaign 

Ensure 

coordination of 

all national and 

provincial 

campaigns in 

the district. 

Organize  freedom 

day celebration 

activity 

Convene 1 

freedom day 

celebration 

activity 30 June 

2018 

Number of freedom day 

celebration activity 

convened by 30 June 

2018 

Freedom 

day 

celebration 

 

 

1 

 

 

1 

 

1 

 

 

1 
Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance : Executive Mayor’s Office 

ID 
Municipal 

Focus Area 

IDP Strategic 

Objective 
Strategies KPI Unit of Measurement Project Name 

Baseline Annual 
Target 

2017/18 

Annual 
Target 
2017/18 
Achieve

d 

Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial  
Action and 

Reasons for 
Over/Under 

Achievement 

5.39 National 

Campaign 

Ensure 

coordination of 

all national and 

provincial 

campaigns in 

the district. 

Launch 16 days of 

activism against 

women and children 

abuse 

Convene one 16 

days of activism 

against women 

and children 

abuse by 30 

June 2018 

Number of 16 days 

activism against women 

and children launched 

30 June 2018 

16 Days of 

activism  

 

1 

 

 

1 

 

 

1 

 

 

1 

 

Achieved 
 

5.40 Educational 

project 

To motivate 

matriculates  to 

stay focused 

and study hard 

in order to pass 

with better 

symbols  

Conduct motivational 

talk 

 Motivational talk 

by 30 June  

2018 

Number of motivational  

talks conducted by 30 

June 2018 

Motivational 

talk 

 

1 

 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 
Achieved 

 

5.41 Poverty 

Alleviation  

To Address the 

plight of indigent 

households in 

our District 

Coordinate two food 

Gardens in 2 Local 

Municipalities  

2 Food Gardens 

Coordinated in 2 

Local 

Municipalities by 

30 June 2018. 

Number of Food 

Gardens Coordinated 

in 2 Local Municipalities 

by 30 June2018. 

Poverty 

Alleviation  

4 

 

0 

 

2 2 
Achieved 
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        HIGHLIGHTS ON ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 

  Background 

2017/2018 has been a momentous financial year wherein the department tried to perform above the required level. Nonetheless, the 
financial year has not gone without challenges and glitches. This report attempts to give highlights of the department’s performance 
during the financial year 2017/2018. 

The department’s objectives amongst others is to play an oversight role over the administration. The MFMA section 52 (a) requires the 
Mayor to provide political guidance over the fiscal and financial affairs of the municipality. 

In the main, the department is also tasked to undertake outreach programs in an attempt to accomplish service delivery mandates and 
objectives. In view of this arrangement, the following sector components have been established to carry out this mandate: 

 Youth Development Desk  
 Elderly and Disability Desk 
 Woman and Children Desk 
 Moral Regeneration 
 Poverty Alleviation Program 
 And other national and provincial mandates. 
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  Highlights: Youth Development  

The following highlights were achieved during the financial year: 

Highlights Description 

Bursaries 

 

35 Bursaries were awarded to deserving learners doing different fields of study 
in the financial year under review. 

Of the 35, 22 are at the University and 13 are at FET. 

SMMES Development 3 young entrepreneurs were assisted with a start-up capital. 

Celebration of Youth Day 
Youth Day was celebrated during June month in the financial year under 

review 

 
 
 

Highlights: Moral Regeneration 
 

 

Highlights 
Description 

 

Moral Regeneration drug awareness Conducted moral regeneration awareness program in 4 different schools such 
as Bronville, Golden Park Primary School, Dieketseng Primary and Mamehlo 
Secondary School 

 
 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

161 

 

 

 

     Women & Children 

Highlights Description 

Women Celebration Celebrated with young women at Ferdi Meyer Hall during August month. 

Children  

Visited child-headed homes/families and assisted them food parcels 

100 learners were bought uniform at Verkeerdevlei Primary School. 

 

 Visited the following places hosting orphans: Tshireletso and Mokophu 

    
 

   Elderly and Disability 

 

Highlights Description 

Disability Participated in the sports tournament that took place in Thabo Mofutsanyana  

Elderly Food parcels were issued to 200 elderly beneficiaries in Verkeerdevlei in December as 

Christmas gifts. 
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    Highlights: Mandela Day Celebrations 

This program contributes towards making South Africa a better country by spending 67 minutes working in the most 
underpriviledged areas. 

Highlights Description 

Mandela Day Celebration Painting the Kgololosego School in partnership with the  

 

Department of Education 

 Department of Education. 

 Doing general cleaning and replacing windows at Tumarelo  

 
 

Primary School,Tokologo Local Municipality. 
 

 
    Poverty Alleviation Program 

As part of the department’s outreach program, the Executive Mayor strives to fight poverty by providing assistance to food 
gardens.  

Highlights Description 

 

             Food Gardens 
4 food gardens were assisted in Theunisseun, Wesselsbron and  

Bothaville 
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Days of Activism 

 

Highlights Description 

              

                    16 Days of Activism 

conducting awareness campaign in areas affected by violence, 

rape and  killings of innocent children and women. 

This activity took place in Reederpark, Matjhabeng Local 

Municipality where killings of women and children was 

prevalent. 

 

HIV/AIDS  

Highlights Description 

HIV/AIDS awareness  4 HIV/Aids awareness campaign were conducted, people were 

tested so as to know their status, pamphlets were distributed both 

female and male condoms. 

District Aids Council  District Aids Council (DAC) was launched. Coordinated the 

launch of Local Aids Council in all municipalities in the district. 

4 meetings of DAC were held as per schedule.  
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OR TAMBO GAMES 

To encourage young people to participate in sports thus taking them away from the streets and doing wrong things. 

Highlights Description 

District OR Tambo Games District OR Tambo Games were held in September 2017 in Hoopstad, 

Tswelopele Local Municipality. 

Provincial OR Tambo Games District participated in the Provincial OR Tambo Games and became the 

Champions of 2017 OR Tambo Games. 

 

GRANT IN AID 

The Executive Mayor has a role of assisting the needy members of the community. 

Highlights Description 

Grant in Aid The department assisted members of the community.  
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CHALLENGES FOR THE YEAR 

Challenges Description 

          Human Capital Shortage of staff especially with regard to the outreach components. 

          Funding Minimum funding that goes to the programs/activities in the department. 

          Land availability Acquisition of land to enable the department to accomplish its mandate of fighting poverty. 

          Funds Shortage of funding to fund all youth development activities.  
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EMPLOYEES         

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EMPLOYEES: EXECUTIVE MAYOR 

JOB LEVEL 

3
0
-
J
u
n
-
1
8 

Employee
s- Male 

Employees- 
Female 

Number of 
Employees 

Approved 
Posts 

Variance Variance 
% 

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2 – 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 

4 – 6 1 1 2 2 0 0 

7 – 9 3 1 4 4 0 0 

10 – 12 1 0 1 1 0 0 

13 – 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 
                                                   

5 
2 7 7 0 0 
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CHAPTER 4 
ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

PERFORMANCE (PART I) 
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1 NATIONAL KPI’S – MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION AND ORGANISATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

The following table indicates the Municipality’s performance in terms of the National KPI’s required in terms 

of the Local Government: Municipal Planning and the Performance Management Regulations of 2001 and 

Section 43 of the MSA. These KPI’s are linked to the National Key Performance Area – Municipal 

transformation and Organisational development. 

 

KPA and Indicators 
Municipal 

achievement 2016/17 2017/18 

The number of people from employment equity target groups  employed in the three  

highest levels of management in compliance with a municipality’s approved  

employment equity plan 
1 2 

The percentage of a municipality’s budget actually spent on implementing its  

workplace skills plan 
70 80 

 
  

4.2 INTRODUCTION TO THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 
 
The Lejweleputswa District Municipality currently employs 112 permanent officials as at 30 June 2018, 

who individually and collectively contribute to the achievement of Municipality’s objectives. The 

primary objective of Human Resource Management is to render an innovative HR service that addresses 

both skills development and an administrative function. 

4.2.1 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 

The Employment Equity Act (1998) Chapter 3, Section 15 (1) states that affirmative action measures are measures 

designed to ensure that suitable qualified people from designated groups have equal employment opportunities 

and are equitably represented in all occupational categories and levels in the workforce of a designated 

employer. The national performance indicator also refers to: “Number of people from employment equity target 

groups employed in the three highest levels of management in compliance with a municipality’s approved 

employment equity plan” 
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a) Occupational levels - Race 

The table below categories the number of employees by race within the occupational levels: 

Occupational Male Female 
Total 

Levels A C I W A C I W 

Top Management 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 5 

Senior management 4 1 0 2 1 0 0 0 8 
 

 

 

Occupational Male Female 
Total 

Levels A C I W A C I W 

Professionally qualified and experienced  
specialists and mid- management 

5 1 0 3 3 0 0 0 12 

Skilled technical and academically qualified  
workers, junior management, supervisors,  

foremen and superintendents 
14 1 0 2 18 0 0 2 37 

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 18 0 0 0 18 2 0 0 38 

Unskilled and defined decision making 6 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 12 

Total permanent 50 3 0 7 48 2 0 2 112 

Non- permanent employees 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 

Grand total 50 3 0 7 56 2 0 2 120 

 

b) Departments - Race 

The following table categories the number of employees by race within the different departments: 

Department 
Male Female 

Total 
A C I W A C I W 

Office of the Municipal Manager 7 1 0 1 5 0 0 0 14 

Corporate Services 17 1 0 1 21 0 0 0 40 

Financial Services 8 0 0 0 7 0 0 1 16 

LED 4 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 11 

Basic Service Delivery 14 1 0 5 9 1 0 1 31 

Total permanent 50 3 0 7 48 2 0 2 112 

Non- permanent 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 

Grand total 50 30 0 7 56 2 0 2 120 

 

c) Vacancy rate 

The approved organogram for the Municipality had 112 posts for the financial year. The actual positions filled 

are indicated in the tables below by post level and by functional level.  Posts were vacant at the end of resulting 

in a vacancy rate of %. 
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Below is a table that indicates the vacancies within the Municipality: 

  Per Post Level 

Post level Filled Vacant 

MM & MSA section 57 & 56 5 0 

Middle management/Professionals 20 0 

Skilled technical and academically qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents 

37 0 

Unskilled and defined decision 
making/General Workers 12 4 

Semi-Skilled 38 2 

 
 
 

Annual Report: Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

 

 Per Post Level  

Post level  Filled  Vacant 

Total 112   6 

 Per Functional 
Level 

 

Functional area  Filled  Vacant 

Municipal Manager 14    1 

Corporate Services 40   4 

Financial Services 16   1 

LED 11   0 

Basic Services Delivery 31   0 

Total 112   6 

 

d) Employee turnover rate 
 

A high employee turnover may be costly to a municipality and might negatively affect productivity, 

service delivery and institutional memory/Organisational knowledge. Below is a table that shows 

the employee turnover rate within the Municipality for the past two financial years: 

Financial year 
Total no appointments 
at the end of each 
financial 

year 

New appointments 
Terminations during 

the 
year 

2016/17 126 20 11 
2017/18 112 11 4 
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4.3 MANAGING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 

Managing the municipal workforce refers to analyzing and coordinating employee behavior. 

4.3.1 INJURIES 

An occupational injury is a personal injury, disease or death resulting from an occupational accident. 

Compensation claims for such occupational injuries are calculated according to the seriousness of the 

injury/disease and can be costly to a municipality. Occupational injury will influence the loss of man hours 

and therefore financial and productivity performance. 

The table below indicates the total number of injuries within the different departments: 

Department 2016/17 2017/18 

Office of the Municipal Manager 0 0 

Corporate Services 0 0 

Financial Services 0 0 

LED 0 0 

Basic Services Delivery 0 0 

Total 0 0 

 
 
4.3.2 SICK LEAVE 

The number of days’ sick leave taken by employees has service delivery and cost implications. The 

monitoring of sick leave identifies certain patterns or trends. Once these patterns are identified, corrective 

action can be taken. The total number of employees that have taken sick leave during the 2016/17 financial 

year shows an increase when comparing it with the 2017/18 financial year. 

 

The table below indicates the total number sick leave days taken within the different directorates: 
 
 

Department 2016/17 2017/18 

Office of the Municipal Manager 149 125 

Corporate Services 366 509 

Financial Services 244 85 

LED 109 118 

Basic Services Delivery 309 351 

Total 1177 1188 
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4.3.3 HR POLICIES AND PLANS 

Policies and plans provide guidance for fair and consistent staff treatment and a consistent approach to 

the managing of staff. 

The table below shows the HR Policies and Plans that are approved: 

Approved policies  

Name of policy  Council resolution 

Labor Relations & Harassment Policy                 C29/10/15 

Leave Encashment Policy  C18/05/18 

Payroll Management and 
Administration Policy 

 
C29/10/15 

Employee Bursary Policy  C29/10/15 

Private work Policy  C29/10/15 

Remuneration and allowance Policy  C29/10/15 

Training and Development Policy  C29/10/15 

Vehicle and Equipment Policy  C29/10/15 

Working Hours Policy  C29/10/15 

Dress Code Policy  C29/10/15 

OHS Policy  C29/10/15 

Sexual Harassment Policy  C29/10/15 

Resignation Policy  C29/10/15 

EAP Policy  C29/10/15 

Legal Services Policy  C18/05/18 

Recruitment     C29/10/15 

Substance Abuse Policy        C29/10/15 

Smoking Policy                             C29/10/15 

Job Evaluation Policy    C30/10/17 

Scarce Skills Policy  C29/10/15 

  

 

The HR department submits policies to the Local Labor Forum on a regular basis for review purposes. 
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4.3.4 INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE AND REWARDS 

In accordance with Municipal Planning and Performance Regulations 32 (2001 & 2006), a performance 

bonus, based on affordability, may be paid to an employee, after - 

 The annual report for the financial year under review has been tabled and adopted by the 

municipal council; 

 an evaluation of performance in accordance with the provisions of regulation 23; and 

 Approval of such evaluation by the municipal council as a reward for outstanding performance. 

4.4 CAPACITATING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 

Section 68(1) of the MSA states that a municipality must develop its HR capacity to a level that enables it 

to perform its functions and exercise its powers in an economical, effective, efficient and accountable way. 

For this purpose, the HR capacity of a municipality must comply with the Skills Development Act (SDA), 

1998 (Act No. 81 of 1998), and the Skills Development Levies Act, 20 1999 (Act No. 28 of 1999). 

 

 

Type of learning intervention Name of training intervention 
Number of Trained 

Employees  

Learnership Local Government Accounting (LGAC) 1 

Learnership Local Government Advance Accounting 
(LGAAC) 0 

Learnership Fire Fighter I 0 

Learnership Fire Fighter II 0 

Skills Program Customer Care 0 

Skills Program Project Management 1 

Skills Program SAMTRAC 0 

Skills Program Dangerous Goods Refresher 0 

Skills Program OHS Representative Training 1 

Skills Program First Aid Training 10 

Skills Program Basic Supervisor 0 

Skills Program Certificate in Labour Dispute Resolution 0 

Skills Program Councillor Training 23 

Skills Program PAYDAY Training 0 

Skills Program Employment Equity 0 

Skills Program Fleet Management 1 

Skills Program Registration & Archives 0 

Skills Program Workshop Training 0 

Total 37 



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

174 

 

 

4.4.1 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT TRAINING 

The Skills Development Act (1998) and the MSA, (2000), require employers to supply employees with the 

necessary training to develop its HR capacity. Section 55(1)(f) states that as head of administration, the 

Municipal Manager is responsible for the management, utilization and training of staff. 

The table below indicates the training that was provided to various levels of staff: 

Occupational  
categories Gender 

Training provided within the reporting period (2017/18) 

Learnership 
Skills programs and other  

short courses Total 

Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target 

MM and S57 
Female   1 2 1 2 

Male   0 2 0 2 

Legislators, senior  
officials and  

managers 

Female   1 1 1 1 

Male   0 1 0 1 

Professionals 
Female   0 0 0 0 

Male   0 0 0 0 

Technicians and  
associate  

professionals 

Female   0 0 0 0 

Male   1 1 1 1 

Clerks 
Female   1 2 1 2 

Male   2 2 2 2 

Service and sales  
workers 

Female   2 2 2 2 

Male   0 0 0 0 

Male   0 0 0 0 

Sub total 
Female   5 7 5 7 

Male   3 7 3 6 
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  Skills development training 

4.4.2 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT BUDGET ALLOCATION 

The table below indicates the budget allocated and total spent on skills development: 

Total personnel budget Total allocated Total spent % Spent 

    
 

Budget allocated and spent on skills development 

4.4.3 MFMA COMPETENCIES 

In terms of Section 83 (1) of the MFMA, the accounting officer, senior managers, the chief financial 

officer, nonfinancial managers and other financial officials of a municipality must meet the 

prescribed financial management competency levels that are key to the successful 

implementation of the MFMA. National Treasury has prescribed such financial management 

competencies in Government Notice 493 dated 15 June 2007. 

To assist the non-compliant officials to acquire the prescribed financial competencies, National 

Treasury, with the collaboration of various stakeholders and role players in the local government 

sphere, developed an outcomes-based NQF Level 6 qualification in municipal finance 

management. In terms of the Government Notice 493 of 15 June 2007, “(1) No municipality or 

municipal entity may, with effect 1 January 2013 (exempted until 30 September 2015 as per 

Government Notice No. 179 of 14 March 2014), employ a person as a financial official if that 

person does not meet the competency levels prescribed for the relevant position in terms of these 

Regulations.” 

The table below provides details of the financial competency development progress as required by the regulation: 

Description 

Total number of 
officials  

employed by  
municipality 
(Regulation  

14(4)(a) and (c)) 

Competency  
assessments 
completed  

(Regulation 
14(4)(b) and  

(d)) 

Total number of 
officials  
whose 

performance  
agreements 

comply with  
Regulation 16  
(Regulation 

14(4)(f)) 

Total number of 
officials  

that meet 
prescribed  

competency levels  
(Regulation 

14(4)(e)) 
Financial officials 

Accounting Officer 1 Yes 1                      1 

Chief Financial Officer 1 

 

Yes 1   1 

Senior managers 3 Yes 4                      4 

Any other financial  
officials 

2 Yes 2  2 

SCM officials 

Heads of SCM units 1 YES 1 1 

SCM senior managers 2 2 2 2 

TOTAL     
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   4.5 THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE 

Section 66 of the MSA states that the Accounting Officer of a municipality must report to Council on all 

expenditure incurred by the municipality on staff salaries, wages, allowances and benefits. This is in line with 

the requirements of the Public Service Regulations, (2002), as well as National Treasury Budget and Reporting 

Regulations SA22 and SA23. 

4.5.1 PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE 

The percentage personnel expenditure is essential in the budgeting process as it reflects on current and future 

efficiency. The table below indicates the percentage of the municipal budget that was spent on salaries and 

allowance for the past two financial years. The Municipality is well over the national norm of between 35 to 

40%: 

Financial year 

Total expenditure 
salary  

and allowances 

Total operating  
expenditure Percentage 

(R’000) (R’000) 

2016/17 62 845 642 104 575 763 60% 

2017/18 69 513 688 113 059 203 61.49% 

& 
 

Operating expenditure 

Note: During the 2017/18 Financial Year the calculation of total expenditure for salaries and 

allowances, Councilor’s were included. Below is a summary of Councilor’s and staff benefits 

for the year under review: 

 

Financial year 2016/17 2017/18 

Description 
Actual Original budget Adjusted budget Actual 

(R’000) 

Councilor’s (Political office bearers plus other) 

Salary 5 320 230 5 105 648 5 787 032 5 129 044 

Pension contributions/medical 
Aid 880 677 1 005 131 910 532 907 926 

Motor vehicle allowance 1 393 948 1 470 071 1 519 620 1 516 586 

Cell phone allowance 346 316 333 888 712 912 667 852 

Housing allowance     

Other benefits or  
allowances 67 240 - - 582 171 

In-kind benefits     

Sub Total 8 008 411 7 914 738 8 930 096 8 803 579 

% increase/ (decrease)     

Salary 2 783 375 3 931 938 3 931 938 1 903 965 

Pension contributions     

Medical-aid contributions     
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Financial year 2016/17 2017/18 

Description 
Actual Original budget Adjusted budget Actual 

(R’000) 

Motor vehicle allowance 539 765   719 511 

Cell phone allowance 100 500 120 000 120 000 79 485 

Housing allowance     

Performance bonus 202 816 550 552 550 552  

Other benefits or  
allowances 1 332 567 672 571 672 571 1 166 857 

In-kind benefits     

Sub total 4 959 023 5 275 061 5 275 061 3 869 818 

% increase/ (decrease)     

Other municipal staff 

Basic Salaries and Wages 38 236 984 

 

42 771 080 42 838 617 42 199 904 

Pension Contributions 6 043 480  7 031 734 7 154 071 6 716 940 

Medical Aid  
Contributions 3 324 642 3 851 338 3 906 442 3 756 470 

Motor vehicle allowance 5 560 987 7 745 036 7 961 036 6 360 811 

Cell phone allowance 101 824 109 200 250 025 253 325 

Housing allowance 459 674 477 660 501 014 469 333 

Overtime 89 177 137 000 137 000 72 908 

Other benefits or  
allowances 4 069 851 7 526 917 6 632 812 5 806 423 

Sub total 57 886 619 69 649 965 69 381 017 65 636 114 

% increase/ (decrease)     

Total Municipality 62 845 642 74 925 026 74 656 078 69 505 932 

% increase/ (decrease)     
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CHAPTER 5: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

5.1 FINANCIAL MATTERS 

COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

COMMENT ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

Based on the consolidated 2017/18 financial performance, the municipality made a surplus of 

R12m in comparison to R11m surplus in 2016/17. Overall, the municipality is in good financial 

health. 

Note should be taken of the increase of salaries which indicate an average increase by 6-8%, 

compared to the Equitable Share (municipality’s main income source), which only increased 

by 3%. 

5.2 GRANTS 

COMMENT ON OPERATING TRANSFERS AND GRANTS: 

The municipality is more than 93% dependant on grants and subsidies and are aiming to be less 

dependable on grants and to generate more own funds itself. 

5.3 ASSET MANAGEMENT 

INTRODUCTION TO ASSET MANAGEMENT 

 

An asset management unit is established at Lejweleputswa District Municipality consisting 

of the asset manager and an official. Annual asset verification is conducting to ensure all 

assets are accounted for. Missing assets must be explained by the responsible person the 

asset is allocated to on the reasons why the assets are missing. 

When assets are transferred, an asset transfer form must be completed and submitted to the 

asset section to update their records. 

Every personnel member assets are allocated to, are responsible for the safeguarding of their 

assets. Aurecon have previously been appointed to compile an asset maintenance plans for the 

properties. 

There is an approved asset management policy approved by council in 2014 in place, this policy 

is reviewed annually to ensure it is aligned with GRAP requirements. 
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The key objectives of the asset management policy are: 

 

 The accurate recording of essential asset information; 

 The accurate recording of asset movements; 

 Exercising strict physical controls over all assets; 

 Treating the assets correctly in the Municipality’s Financial Statements;  

 Providing accurate and meaningful management information; 

 Compliance with the Council’s accounting policies and GRAP;  
 Adequate insuring of assets; 

Maintenance of Council’s assets; 

 Ensuring that managers are aware of their responsibilities with regard to the assets; and 

 Setting out the standards of management, recording and internal controls so as to 

safeguard the assets against inappropriate utilization or loss. 

 

Details of capital expenditure 

Details Name Actual Value 

Asset 1 Office Equipment 101 725 

 
Asset 2 Outbuilding   584 924 

 
Asset 3 Computer Software 190 000 

Asset 4 Vehicles                     1 518 812 
 

COMMENT ON ASSET MANAGEMENT 

Refer to previous table and comments with regards to the additions for the year. 

Repair and Maintenance Expenditure 2017/18 

(R'000) 

 Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget Actual Budget 

variance 

Repairs and maintenance expenditure 5 589 5 812 3 682 -15.52% 

 

COMMENT ON REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURE: 

There are limited funding available to allocate to repairs and maintenance. Another challenge 

was that there were no maintenance plans in place. 

Aurecon was appointed to compile a maintenance plan for the properties, and the fleet 

manager compiled a fleet maintenance plan. This will be used in the future as basis for 

planning and budgeting purposes. The challenge still remains of funding to source the 
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increased maintenance. The main source of income increases 3% which is not aligned to the 

average CPIX. 

5.4 FINANCIAL RATIOS BASED ON KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Liquidity ratios measure the municipality’s ability to pay its bills and are calculated by 

dividing the current assets, due within one year by the municipality’s current liabilities, 

payable within one year. The higher the ratio, the better it is for the organization. 

Ratio calculations for the month ended: 30 JUNE 2018 

      
Name of 
municipality: 

 Lejweputswa District 
Municipality 

  
Financial Year 
End: 

 30 June 2018   
      
      
Current ratio: Current Assets / Current Liabilities (Norm 2:1)   
      
   30 JUNE 2017 30 June 2018  
Current Assets  R 89 129 224  R 106 044 557   
Current Liabilities  R 11 718 593  R 11 948 368   
      
Current Ratio  7.61 8.87 (times) 

  
Comment: The purpose of the current ratio is to determine whether the entity has the ability to pay it's short term 

liabilities. The norm for the current ratio is 2:1; the current ratio improved to 8.9:1, the main reasons for this was:-increase 

in Trade Receivables 

 
Cash/ Cost Coverage Ratio: ((Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unspent Conditional Grants - Overdraft) + Short Term 

Investment) / Monthly Fixed Operational Expenditure excluding (Depreciation, Amortisation, Provision for Bad Debts, 

Acturial Loss, Impairment Loss and Loss on Disposal of Assets) (Norm: 1-3 months) 

    
   30 JUNE 2017 30 June 2018   
Cash and cash equivalents R 37 363 763  R 11 979 640   
Unspent Conditional Grants R   R   
Bank Overdraft  R  R   
Short term investment R 51 278 319  R 91 226 976 

  
 

Monthly fixed operational exp. R  R   
Depreciation  R 1 676 188  R 3 275 358.20   
Amortisation  R  R   
Provision for bad debts R 14 845 351 .43  R 14 464 133.49   
Actuarial Loss  R 80 000.00  R 80 000.00   
Impairment Loss  R 1 676 188  R 1 676 188   
Loss on disposal of assets R 172 383  R 25 629   
Employee related cost  R 62 845 642  R 69 513 688   

Operating expenditure  

Cash/ Cost Coverage Ratio 

R104 575 763  R 113 059 203  

(months) 

  
5 5 

 
Comment: The purpose of the cash/ cost coverage ratio is to determine the amount of cash 
available to pay monthly operating expenditure, which includes interest, without receiving any 
additional income. Ideally the municipality should be able to pay it’s operating expenditure for 5 
months without receiving any additional income to proof sustainability. The municipality is able 
to cover all operating expenditure on a monthly basis .  



LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018  

 

182 

 

Net debtor days: ((Gross Debtors - Bad debt Provision)/ Actual Billed Revenue)) × 365 days (Norm: 30 days) 

    
   30 JUNE 2017 30 June 2018  
Gross debtors closing balance R 14 845 351  R 14 464 133.49   
  R 11 873 988     

Bad debt provision 

Net debtor days 

 R 14 845 351  R 14 464 133.49  

(days) 
  

291                                    209 

    

Comment: The purpose of this ratio is to determine how quick the debtors pay the municipality after being 
billed. The net debtor days is exceedingly more than the accepted norm and improved controls should be 
implemented to improve recoverability of debtors 

      
Grant dependency: Government grants and Subsidies / Total Revenue x 100 

    
   30 JUNE 2017 30 June 2018  
Total revenue  R 124 641 312  R 130 258 843   

Government grants and 

Subsidies Grant 

dependency 

R 116 327 673  R 120 052 000  

(%) 

  
93 92 

    

Comment: The purpose of this ratio is to determine how dependent the municipality is on grants. 
The ratios indicated that Lejweleputswa District Municipality will be 93% dependable on grants 
mainly due to the Equitable Share and government grants and subsidies received during 2018 Ficsl 
period.The ratio decreased with 1% in comparison with June 2017 where the municipality were 
more dependable on grants. 
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COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

Introduction to spending against capital budgets 
 

 
Total Capital Expenditure: 2016/17 to 2017/18 (R’000) 

 

Detail 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

 
Original 
Budget 

1 660 000 700 000 4 745 000 

Adjustment 
Budget 

1 775 000 3 250 000 4 745 000 

Actual 756 557.20 1 371 015.87 3 151 748.69 

            
 

    

COMMENT ON CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

The majority of the budget includes the purchase of necessary computer equipment and 

Office Equipments 

 

FUNDING OF CAPITAL BUDGET: 2017/2018 

The budget will be funded from own sources. 

5.6. SOURCES OF FINANCE 

With the current financial constraints, limited funding is available to fund capital expenditure.  

5.7. CAPITAL SPENDING ON 5 LARGEST PROJECTS 

The capital expenditure was spent on: 
 Municipal Vehicle  
 Software 
 Outbuildings : Extensions 
 Equipmen 

 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS  

 5.8 CASH FLOW 

INTRODUCTION TO CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 
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Refer to cash flow statement included in this report. 

The municipality use to generate revenue influx from the RSC levies which were abolished in 

2006. Since then it relied heavily on Grants to sustain its operations and it faced dire financial 

constraints. The Equitable Share Grant only increases 3% annually which is not aligned to the 

continuous increase in expenditure. 

District Municipalities do not have any own revenue sources e.g. tariffs that can be raised. 

Revenue from own resources are limited. Each year, it is a cumbersome task to ensure the budget 

prepared is cash backed. At the moment it is only our Executive Mayor who has discussions with 

the Province about the impending situation and the matter needs to be escalated to National 

Treasury. 

 
 

 5.9 BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS 
 

  5.9.1 INVESTMENTS 

Money is invested in short term investments (32 day deposits). Excess cash not needed for the daily 

operations for the next month are invested. Maximum of 25% may be invested with one institution as 

per the cash and investment policy. 

Investments are made in accordance with the cash and investment policy. Excess funds not needed 

within the next 32 days are invested to generate maximum interest. Investments are limited to 25% 

per financial institution to diversify risk to council. 

5.9.2 BORROWINGS 

No new loans have been taken up in the 2017/2018 financial year. It is not envisioned that new loans will be 

taken up in 2018/2019. The municipality still has existing long term loans from DBSA and will be fully paid in 

less than 5 years. 

Borrowings: No new loans have been taken up in the 2017/2018 financial year.  

LEJWELEPUTSWA DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

ANNEXURE A 

SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL LOANS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20118 

EXTERNAL LOANS Loan Redeemable 

Balance 

30/06/2016 

Receiv

ed  

during 

the  

period 

Rede

eme

d  

or 

writt

en  

off 

Balance 

30/06/2014 

Carrying Value of 

Property, Plant 

and Equipment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Other 

Costs in  

accordan

ce  

with the 

MFMA  No.  R R R R R  
DBSA LOANS   - - - - - - 

Loan:    R9 094 802   R 9 094 802   

(25% interest rate, six monthly installments of R 1 743856.35       
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No new loans have been taken up in the 2015/2016 financial year. It is not envisioned that new loans will be taken 

up in 2016/2017. Long term loans were fully repaid during the 2015/2016 financial year. 

 
COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 

 

 

5.11 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality has a centralized supply chain management 

unit, all of council procurement in undertaken by dedicated full time Supply Chain 

Management Practitioners that report under the Chief Finance Officer in Financial 

Services. They handle all supply chain management‘s responsibilities which are 

sourcing of Goods, travel and logistics for all departments. Supply Chain Management 

System has been developed to ensure it caters for Logistics Management, Disposal 

Management, Risk Management and Performance management. All the member of the 

3 Supply Chain Management Committees, Specification, Evaluation and Adjudication 

committees have been appointed by the Municipal Manager. Clear segregation of 

duties as regulated by the Supply Chain Management Regulations is effected in these 

committees. 

Internal controls reviewed by our Internal Audit department regularly, have continuously 

given comfort to municipal employees and council that the system is fair, transparent and 

allows for competitiveness in the procurement of goods and services. Lejweleputswa 

District Municipality continues to pride itself with Cleanest corporate governance and 

some of the stringent internal control process which we continuously implement to get 

Clean Audit. Municipal Council will continue to ensure that the limited resources at 

our disposal are expended in a manner that translates in to value and growth for 

Lejweleputswa district Municipality. 
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5.12 GRAP COMPLIANCE 

Currently, Lejweleputswa District Municipality lacks the capacity to fully 

produce grap Compliant Annual financial Statements and we use Consultants 

who assist and also do skills transfer. 

There are two GRAP steering committees: 

 One committee consists of the finance personnel, chaired by the CFO. This 

is where the progress by the different sections are discussed, the action plans 

to address previous audit findings, etc. The meeting is attended by: 

o Chief Account; 

o Their first line of supervisors; 

o The risk officer and 

o Internal audit. 

The second committee serves as a bigger meeting for discussion of financial 

issues pertaining to the whole municipality and all departments. The meeting 

is attended by: 

o CFO 

o Municipal Manager; 

o Head of Departments; 

o Finance Deputy Managers; 

o Internal Audit; 

o Other Role-Players 
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                                                           1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018.  
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EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S FOREWORD 
This annual report for 2017/2018 provides an overview of the 
lessons and the challenges we have faced throughout the year 
in both our organisation and the community. It is our hope 
that you will find this report both informative, helpful and 
that it will give you a greater understanding of the work 
undertaken by our municipality.  In all our Municipalities 
throughout our entire country, the notion of accountability is 
the cornerstone for all that we do. The report is a clear 
indication of our commitment as the Lejweleputswa District 
Municipality to the principle of accountability, and our 
commitment to build a truly responsible, responsive and 

caring local government. The financial report is a clear 
indication of the measures we have taken to enhance internal controls and improve financial 
management in the District. Our focus was to ensure that scarce resources allocated to 
programmes aligned with priorities of the Lejweleputswa District Municipality. 
In its preamble, the Freedom Charter (1955) cautions us “no government can justly claim 

authority unless it is based on the will of the people.” The Charter being the blueprint, upon 

which our democratic future is established, our municipality ensures that public participation 

remains the hallmark of all government work.  

Our focus is also on youth development programmes as we acknowledge young people as the 

future of our District and the country as a whole. We acknowledge the potential that our young 

people have in this District and as a result, we have launched the Lejweleputswa District Youth 

Desk that has to co-ordinate all youth development initiatives and promote the interests of 

young people within the District. 

Despite the challenges we have faced, the district remains committed to improving access to 

basic services to its citizens. As we continue on our march to deliver on our 2016 Manifesto 

commitments, we pledge ourselves to continue to work with our people to leave no stone 

unturned in fulfilling our objectives by accelerating and doubling our efforts to bring about a 

better life to all our people. We will do so in an accountable and ethical manner, as we have 

been proven to do over the years. 

A special gratitude goes to the administration for their dedication and hard work. Had it not 

been for their diligence, commitment and passion for their work this municipality would not be 

celebrating the achievements it recorded thus far. 

 

---------------------------------------------------------- 

Cllr Sebenzile Ngangelizwe 

Executive Mayor 
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ACTING CEO’S FOREWORD 

 

The Lejweleputswa Development Agency (LDA) is an agency 
established and wholly owned by the Lejweleputswa District 
Municipal. The LDA has gone through various phases since its 
inception in 2005 and has now entered a phase of implementing 
identified viable projects. To achieve its strategic objective, has 
undergone its structural and operational changes. 
 
From inception to date, the LDA has been financing its operations 
through grants from the Lejweleputswa District Municipality (LDM) 

and the Industrial Development Corporation (IDC). A strategic decision has also been made to 
move the organization towards a financially self-sufficient entity. This imperative further 
propels the LDA to vigorously pursue its potential projects so it may generate its own income 
before grant funding comes to an end, and to also explore other possible means of revenue 
generation.   
 
As an entity of the LDM, the LDA has aligned its objectives to those of the District and the 
Province economic plan. The projects chosen will therefore contribute towards addressing 
District, Provincial and National priorities around reducing unemployment, eradicating 
poverty, and increasing population literacy levels. 
 
To succeed in its mandate, the LDA has nurtured its relationships with its shareholder, as well 
as both internal and external stakeholders. Therefore it has continuously marketed itself and its 
services to these target audiences and has taken advantage of and exploited opportunities 
within its reach, whilst managing any exposure it might have to risk. 
 
The LDA does not work alone though. Companies of this nature must be in strong partnerships 
with various public and private companies. LDA has forged important relationships in the 
broader communities out there, not only on a political level, but also on a social, economic and 
financial level. It has helped to develop Local Municipalities in the district, not only through 
financial assistance, but also in the economic development areas which have been achieved on 
a relatively low budget, resulting in high impact. 
 
It is also important for the LDA to raise the bar of its work. Projects such as the Film studio, ICT 
Hub and Game Reserves are examples of bigger capital projects that will raise the bar to truly 
capital projects that can build the tourism real estate in the district – a sector which shows great 
room for improvement and is also becoming one of the cornerstones of the economy of 
Lejweleputswa District Municipality. At the moment the economy of Lejweleputswa District is 
very much based on agriculture, mining and a more diverse economy, based on a number of 
sectors that will provide the national and international competitive edge that is needed. 
 
As with any other organisation, LDA has a set of key challenges. These challenges are often 
related to the risk of sourcing of funding and building a stronger network of stakeholder 
relationships as well as branding the work of the Agency to further create a positive effect of 
private sector investment. 
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In conclusion, a vote of thanks needs to be given to the Lejweleputswa District Municipality’s 
political and administrative leadership, the LDA’s dedicated Board of Directors and the 
employees of the LDA that committedly and enthusiastically dealt with the wide array of 
stakeholders to build the performance base of the LDA. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   ……………………………………… 
   LDA Acting CEO: Mr T Skele 
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1. VISION, MISSION & OBJECTIVES 
 

1.1. VISION 

The promotion, creation and sustaining of a “diversified, broad based and sustainable 
economy” 
 

MISSION 
To create an enabling environment for development which will focus on areas considered to 
be major stimuli for investment and job creation in the District. 
 

 OBJECTIVES 
 
Promote Economic Development in the District to create jobs and wealth 
Promote Lejweleputswa as a commercial hub 
Reduce poverty levels in the District 
Create link between Public and Private sector to facilitate formation of Public Private 
Partnerships 
Facilitate access to project finance for business and SMME development 

1.2. MANDATE  

 
The aim of Lejwe Le Putswa Development Agency is to promote sustainable economic 
development for the district of Lejwe Le Putswa in order to: 

 Impact on: 

 Job creation; 

 Improve the quality of life of the people of LDM; 

 Wealth creation; 

 Develop potential of the region; 

 Implement economic development projects that benefit all municipalities in the 
district; 

 

1.3. GOALS 
 

The outcome-oriented goals of the agency are as follows: 
 

 A stable and fully capacitated agency to deliver on its mandate efficiently  
and effectively 

 Efficient, productive and sustainable management of land. 

 Improved socio-economic benefits within LDM. 
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CHAPTER 2 

GOVERNANCE 
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2. Corporate Governance 
 

The significance of Good Corporate Governance is effective leadership which essentially 
requires the ability to integrate decision – making, business strategy and sustainability. It is 
pivotal to inclusively collaborate with stakeholder that is founded on the need for effective 
engagement and constant update of business affairs for decision making.  
 
Lejweleputswa Development Agency’s Board consists of a majority of non-executive directors 
and one executive director which is the CEO.  
 
The Board works collectively in executing its fiduciary duties effectively and has maintained 

good and strong relations with the Chief Executive Officer.  
 

2.1 Governance Structures 
  
LDA is wholly owned and established by Lejweleputswa District Municipality with the aim of 
assisting LDM in promotion and implementation of the Local Economic Development Policies 
of Lejweleputswa District Municipality in the areas of economic production and commercial 
activities. LDA is registered as a Private Company under Registration --. As a local government 
entity LDA is committed to good governance and compliance. The Board has approved a 
Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 Compliance Checklist as a starting point. The 
next phase sees the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000, Companies Act 71 of 2008 and King III 
code covered as well.  
 

The Board is constituted as follows: 
 

 Five non-executive Directors 

 A Councillor & an official from LDM who serve as non-participating observer 
members 

 The Chief Executive Officer 

 The Chief Financial Officer is a permanent invitee  
 
The contribution of the Board is derived from the wide range of skills they collectively 
possess inter alia, business administration, finance, accounting, human resources, Public 
sector management etc.  
 
The Board is the Core of the Agency’s corporate governance architecture and is 
responsible for:  
 

 Provides clear strategic Direction to the Agency 

 Ascertains that management structures are in place to ensure day to day operations of 
the  Agency 

 Promotes culture of ethical behaviour 
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 Promotes sound corporate governance through an integrated governance structure; 
and  

 Ensures compliance with all relevant laws, regulation and codes of practice 
 

The Board of the Agency meets regularly, retains full and effective control over the entity and 
monitors the implementation of the entity’s strategic programmes by the executive 
management through a structured approach to reporting and accountability. It also sets the 
strategic direction and monitors overall performance.  
 
All Board Committees are chaired by independent non-executive directors. The Board met no 
less than six times as per the schedule of meetings below. 

 

 
 
 
2.2. Audit Function 
 
INTRODUCTION 

 

The Audit Committee of Lejwe Le Putswa Development Agency (“the Committee”) herewith 
presents its Annual report on activities performed during the 2017/2018 financial year. 
 
The Committee, as an independent advisory committee appointed by Council, has been 
established in terms of the provisions of section 166 of the Local Government: Municipal 
Finance Management Act No. 56 of 2003 ( “MFMA”) as well as section 79 of the Local 
Government: Municipal Structures Act No.117 of 1998 ( “MSA”). 
 

Date BOARD MEMBERS AND STATUS ATTENDANCE 

 Mr Reginald 
Mutsi  
( Chairperson) 

Mr Bafunan 
Mnguni( Dep 
Chairperson) 

Ms Mamorena 
Mosala 

Mr Zwelandile 
Ndlala 

Mr Klaas 
Hlalele 

29 August 
2017 

PRESENT New ABSENT PRESENT New 

17 November 
2017 

PRESENT             New ABSENT PRESENT New 

12 January 
2018 

PRESENT New PRESENT ABSENT New 

10 March 2017 PRESENT PRESENT PRESENT PRESENT PRESENT 

28 March 2017 PRESENT PRESENT PRESENT PRESENT PRESENT 

18  May  2017 PRESENT ABSENT PRESENT PRESENT ABSENT 

Number of 
meetings  
attended 

6 2 4 5 2 
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The Committee was appointed from the 30th of March 2017 and will conclude its term of 3 years 
on the 29th of March 2020.  In accordance with good governance prescripts, the Parent 
Municipality ensured continuity in the appointment of the new Committee members. 
 
The Committee is focussed on ensuring the integrity of the Lejwe Le Putswa Development 
Agency financial reporting and improving the internal control environment. 
  
1. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS ATTENDANCE 
 
The Committee consists of five (5) independent external members appointed by the Council in 
terms of Section 166 of the MFMA and during the 2017/2018 financial year held the following 
meetings: 

c) Four (04) Ordinary Meetings, and 

d) Two (02) Special Meetings. 

 
2.1 SCHEDULED ORDINARY MEETINGS: 
 

Name of Member Position Attended Apologies Total 

Mr. L J Makoro *** Chairperson / Member 3 1 4 

Mr. N S Marota * Member / Chairperson 2 0 2 

Mr. N L Masoka Member 4 0 4 

Adv. L S Khonkhe Member 3 0 3 

 Mr. T A 
Motshoikha * Member 4 0 4 

 
 
 
2.2 SPECIAL MEETINGS:  
 

Name of Member Position Attended Apologies Total 

Mr. L J Makoro *** Chairperson / Member 0 2 2 

Mr. N S Marota *  Member / Chairperson 2 0 2 

Mr. N L Masoka Member 2 0 2 

Adv. L S Khonkhe Member 2 0 2 

 Mr. T A 
Motshoikha * Member 1 1 2 

 
* Mr. Marota resigned effectively 1 December 2017. 
** Adv. Khonkhe resigned effectively 1 May 2018. 
*** Mr. Makoro was appointed as Chairperson for the remainder of the financial year. 
 
 
The following stakeholders participate in the meetings of the Audit Committee either on a 
permanent or Ad Hoc basis: 

1. The Auditor General’s office (External Auditor); 

2. Chief Executive Officer; 
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3. Municipal Manager of the Parent Municipality; 

4. Chief Financial Officer of the Parent Municipality; 

5. Internal Audit Unit; 

6. Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee; 

7. Risk Manager; and 

8. Free State Provincial Treasury Representatives. 

 

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The Audit Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference as its Audit Committee Charter 
(“the Charter”). The Charter is subjected to a review on an annual basis and the latest review 
was approved by the Municipal Council on 6 December 2017. The Charter serves as a guide to 
the Committee in navigating its roles and responsibilities and to give effect to its mandate in 
clear terms. 
 
The key objective of the Committee is to assist and advice the Lejwe Le Putswa Development 
Agency in ensuring the integrity of the financial reporting.  
 
The Audit Committee responsibilities entail the following: 
 
o Internal Control Environment, 

o Internal Audit, 

o Adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial reporting and information, 

o Risk Management, 

o Compliance with Laws and Regulations, 

o Performance Management, 

o Effective Governance,  

o Annual Financial Statements, and 

o Any other matters referred to it by the Board. 

 
3. REPORT ON THE OPERATIONS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
In discharging its responsibilities as stated above and in its terms of reference, the Committee 
has developed a schedule of quarterly meetings and has adopted a standard agenda aligned to 
the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003 and also to reporting guidelines as 
published from time to time by National Treasury.  The attendance of the meetings is disclosed 
in paragraph 2 above. 
 
At its meetings during the 2017/2018 reporting period, the Committee focussed on financial 
reporting, internal and external audit, performance, compliance and risk management.  It also 
reviewed the charters for both the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Unit. 
The Committee’s overall opinion is that the agency has and maintains appropriate levels of 
internal controls to ensure that it achieves its service delivery objectives. Furthermore both the 
Municipal Council and Management have taken appropriate steps in strengthening the control 
environment. This opinion is informed by the information (documentary and otherwise) as well 
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as explanations given by Management, Internal and External Auditors. Given the inherent 
nature of the agency’s business, there will always be areas of improvement, these are 
highlighted herein under and narrated as follows:  
 
4.1 Financial Reporting  
In addressing our key objective, which is to assist and advice the Lejwe Le Putswa Development 
Agency in ensuring the integrity of their financial reporting, we reviewed the 2017/2018 Annual 
Financial Statements at a special meeting during August 2018, concentrating on the following: 
 
o Compliance with financial reporting standards and governance reporting requirements, 

o Areas requiring significant judgements to be made in applying accounting policies, 

o The appropriateness of accounting policies, 

o The procedures and controls around estimates in applying accounting policies, 

o Whether the Annual Report and accounts, is fair, balanced, understandable and provides 

the information necessary for stakeholders to assess the performance of the Agency 

Board and its employees, and 

o Any relevant correspondence from regulators. 

 
4.1.1 Year-End Statutory Audit  
 
The Office of the Auditor General (“AGSA”) presented the Audit Strategy for the year ended 
30 June 2018 prior to the commencement of the year-end audit and was considered and 
approved by Audit Committee. There was an overall increase of 6% in the proposed audit fees 
from the previous year mainly as a result of inflation and changes to the staff establishment, in 
allocated hours proposed by the Auditor General. The Committee requested that the AGSA 
office must have a closer collaboration with Internal Audit so as to increase areas of reliance as 
this will consequently result in the reduction of audit fees.  
 
The Committee remains optimistic that the Agency will retain its unqualified opinion with 
significant improvement in matters of emphasis henceforth or at best, attain a clean audit if such 
matters are addressed robustly and with the commitment and support of all relevant 
stakeholders. 
 
4.2 Control Environment 
4.2.1 Internal Control Environment 
The assessment made by the Committee in relation to the control environment is informed by 
the assertions made by Management, Internal Audit Unit as well as the External Auditors’ 
reports.  The implementation and execution of the Risk Based Internal Audit Plan led to a 
continuous evaluation of the internal control environment.   
 
The Committee has approved a risk-based three-year Rolling Internal Audit Strategy and an 
annual operational audit plan.  All proposed internal audit assignments were executed. 
 
We highlight the following items from our audit engagements: 
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Risk Management 

Low results from capacity and functionality assessments. 

Performance information 

Timely collation; packaging; and submission of portfolio of evidence on agency’s performance 

still remains a challenge. 

Going Concern 
 
The going concern status of the Agency remains a critical area of concern to the Committee and 

this is a red flag not to be ignored. 

Compliance 

Compliance to adopted laws, regulations and policies. 

mSCOA 

The mSCOA reporting system is not yet implemented at the Agency. 

Budget 

A realistic budget for the 2017/2018 financial year were not compiled that negatively impacted 

on the going concern status. 

Projects 

All projects were not implemented that led to all targets not achieved during the financial year 

and it impacts negatively on the performance of the Agency. 

Despite above, our opinion that the control environment is effective and has strengthened over 
the last few years as the number of queries issued/raised by the AGSA have reduced 
significantly in comparison to those of previous external audits inter alia.  
 
4.2.2 Risk Management 

 
The implementation of risk management has progressed well, albeit from a lower base.  Policies 
and frameworks were adopted and utilized in the execution of risk related instructions.  A new 
Risk Management Chairperson was appointed effectively 1 May 2018.  Provincial Treasury, 
from the results of their assessments, initiated a support program for the 2018/2019 financial 
year which we believe will have positive results.    
The Audit Committee considers the going concern risk of LDA to be catastrophic and imminent. 
The following risks are also considered major: 

 Skills shortages / relying on consultants to compile the Annual Financial 

Statements,  

 Cash-flow challenges as the current funding is overcommitted,  

 Liquidity and Credit risk, 

 A steady reliable income stream for funding of projects and operations, and 
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 mSCOA (Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts) implementation on 

current Financial system. 

Audit Committee has noted the going concern risk facing the Development Agency Board and 
Management.  This could mean that the solution envisaged in this regard may be a difficult one. 

 
4.2.3 Compliance with Laws and Regulations 
 
The Committee has noted the initiatives that management has implemented towards the 
establishment of an effective compliance program focusing at this stage on the Municipal 
Finance Management Act and legislated duties.  The completion and reporting on the 
compliance program are reported to the Audit Committee during ordinary meetings. 
Compliance remains an area where the Agency can greatly improve on. 
 
4.2.4 Performance Management 

 
The Agency has made significant progress in implementation of the Performance Management 
System.  Internal Audit Unit is working with the office of the Auditor General and Municipal 
Manager to improve the collation; packaging; and submission of portfolio of evidence on 
Municipal performance information.  The KPI’s have been redefined using the SMART (Simple, 
Measurable, Attainable, Reliable, Time bound) principle and this is one of the first steps 
towards a clean audit opinion on the predetermined objectives.  The next area of focus for the 
ensuing year will be to define technical indicators underpinning the KPIs and as the Audit 
Committee, we recognize the current efforts and believe that this will assist in the compilation 
of the annual report.   
 
4.2.5 Effective Governance 

 
The Agency has developed and implemented necessary policies to regulate and guide the day 
to day decision making and ensure appropriate control environment.   
 
4.2.6 IT Governance 

 
An Information Technology Governance Framework was developed to assist and guide day to 
day decision making and ensure the appropriate control environment.   
 
5. INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
The Accounting Officer is obliged, in terms of section 165 of the MFMA, to ensure that the entity 
has a system of internal audit under the control and direction of the Committee. The Committee 
is satisfied that the internal audit function has properly discharged its functions and 
responsibilities during the year under review. The Committee expects that charters, 
programmes, evaluations and training plans will contribute to the internal audit function 
becoming more efficient, more responsive to challenges and better able to provide audit reports 
of a high quality to management and the committee on a timely basis. 
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6. BOARD RESOLUTIONS 
 
Audit Committee, in their quarterly reports to the Board, make recommendations for 
implementation.  These recommendations are important to clear out avoidable risks during the 
financial year in preparation for improved performance. 
 
7. FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY 
 
The Development Agency continues to struggle with adequate resourcing and this has limited 
its ability to deliver on its mandate. The going concern status of the Development Agency 
remains a critical area of concern to the Audit Committee and this is a red flag not to be ignored. 
The Agency has the potential to grow as it sees itself in a turf that is economically vibrant and 
can only do better. The Council, Board of Directors, Shareholder Municipality and Management 
are working together to address the challenges facing the Agency. The Audit Committee is 
pleased at the progress made by the Agency at the introduction of their Revenue Enhancement 
Strategy which is part of their turnaround strategy towards an effective Development Agency.  
This is viewed as a step in the right direction that will not only  assist the Agency with issues 
relating to its  sustainability but will be a value adding mechanism that will  benefit local 
communities in and around its jurisdictional area. The Committee remains optimistic that 
lasting solutions will be found in addressing other challenges facing the Agency.  
8. EVALUATION  
 
Provincial Treasury in their bi-annual Key Performance Indicators Assessment for the period 1 
July 2017 – 31 December 2017 assessed the Audit Committee and Internal Audit Unit as follow: 

 Audit Committee  92%, 

 Internal Audit Unit  86%. 

Provincial Treasury highlight that the Lejweleputswa Municipality’s Audit Committee and 
Internal Audit Unit are performing well in the province. 
9. APPRECIATION 
 
The Audit Committee wishes to thank the Accounting Officer of Lejwe Le Putswa Development 
Agency, agency’s officials and all other stakeholders for the cordial manner in which the 
preparation of the 2017/18 financial year audit was conducted together with the enthusiasm 
portrayed by management in ensuring that issues raised/identified in prior year audits were 
addressed.  This is a task, and however daunting it may seem,  with a collective effort by all – 
from the lowest ranking support staff to Executive Management and Board Members, the 
agency will surely reach greater heights and be a benchmark agency not only in the province 
but nationally. In the end, a clean audit is a result of everybody’s effort and determination and 
fundamentally, it is achievable! 
 

10. LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

Sections 62(1)(c)(i) and 95(c)(i) of the MFMA specifically require Accounting Officers to 

ensure that their municipalities and municipal entities have and maintain effective, efficient 

and transparent systems of risk management. 
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  11.   THE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS 

The risk management process is the basic structure that guides the entire risk management 

unit and consists of 8 vital steps: 

Step 1: Internal Environment the municipality’s internal environment is the base 
of all other components of risk management and needs to be thoroughly assessed. 

Step 2: Objective Setting – this is a precondition to event identification, risk assessment 

and risk response. There must first be objectives before management can identify 

risks to their achievement and take necessary actions to manage the risks. 

Step 3: Event identification – as part of event identification management recognizes 

that uncertainties exist, but does not know when an event may occur, or when its 

outcome should occur. 

Step 4: Risk Assessment – management considers the mix of potential future events 

relevant to the municipality and its activities. This entails examining factors 

including the municipality’s size, complexity of operations and degree of 

regulation over its activities that shape the municipality’s risk profile and 

influence the methodology it uses to assess risks. Individual risks are assessed 

on inherent and residual levels, and on impact and likelihood of occurrence. 

Step 5: Risk Response – this involves identifying and evaluating possible responses to 

the risks identified. Evaluation of likelihood and impact of risks is done then plotted 

on the following graph (which is used to categorize risks as low, medium or high) 

in order to gauge the type of response needed. 

 

 

 Graph: Risk Response required according to impact and likelihood. 
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Step 6:   Control Activities –   three types of control activities are recognised in risk           
management. These are preventative controls (striving to eliminate the 
occurrence of certain risks), detective controls (striving to identify and bring 
attention to risks that have already occurred or materialised), and corrective 
controls (striving to counteract the effects of risks that have already occurred 
or materialised).  

In order for activities and operations to run effectively and efficiently LDM and 

LDA must optimally distribute its resources according to significance of those 

activities and operations. 

Step 7: Information and Communication – information should be delivered to 

personnel in a form and timeframe that enables them to carry out their risk 

management and other responsibilities. 

Step 8: Monitoring – risk management operates in an ever-changing and dynamic 

environment.  

Management needs to regularly determine whether the functioning of each risk 

management component continues to be effective. 

 
11.1 RISK MANAGEMENT: ACCOMPLISHMENTS AND THE WAY FORWARD 

Risk management remains an ongoing process and an important factor in change 

management in Lejweleputswa DM and LDA. Also, best practices are being formulated 

and evaluated within the field of risk management on a provincial level on a continuous 

basis. The Lejweleputswa District Internal Audit and Risk Management Forum was 

established which includes all B Municipalities in the district. This allows all members to 

give constructive inputs into risk discussions that affect the whole district. mSCOA 

implementation for municipalities was a big challenge but most municipalities curbed this 

momentous change in legislation and are moving forward with great strides. 

Risk Champions are involved in the identification of risk and the input of controls within 
their respective departments. Full circle communication is yet to be established and the 
communication gap with the mitigation of risks within LDM and LDA is still a problem 

 
12. ROLES OF BOARD SECRETARY 
 
The Board Secretary manages the process that ensures that the organisation complies with 
Agency’s Legislative requirements. 
  
The Board Secretary is responsible for scheduling Board and Committee meetings and ensuring 
the recording and implementation of Board and Committee decisions. It is also the 
responsibility of the Board Secretary to communicate with the stakeholders on matters dealing 
with governance and stakeholder reporting. A Board Secretary's duties cover a wide variety of 
functions, including that of statutory matters and are partly dependent on the company for 
which they work.  
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Typical work activities include:  
 

 Organizing, preparing Board agendas for, and recording minutes of meetings; 

 Dealing with correspondence, collating information, writing reports, ensuring                  
decisions made are communicated to the relevant people; 

 Contributing to meeting discussions, as and when required, and advising Board  
     members of the legal, governance, accounting and tax implications of proposed         
     policies 

 Monitoring changes in relevant legislation and the regulatory environment, and taking 
appropriate action; 

 Liaising with external regulators and advisers, such as lawyers and auditors etc; 

 Developing and overseeing the systems that ensure the company complies with all 
applicable codes, as well as its legal and statutory requirements; 

 Arranging the annual general meetings; 
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CHAPTER 3 

LDA FINANCIAL HEALTH AND ESTABLISHMENT 
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3. FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW 
 
3.1. Report on Establishment 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

Financial overview 2017 -18 

Details  Original Budget Adjustment Budget Actual Budget 

Grants ( LDM) 3 500 000 3 752 000 3 500 000 

Grants ( IDC) 2 000 000 2 000 000 2 174 866 

Other: DPSA 0    180 000    163 776 

Sub total 9 500  000 5 932 000 5 838 642 

Less Expenditure 9 500 000 5 932 000 6 757 149 

Net total 0 0 ( 918 507 ) 

G 

 

Operating Ratios 

Detail % 

Employee Costs 3 679 284 

Repairs and Maintenance       10 224 

Finance Charges and Impairment          0 

 
COMMMENT ON OPERATING RATIOS 
Employee Costs 
Inadequate funds to cover both Human and Capital Costs 

Municipal resources were inadequate to also make provision for repairs and maintenance costs.    
 
 

3.2.  Governance Issues 

 
The Lejweleputswa Development municipality Council Approved establishment Grant in 
19 April 2005 from IDC for preparation of Groundwork in Launching the Agency and 
Council committed itself in the repayment of Tax shortfall on Pre – establishment Grant.   
 
The LDA registered in 2005 as a Section 21 company and therefore one of the priorities in the 
establishment process of the agency was to ensure the conversion of this into a State - Owned 
Company (SOC) Ltd. This was necessitated by the evolution of the legislation since the 
establishment of the LDA. Furthermore, a new Board of Directors had been appointed since 
January 2015 and in the period under review the Board worked with the parent municipality in 
determining the mandate of the agency and the new Memorandum of Incorporation (MoI) 
 
 LDA was registered with Companies & Intellectual Property Commission (CPIC) and has a 
Bank account with NEDBANK. 
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3.3. Assume full responsibility of the agency operations and financial 
management 

 
Since the appointment of the Board in February 2014. LDA made its of Budgetary submissions 
to Council for approval and ascertained that its budget complied with MFMA requirements. It 
had always been the wish of the Board f that the agency must be fully operational and be 
responsible for all its governance processes, including financial administration.  
 
The information on LDA has been prepared on a going concern basis, which asserts the Agency 
has the ability to continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in a 
planned manner. However, the ability to remain a going concern looks bleak since IDC has 
decided to minimize its own grant. Thus, minimal revenue influx to the agency may deter 
execution of own obligations as they become due. Currently, Lejweleputswa District 
Municipality as a main shareholder to the agency was coerced to augment their Funding to the 
Agency from R 3 500 000 to R3 752 000. It is an attempt by a parent municipality to stabilize 
financial situation at the agency until it realizes positive cashflows. 
 

 3.4. Organizational Establishment 

 
3.4.1 Strategy development 
 

 
The strategic development process has taken into consideration the following sources of 

information: 

 Audit report for the financial year 2015/16; 

 Medium term strategic framework; 

 The Municipal Systems Act; MFMA and Structure’s Act 

 LDA Business Plan; 

 LDA Financial Statements 2015/16; 

 IDP of the Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

 Treasury guidelines for the development of the strategy 

A diagnostic on the state of affairs at LDA was done. A strategy workshop facilitated by the 

parent Municipality LDM was held on the 21st – 22nd September 2016 to inform the development 

of the LDM and LDA strategy. The strategy is in line with the National treasury planning and 

budgeting guidelines. The guidelines were enhanced by engaging different stakeholders viz. 

LDA Board; provincial department representatives and LDM. 
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(b) Leadership 
 

The Board recognises that having the right people in the right jobs at the right time‟ is critical 

for its successful implementation of the strategy. These employees must have the skills, 

competencies and tools to excel and utilize the Board’s finances effectively to deliver on the 

customer and stakeholder requirements. This eventually translates to the achievement of the 

mission and vision of the Board.  

(c) LDA Value Chain 

 

The LDA Critical Success Factors are described as the key process that delivers services to the 
LDA beneficiaries i.e. Municipalities. The process is based on five critical components of LDA 
service delivery value chain i.e.   

 Identify a project;  

 Analyse the project feasibility; 

 Approve the project; 

 Source funding; 

 Facilitate project implementation; 

 Closure or Hand over the project 
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3.4.2. Development & Approval of Policies 

 
One of the key priorities in the establishment of any organization is to ascertain policy 
development and procedures to guide its operations. In this regard, the Board broadly accepted 
that in areas where the agency does not have policies, it will adopt the policies of the parent 
municipality to the extent where they are applicable to the agency. Below are the policies that 
were developed and approved so as to ensure full operation of the agency with effect from 29 
October 2015: 

 

No Name of Policies Date Approved 

1 Recruitment Policy 29 October 2015 

2 Revised Employee Bursary policy 29 October 2015 

3 Labour Relations and Harassment 29 October 2015 

4 Leave Policy 29 October 2015 

5 Payroll Management and Administration Policy 29 October 2015 

6 Private Work Policy 29 October 2015 

7 Remuneration and Allowance Policy 29 October 2015 

8 Scarce Skills policy                                         29 October 2015 

9 Smoking Policy 29 October 2015 

10 Training and Development Policy 29 October 2015 

11 Vehicle and Equipment Policy 29 October 2015 

12 Working Hours Policy 29 October 2015 

13 OHS Policy 29 October 2015 

14 Substance Abuse Policy 29 October 2015 

15 Dress Code Policy 29 October 2015 

16 EAP Policy 29 October 2015 

17 Sexual Harassment policy 29 October 2015 

18 Resignation policy 29 October 2015 
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          3.4.3 Organizational structure 
Soon after assuming duty, taking into consideration that there is no clear strategy in place, the CEO identified the need to consider the generic capacity to 
take the agency forward. An interim structure was developed and presented to the Board of directors for approval. In approving the second revision of the 
structure the Board pointed out that the CEO would have to prioritize the filling of the vacancies so as to get the agency operational within the limited 
financial resources available. Based on this approval, below is the interim organogram of the agency and this structure is bound to experience some 

adjustments in the next financial year as the operations of the agency take shape and the need for further capacity in some areas will be needed. 
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3.5. ANTI – CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 
 

The LDA Fraud Prevention Strategy (2016) clearly stipulates that the Agency does not 
tolerate fraud, corruption, maladministration or any other dishonest activities. In 
addition, LDA has adopted two other policies which also provide guidance to the 
organization in this regard, namely the Code of Conduct and the Supply Chain 
Management Policy.  
 
The Fraud Prevention Strategy provides for the controls which will assist in the 
prevention and detection of fraud and corruption, as well as providing guidelines as 
to how to respond should fraud and/or corruption be identified. Strategies for the 
prevention, detection, response and investigation of fraud and corruption are 
outlined. Employees are tasked with the responsibility to report all incidents of fraud 
and corruption that may come to their attention. The Code of Conduct, last reviewed 
in April 2014, speaks to issues of safeguarding the Agency’s assets, including funds, 
property, information and records. It also provides guidelines with regards to 
nepotism and other conflicts of interest.  
 
The Supply Chain Management Policy provides the framework within which 
contracts are awarded to service providers and goods are procured. The Policy covers 
issues of abuse of the supply chain management process and provides guidelines for 
ethical practice. No fraudulent or corrupt activity was identified during the period 
under review 
 
 

3.6. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 

LDA has adopted a Supply Chain Management Policy, which is reviewed annually, 
and has been designed to be fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective, 
it is based on the requirements of section 111 of the Local Government Municipal 
Finance Management Act (No. 56 of 2003) and complies with the regulatory 
framework for municipal supply chain management. 
 
The policy provides for a SCM Unit under the leadership of the Manager of Finance. 
The Board has the final responsibility for the oversight of SCM, through the 
accounting officer. The policy provides for a range of supply chain management 
processes which includes tenders, quotations, disposals and deviations. It further 
specifies which process must be followed for each range of commodities. There are 
procedures and mechanisms in place for each type of procurement process that is 
required to be followed. There is flexibility in the process in cases of emergencies and 
if the contract is below the prescribed thresholds. The Agency also undertakes a 
prequalification of all bids received during a competitive bidding process.  
 
Bid Administration is strictly adhered to when advertising, opening, registering, 
recording, evaluating and adjudicating tenders. The final terms of the contracts are 
negotiated in certain circumstances. The SCM Policy further provides the framework 
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for ethical practices within LDA, guiding staff members with regards to issues such 
as favoritism, acceptance of gifts from service providers, etc. The policy further 
provides a clear framework within which to address and resolve disputes, objections, 
complaints and queries.  

 

3.7. WEBSITES 

 

The LDA website is being revamped to provide a more functional website, with a new 
look and feel. The structure of the new website will be aligned to LDA’s five-year 
strategic plan. Not only will this site be more visually appealing and user-friendly -
allowing the Lejweleputswa community and the public to interact more readily with 
us and with each other, it will also add great value to the LDA brand and enhance the 
confidence that investors have in LDA. Documents that are posted on the website 
include: 

 Approved Budgets  

 Amended Budgets Performance Reports 

 Annual Reports 

 Tenders 

 Vacancies 
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1. INTRODUCTION  

The purpose of this report is to present the Annual Performance of Lejwe Le Putswa 
Development Agency for 2017/18. 

2. LEGAL FRAMEWORK  

               This Performance Report is submitted in compliance with;  
 Section 52(d) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003 which requires 

the Mayor to within 30 days of the end of each    quarter submit a report to Council on 

the implementation of the budget and the financial state of affairs of the Municipality.   

 Regulation 28 of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations, 2009 (GN 393) which 

prescribes the format of the Section 52(d) Report and requires that the report be 

submitted to National Treasury within 5 days of it being tabled. 

 Regulation 30 of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations, 2009 (GN 393) which 

require that the Section 52(d) Report be publicised by placing it on the Municipal 

Website in accordance with Section 75(1)(k) of the MFMA. 

 Regulation 14 of the Municipal Planning and Performance Regulations, 2001 (GN R796) 

(which requires the Internal Auditor to audit the Municipality’s performance and submit 

quarterly reports thereon to the Municipal Manager and the Performance Audit 

Committee.  

 MFMA Circular 13 which requires the Municipality to   report quarterly on its Service 

Delivery Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP).  The Municipal Finance Management 

Act, Act 56 of 2003  

      (MFMA) defines the SDBIP as;  
     “a detailed plan approved by the mayor of a municipality in terms of section53 (1) (c)(ii) 
for implementing the municipality’s delivery of services and the   execution of its annual 
budget and which must include (as part of the top-layer) the following:  
(a) projections for each month of;  
(i) revenue or  
(ii) operational and capital expenditure,  
(b) service delivery targets and performance indicators for each quarter 
3. Performance Discussions 
The SDBIP is a public document which was approved by the Executive Mayor of the district 
May 2016. Performance reporting on the top layer SDBIP is done to the Mayoral Committee 
and Council on a quarterly, half yearly (Mid-year Budget and Performance Assessment 
Report) and annual basis (Annual Report). Any amendments to the Top Layer SDBIP must 
be approved by Council following the submission of the Mid-year Budget and Performance 
Assessment Report and the approval of the budget 
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This report is based on the Top Layer SDBIP and comprises the following;  

 

• A summary of the overall performance of the Municipality in terms of the National Key Performance Areas of Local 

Government for the quarter ‘ 

 

• A summary of the performance of each Directorate for the quarter  

 

• A detailed performance review per National Key Performance Area 

The overall assessment of actual performance against targets set for the Key Performance Indicators as 

documented in the SDBIP is illustrated in terms of the following assessment methodology: 

Color  Category  Explanations 

 Quarter Targets and Year Budgets  

 Kpi not Met Target 50 - 99 % Less 

 Kpi achieved Target 100 -150 % 
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4. SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2017-18 
 

The following graph provides an overview of the performance of the agency’s performance as per National Key 
Performance Areas (KPA) for the 2017-18 year. The graph is followed by a summary which indicates both 
percentages and number of KPI’s 
 

 

Lejweleputswa 
 
Development  
 
Agency 

Key performance Areas 

Good Governance 
and Public 
Participation  
 

Local Economic 
Development  
 

LDA Financial 
Management 
and Indication 
 

Basic Service 
Delivery and 
Infrastructure 
Development 

 Kpi not met 

 Kpi met 
 

      4 0 1 0 3 
     22 12 0 6 4 

Total Kpi’s      26 12 1 6 7 
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Key Performance Area 2: Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development 

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2017 – 30 JUNE 2018 

ID Strategic Objective  Strategies 
Key Performance Indicator 

(KPI) 
Unit of Measurement 

Baseline 
 

Budget 

 
Annual 
Targets 
2017/18 

 
Annual 
Target 
Achv 

2017/18 

 
Comments by Internal 

Audit 

 
Remedial Actions for over 
& Or  Under Achievement 

2016/1
7 

Annual 
Target

s 

2016/1
7 

Achiev
ed 

Target
s 

           
2.1. 
A 

To facilitate project 
funding  

Create an 
environment that 
promotes 
development of the 
local economy and 
facilitate job creation 

Appointed management 
Company and signed Service 
Level Agreement on the 
Management of Tokologo 
Municipality 

 New 
KPI 

  1 1 Achieved  

           
2.1. 
B   

  To facilitate for the Due 
Diligence report of the Tokologo 
LM facilities 

 New 
KPI 

  1 0 Not Achieved Non Cooperation by 
Tokologo LM to give the 
required information on 
Finances of the Game 
Farms, Assets 
Verification,Game Count and 
related contracts of the 
security company 

2.2 
  

To fund operations of the 
Boshof Caravan Park and 2 
Game Farms  

 Assets purchased for 
Boshof Caravan Park 
and Game Farms 
(Brochures and 
Signage) and fencing 

New 
KPI  

  192 192 Achieved  

2.3.
A 

  ICT Hub Site Plan within the 
District by 30 June,2018 

Site plan 
Land has been 
identified and appointed 
architect  

New 
KPI  

  1 1 Achieved  
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2.3.
B 

  
ICT Hub within the District by 30 
June 2018 
 
 

Site identification and 
approval by Matjhabeng 
LM 

New 
KPI 

  1 0 Not Achieved Matjhabeng LM Municipal 
Manager only approved and 
signed for the ICT Hub  site, 

but did not submit it for 
Council Approval hence the 
absence of Council Approval 

 

2.4 

 

To facilitate funding for 

workshop and 

Rehearsals of selected 

Cast 

To train short listed 
cast 

 

Facilitate funding for talent 
search in the district 

63 cast members 
trained 
 

New 
KPI 

 R44814 
 

63 63 Achieved  

Key Performance Area 3: Local Economic Development 
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2017 – 30 JUNE 2018 

ID 
Strategic 
Objective  

Strategies 
Key Performance 

Indicator (KPI) 
Unit of 

Measurement 

Baseline 

Annual 
budget   

 
Annual 
Targets 
2017/18 

 
Annual 
Target 

Achv2017/18 

 
Comments by 
Internal Audit 

 
Remedial Actions for over & Or  

Under Achievement 2016/17 
Annual 

Targetss 

2016/17 
Achieved 
Targets 

3.1 To attend or partner 
with all Municipality 
and other 
stakeholders on 
tourism 
development within 
the district 
 
 

Create an 
environment that 
promotes 
development of 
Tourism and 
facilitate job 
creation 

Partner and 
support 
Municipalities 
within the District 
with promotional 
materials by 30 
June 2018 

Partnered with and 
supported 
Municipalities with 
promotional 
materials by 30 June 
2018 

Local 
Municipalities 
supported 
during 
2016/17 
financial year 

 R60 000 4 0 Not Achieved We did not get the 

anticipated funding from 

the IDC for funding of 

the tourism promotional 

material and Durban 

Indaba Expenditure 

hence the non-

achievement 
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Key Performance Area 4: Financial Management & Viability 

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2017 – 30 JUNE 2018 

ID Strategic Objective  Strategies 
Key Performance 

Indicator (KPI) 
Unit of 

Measurement 

Baseline 

Annual 
budget 

 
Annual 
Target 
2017/18 

 
Annual 
Target 

Achv2017/18 

 
Comments by 
Internal Audit 

Remedial Actions for over & 
Or  Under Achievement 

2016/17 
Annual 
Targets 

2016/17 
Achieved 
Targets 

4.1 To ensure financial management 
practices that enhance viability & 
compliance with the 
requirements of MFMA &other 
relevant legislation 

Plan, implement, 
monitor and report 
financial management 
activities in accordance 
with MFMA, its 
associated regulations 
and prescribed 
accounting norms and 
standards. 

2016/17 signed-off 
Annual Financial 
Statements prepared 
in accordance with the 
South African 
Standards of 
Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practices 
(GRAP) and section 
122 of MFMA by 31 
August 2017. 

Auditor-General’s 
Report on the 
2016/17 Annual 
Financial 
Statements (AFS) 
with no paragraph 
relating to AFS not 
being compiled in 
accordance with 
GRAP and section 
122 of MFMA. 

2015/16 
signed-off 
Annual 
Financial 
Statements 
and the 
related 
Auditor-
General’s 
Report 

   
 
 
 
 
R200 000 

 
 
 
 
 

1 

 

 

 

 

1 Achieved 

 

4.2 To ensure financial management 
practices that enhances viability 
& compliance with the 
requirements of MFMA & other 
relevant legislation in order to 
achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 
monitor and report 
financial management 
activities in accordance 
with MFMA, its 
associated regulations 
and prescribed 
accounting norms and 
standards 

Nil / Zero amount of 
unauthorised, irregular 
and fruitless & 
wasteful expenditure 
incurred due to non-
compliance to the 
municipality’s Supply 
Chain Management 
Policy, Supply Chain 
Management 
Regulations, 2005 and 
the MFMA by 30 June 
2018 

Amount of 
unauthorised, 
irregular and 
fruitless & wasteful 
expenditure 
incurred due to 
non-compliance to 
the municipality’s 
Supply Chain 
Management 
Policy, Supply 
Chain Management 
Regulations, 2005 
and the MFMA by 
30 June 2018 

   
 
 
 
In house  

 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

4 

Achieved 
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4.3 To ensure financial management 
practices that enhances viability 
& compliance with the 
requirements of MFMA & other 
relevant legislation in order to 
achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 
monitor and report 
financial management 
activities in accordance 
with MFMA, its 
associated regulations 
and prescribed 
accounting norms and 
standards 

Suppliers and service 
providers paid within 
30 days of receipt of 
valid invoice, with no 
disputed delivery of 
goods / services 
throughout 2017/18 

Number of days it 
takes to pay 
suppliers and 
service providers 
after receipt of valid 
invoice, with no 
disputed delivery of 
goods / services 
throughout 2017/18 

 
 
 
 
4 

 
 
 
 
4 
 

 
 
 
 
In house  

 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

4 

Achieved 

 

4.4 To ensure financial management 
practices that enhances viability 
& compliance with the 
requirements of MFMA & other 
relevant legislation in order to 
achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 
monitor and report 
financial management 
activities in accordance 
with MFMA, its 
associated regulations 
and prescribed 
accounting norms and 
standards 

2 biannual assets 
verification performed, 
and asset registers 
updated with all assets 
movements, and 
report any damaged / 
missing items by 30 
June 2018 

Number of biannual 
assets verification 
performed, and 
asset registers 
updated with all 
assets movements, 
and report any 
damaged / missing 
items by 30 June 
2018 

 
 
 
2 

 
 
 
2 

  
 
 
In house 

 
 

2 

 

 

2 

Achieved 

 

4.5 To ensure financial management 
practices that enhances viability 
& compliance with the 
requirements of MFMA & other 
relevant legislation in order to 
achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 
monitor and report 
financial management 
activities in accordance 
with MFMA, its 
associated regulations 
and prescribed 
accounting norms and 
standards 

Approved budget for 
2018/19 financial by 
30 June 2018. 

Approved budget 
for 2018/19 
financial by 30 
June 2018. 

 
 
 
1 

 
 
 
1 

 
 
 
In house 

 
 
 

1 

 

 

 

1 

 Achieved 

 

4.6 To ensure financial management 
practices that enhances viability 
& compliance with the 
requirements of MFMA & other 
relevant legislation in order to 
achieve a clean audit. 

Plan, implement, 
monitor and report 
financial management 
activities in accordance 
with MFMA, its 
associated regulations 
and prescribed 
accounting norms and 
standards 

12 signed-off monthly 
budget statement 
reports (Sec87) for 
2017/18 produced and 
submitted to the 
Accounting Officer of 
the LDM by 30 June 
2018 

Number of signed-
off monthly budget 
statement reports 
for 2017/18 
produced and 
submitted to the 
Accounting Officer 
of the LDM by 30 
June 2018 

 
 
 

12 

 
 
 

12 

 
 
 

In house 

 
 
 

12 

 

 

 

12 
Achieved 
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Key Performance Area 5: Good Governance & Public Participation 

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2017 – 30 JUNE 2018 

ID Strategic Objective  Strategies 
Key 

Performance 
Indicator (KPI) 

Unit of 
Measurement 

Baseline 
 

Budget 

 
Annual 
Targets 
2017/18 

 

 
Annual 
Target 

Achv2017/
18 

 
Comments by 
Internal Audit 

 
Remedial Actions for over & 

Or  Under Achievement 

2016/17 
Target 

2016/17 
Achieved 
targets 

5.1 To ensure Good 
Governance practices to 
ensure effective, functioning 
of the Agency 

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the Agency's 
Performance Management 
System from planning to 
reporting 

Submit 1 draft 
SDBIP for the 
2017/18 budget 
year and 1 drafts 
of the annual 
performance 
agreements for 
the CEO of the 
same period to 
the Chairperson 
of the Board and 
Executive Mayor 
of the LDM by 14 
July 2017 

Number of draft 
SDBIP for the 
2017/18 budget 
year and number of 
drafts of the annual 
performance 
agreements for the 
CEO of the same 
period submitted to 
the Chairperson of 
the Board and 
Executive Mayor of 
the LDM by 14 July 
2017 

         
 
          1 

 
1 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
In house 

 
 
 

1 
 
 

 
 
 
      1 

Achieved 

 

5.2 To ensure Good 
Governance practices to 
ensure effective, functioning 
of the Agency 

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the Agency's 
Performance Management 
System from planning to 
reporting 

1 Signed 
Performance 
Agreements & 
Plans for the 
CEO of the 
agency for 
2017/18 financial 
year concluded 
by 31 July 2017. 

Number of signed 
Performance 
Agreements & 
Plans for the CEO 
of the Agency for 
2017/18 financial 
year concluded by 
31 July 2017.  

         1 1  
 
 
 
In house 

 
 
 

1 

 
 
 
       1 

Achieved 
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5.3 To ensure Good 
Governance practices to 
ensure effective, functioning 
of the Agency 

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the 
municipality’s Performance 
Management System from 
planning to reporting, 

4 quarterly 
performance 
assessment 
reports for 1 
CEO of the 
agency 
concluded and 
signed-off not 
later than 30 
days after the 
end of each 
quarter during 
2017/18  

Number quarterly 
performance 
assessment reports 
not later than 30 
days after the end 
of each quarter 

 
 
 

4 

 
 
 
4 

  
 
 

4 

 
 
 

4 

Achieved 

 

5.4 To ensure Good 
Governance practices to 
ensure effective, functioning 
of the Agency 

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the Agency’s 
Performance Management 
System from planning to 
reporting. 

1 annual 
performance 
report for 
2016/17 signed-
off and submitted 
to the Auditor-
General by 31 
August 2017 

Number of annual 
performance reports 
by 31 August 2017 
for 2016/17 

1 
 
 
 
 

1  
 
 
 
 
 

In house 

1 1 

Achieved 

 

5.5 To ensure Good 
Governance practices to 
ensure effective, functioning 
of the Agency 

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the Agency’s 
Performance Management 
System from planning to 
reporting. 

Submit 1-signed-
off Mid-term 
budget and 
performance 
assessment 
report for 
2017/18 to the 
Board of 
Directors of the 
Agency and 
Parent 
Municipality by 
20 January 2018 

Number of signed-
off mid-term budget 
and performance 
assessment report 
for 2017/18 
submitted to the 
Board of Directors 
of the Agency and 
Parent Municipality 
by 20 January 2018 

 
 

 
1 
 

 
 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 

In house 

 
 

 
1 

 
 
 
       1 
 

Achieved 

 

5.6 To ensure Good 
Governance practices to 
ensure effective, functioning 
of the Agency 

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the Agency’s 
Performance Management 
System from planning to 
reporting. 

Submit 1 audited 
annual report for 
2016/17 to the 
Accounting 
Officer of the 

Number of audited 
annual report for 
2016/17 submitted 
to the Accounting 
Officer of the Parent 

 
        
          1 

 
1 

 
 

In house 
 

 
 

1 

 
 
        1 

Achieved 
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Parent 
Municipality by 
31December 
2017. 

Municipality by the 
end of 31December 
2017. 

5.7 To ensure Good 
Governance practices to 
ensure effective, functioning 
of the Agency 

Fully comply with the 
provisions of the Agency’s 
Performance Management 
System from planning to 
reporting. 

Table 1 audited 
annual report for 
2016/17 before 
the Board of 
Directors and 
Council of the 
Parent 
Municipality   by 
31 January 2018. 

Number of audited 
annual report for 
2016/17 tabled 
before the Board of 
Directors and 
Council of the 
Parent Municipality 
by 31 January 2018 

          
 
 
          1 

 
 
1 

 
 

In house 
 

 
 

1 
 
 

         
  
      1 

Achieved 

 

5.8   4 Board 
Meetings held by 
30 June 2018 

Number of board 
meetings held by 30 
June 2018 

         4  4 
 
 

In house 
 

    4           6 

Achieved 

Due to urgent matters 
needed their immediate 
attention. 

5.9 Ensure that the Agency’s 
information is regularly 
updated on the Agency’s 
website and other digital 
communication platforms of 
the agency. 

To provide information 
through the available ICT 
platforms of the municipality 
and to improve the corporate 
image of the agency. 

4 reports on 
updates (of the 
Agency’s website 
performed by 30 
June 2018. 
 
 

Number of updates 
of the Agency’s 
website performed 
by 30 June 2018. 

          
 
 
         4 

 
 

4 

 
 

4 
 

 
 
 

In house 

 

 
 
 

4 

Achieved 
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5.10 To ensure oversight over 
the affairs of the agency 

Provide reasonable 
assurance as to the 
effectiveness of internal 
controls of the municipality 
through Internal Audit service  

4 quarterly 
Internal Audit 
reports on the 
assessment 

Number of quarterly 
Internal Audit 
reports on the 
assessment of the 
effectiveness of the 
controls within the 
municipality 
submitted to the 
Audit –Committee 
by 30 June 2018 

        4 4 4 In house 
 

4 
 
 
 
 

Achieved 

 

5.11  Submit the quarterly 
internally audited 
performance reports and the 
annual report to the audit 
Committee & MPAC 

4 quarterly 
performance 
reports and 1 
draft annual 
report for 
2017/18  

Number of quarterly 
performance report 
internally audited 
and annual reports 
submitted to the 
Audit Committee & 
MPAC by 30 June 
2018 

         4 4 
 

4 4     4 

Achieved 

 

5.12 To build a risk conscious 
culture within the agency. 

Reduction of high risk levels 
to tolerable levels by 
performing regular risk 
assessment, updating risk 
registers and following up on 
implementation of risk 
treatment plans by the 
agency 

4 quarterly risk 
assessments 
performed by 30 
June 2018  

Number of quarterly 
risk assessment 
performed by 30 
June 2018 and risk 
register and risk 
mitigation plans 
subsequently 
updated. 

        4 4 
 

In house 4        4 

Achieved 

 



LEJWE LE PUTSWA DEVELOPMENT AGENCY      2017-2018 

229 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

CHAPTER 5 

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

PERFORMANCE 
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5. NATIONAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS – MUNICIPAL 

ENTITY TRANSFORMATION AND ORGANISATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 

 
The under- mentioned table shows Municipal entity ‘s performance in terms of National Key 
Performance indicators as required in terms of Local Government: Municipal entity Planning and 
Performance management regulations of 2001 and section 43 of Municipal entity System’s act. 
 . 

KPA & IDICATORS 2016/2017 

Employment Equity - Number of women employed into senior 
management positions 

      0 

Percentage of a Municipality’s budget spent on implementing its 
Workplace skills plan 

      0 

 
5.1 INTRODUCTION TO MUNICIPAL ENTITY WORKFORCE 
 
Lejweleputswa development agency employed 7 employees as at 30 June 2018.  Who largely and 
actively contribute to the Municipal entity’s objectives. The primary objective of Municipal entity 
Human Resource is to ensure that Municipal entity Human capital is addressed in terms of skills 
development and administrative function. 
   

5.1.1. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 
 

The Employment Equity Act 1998 Chapter 3. Section 15 (I) states that affirmative action measures 
are designed to ensure that suitably qualified people from designated groups have equal 
employment opportunities and are represented in all occupational categories and levels in the 
workforce of designated employer. The National performance indicator also refers to:  
 
Number of people from employment equity target groups employed in the three highest levels of 
management in compliance with a Municipal entity’s approved employment plan. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5.1.2 Vacancy Rate 
 

Approved Municipal entity Organogram for Lejweleputswa development agency had 9 employees    
as at 30 June 2017. Filled positions are indicated below by post Levels. No Vacant positions  
 
 

Occupational 
Health Levels 

                           MALE  FEMALE   

African Whites Indians  African Whites Indians 

Senior 
Management 

0 0 0  0 0 0 

Middle 
Management 

0 0 0  1 0 0 

Lower 
Management 

0 0 0  3 0 0 

Skilled Technical 2 0 0  1 0 0 

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Permanent  2 0 0  5   
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5.1.3 SUSPENSIONS AND DISMISALS 
 
NONE 
 
Table below shows Municipal entity Entity’s employees after a dismissal 

 
 
 
 

 

5.2 MANAGING MUNICIPAL ENTITY WORKFORCE 
  

      Entails analysing and coordinating employee behaviour at the Municipal entity 
 
INJURIES  

 
An occupational injury is a personal injury to Municipal entity employee during the execution of 
his or her own responsibility at work environment. Injuries may take different forms, be it diseases, 
or death resulting from occupational accident. Compensation claims are made against the 
Municipal entity and could be costly depending on the seriousness of an injury. However, Lejwe 
Le Putswa Development Agency had zero incidents in the Fiscal period under – review. 

 
5.2.3 SICK LEAVE 
 
Number of Sick leave days taken by employee in 2014/2015 versus 2015/2016 

 

Directorate 2015/16 2016/17 2018/19 

Act.  Chief Executive Officer 10 9 0 

Middle Managers 33 37 24 

Lower Managers 28 32 34 

skilled Technical Employees 38 29 28 

Unskilled Employees  10 0 

Total 109 117 86 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Post Level  Filled Vacant 

Senior Management 0 1 

Middle Management 1 3 

Lower Management 3 1 

Skilled Technical 3 2 

Unskilled 0 1 

Total Permanent  7 8 

Number of Employees Resignation Current staff 

9 2 7 
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5.2.4 PERFORMANCE REWARDS 
 

In accordance with regulation 32, employee performance bonus is payable to him or her based on 
affordability after Consideration of the following aspects 

 Annual report of the year under review has been tabled and adopted by 
Council 

 Evaluation of Performance in terms of regulation 23; 

 And approval of such evaluation by Council as a reward of outstanding performance. 
 

 LDA’s performance management system has not been rolled out to lower levels. Due to non - 
availability of Cascading regulations From MEC. 

 
 
    5.2.5 CAPACITATING MUNICIPAL ENTITY’S WORKFORCE 
 

Section 68 (i) of the MSA states that a Municipal entity must develop its human resources 
capacity to a level which enables it to perform its functions and exercise its powers in an 
economical, effective and accountable way. Therefore, for these purpose Human resource 
capacities of a Municipal entity must comply with SDA, act no 81 of 1998 and skills development 
levies act 20 of 1990. 

 
 

5.3 SKILLS MATRIX 
   
Table below shows number of employees that received training during the year per Directorate 
 

Name Position Gender Employees 
Identified for 
Training 

Employees that 
received training 

1.Mr Thami Skele 
 
2.Mrs Sibongile Makhubu 

Acting CEO Male 0  

Board 
Secretary/HR 

Female 1  

3.Miss Joan Ntwana 
4.Miss Malekhesi   
Motsoeneng 

Fin Manager Female  0 

Finance Officer Female 1  

5.Miss Katleho Pitso 
6.Mr Octavius Kolisang 

SCM Officer Female 1 0 

IT Male 1  

7. Mr Fusi Molelekwa 
8.Miss Portia Matshai 

Admin Male   

Receptionist Female 0  

Total   4 0 

 

Planned training was attended as planned by Municipal entity for the financial year under 
review. 
 
5.3.1   SKILLS DEVELOPMENT – BUDGET ALLOCATION 

 

Total Personnel Budget Total Allocated Total Spend % spent 

131 000 0 0          0 
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 LDA - MFMA COMPETENCIES 
  

                In terms of Section 83 (1) of the Municipal Entity Financial Management Act, the Accounting 
Officer, Senior Managers, the Chief Financial Officers and Non – Financial Managers and other 
Financial Officers of the Municipal entity must meet the prescribed financial management 
competency levels that are key to successful implementation of MFMA.  
National treasury prescribed Financial Management Competencies in Government Notice 
dated 15 June 2007. National treasury and other stakeholders played a very critical role in 
assisting Officials to acquire the above-mentioned prescribed financial competency. 
 
Table below provides details of Financial Competency development at Lejweleputswa as required by 
Legislation. 

 

Description Number of 
Officials 
employed ( 
Regulation 
14(4)(a) and ( C) 

Competency 
Assessments 
completed ( 
Regulation 
14(4) b and d  

Number of 
Officials 
whose 
performance 
agreements 
comply with 
Regulation 16 
(regulation 
(14) (4) (F) 

Total Number 
of Officials that 
meet 
Prescribed 
Competency 
Levels. 
Regulation 14 
(4) (E) 

Financial 
Official 

    

Ceo 1 1 1 1 

Finance Officer 1 1 0 1 

Any other 
Financial Officials 

    

Supply Chain 
Officials 

    

Heads of Supply 
chain  

0 0 0 0 

Supply chain 
senior Managers 

1 1 0 1 

Total  3 3 1 3 
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5.4 THE MUNICIPAL ENTITY WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE 

   
Section 66 of MSA requires the Accounting Officer of a Municipal entity to report to Municipal entity 
Council on all expenditure incurred by the Municipal entity on staff Salaries, wages, Allowances 
and benefits. This is in line with the requirements of the Public Service Regulations (2002) as well as 
National Treasury Budget and Reporting Regulations SA22 and SA 23 
 
 

5.4.1 PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE 
 

Percentage of Personnel expenditure is significant in the Budgeting process as it reflects on 
current and future efficiencies. The table below indicates the percentage of Municipal entity 
budget spent on two previous Fiscal periods. 

  

Financial Year Total Expenditure Salary 
and allowances 

Total Operating 
Expenditure 

  

2015/2016 4 070 347 3 683 162 

2016/2017 3 965 118 2 242 380 

2018/2019  3 600  000 
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CHAPTER 6 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
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6.1 FINANCIAL MATTERS 

COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

COMMENT ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

Based on the consolidated 2017/18 financial performance, the Agency made a deficit of 

(R918 507). Overall, the Agency is in a bad financial health. 

Note should be taken of the increase of salaries which indicate an average increase by 

6%, compared to the Equitable Share, which only increased by 3%. 

6.2 GRANTS 

COMMENT ON OPERATING TRANSFERS AND GRANTS: 

The Agency is 100% depending on grants and subsidies. 

6.3 ASSET MANAGEMENT 

INTRODUCTION TO ASSET MANAGEMENT 

An asset management unit is established at Lejwe Le Putswa Development Agency 

consisting of the asset manager and an official. Annual asset verification is conducted 

to ensure all assets are accounted for. Missing assets must be explained by the 

responsible person the asset is allocated to on the reasons why the asset is missing.  

When assets are transferred, an asset transfer form must be completed and submitted to 

the asset section to update their records. 

Every personnel member assets are allocated to, are responsible for the safeguarding of 

their assets. Aurecon have previously been appointed to compile an asset maintenance 

plans for the properties. 

There is an approved asset management policy approved by council in 2014 in place, 

this policy is reviewed annually to ensure it is aligned with GRAP requirements. 

The key objectives of the asset management policy are: 

 The accurate recording of essential asset information; 
 

 The accurate recording of asset movements; 

 Exercising strict physical controls over all assets; 

 Treating the assets correctly in the Agency’s Financial Statements ; 

 Providing accurate and meaningful management information; 

 Compliance with the Council’s accounting policies and GRAP; 

 Adequate insuring of assets; 

 Maintenance of Council’s assets; 

 Ensuring that managers are aware of their responsibilities with regard to the assets; 

and 
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 Setting out the standards of management, recording and internal controls so as to 

safeguard the assets against inappropriate utilization or loss.  

COMMENT ON ASSET MANAGEMENT 

Refer to previous table and comments with regards to the additions for the year. 

Repair and Maintenance Expenditure 2017/18 

(R'000) 

 Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget Actual Budget 

variance 

Repairs and maintenance 
expenditure   10 224 -15.52% 

 

COMMENT ON REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURE: 

There are limited funding available to allocate to repairs and maintenance. 

Another challenge was that there were no maintenance plans in place. 

There are no funds for repairs and maintenance, 

6.4 FINANCIAL RATIOS BASED ON KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Liquidity ratios measure the municipality’s ability to pay its bills and are 

calculated by dividing the current assets, due within one year by the 

municipality’s current liabilities, payable within one year. The higher the ratio, 

the better it is for the organization. 

Ratio calculations for the month ended: 30 JUNE 2018 

      
Name of 
municipality: 

 Lejwe Le Putswa Development 
Agency 

  

Financial Year End:  30 June 2018   
      
      
Current ratio: Current Assets /Current Liabilities (Norm 2:1)   
      
   30 JUNE 2017 30 June 2018  
Current Assets  R 3 094 767.00 R 87 273.00  

Current Liabilities  R 3 393 643.00 R 1 620 385.00  

      
Current Ratio  1 0.05 (times) 
  
Comment: The purpose of the current ratio is to determine whether the entity has the ability to 
pay the short term liabilities. The norm for the current ratio is 2:1; the current ratio has dropped 
to 1:0.05, the main reasons for this was: 2018 doesn’t look Good a percentage of 0,05. 

- decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents with R2 952 535; 

- a decrease in Unspent Conditional Grants     R1 519 182. 
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Cash/ Cost Coverage Ratio: ((Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unspent Conditional Grants - Overdraft) + 
Short Term Investment) / Monthly Fixed Operational Expenditure excluding (Depreciation, Amortization, Provision for 
Bad Debts, Acturial Loss, Impairment Loss and Loss on Disposal of Assets) (Norm: 1-3 months) 
    
   30 JUNE 2017 30 June 2018  
Cash and cash equivalents R 3 002 000.00 R 49 465.00  
Unspent Conditional Grants R 2 874 316.00 R 1 355 134.00  

Bank Overdraft  
R - R - 

 

Short term investment R  R   

Monthly fixed operational exp. R                                               - R                  243 712.00    

Depreciation  R 63 762.00 R 68 780.00  

Amortization  R - R -  
Provision for bad debts R - R -  

Actuarial Loss 
 

R -                                          
- 

 

Impairment Loss  R - R -  
Loss on disposal of assets R - R -  
Employee related cost  R 3 944 464.00 R 3 679 284.00  

Operating expenditure  

Cash/ Cost Coverage 

Ratio 

R 2 262 171.00 R 2 765 373.00 

(months) 
  

 5.35 
 

Comment: The purpose of the cash/ cost coverage ratio is to determine the amount of cash 
available to pay monthly operating expenditure, which includes interest, without receiving 
any additional income. Ideally the Agency is not able to pay for the operating expenditure to 
prove sustainability. The Agency is unable to cover all operating expenditure.  
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Grant dependency: Government grants and Subsidies / Total Revenue x 100 
    
   30 JUNE 2017 30 June 2018  
Total revenue  R 6 262 428.00 R 5 838 642.00  

Government grants and Subsidies Grant 

dependency 

R 6 262 428.00 R 5 838 642.00 

(%) 
  

100% 100% 
    

Comment: The purpose of this ratio is to determine how much does the agency/entity depends on grants. The ratios indicated that Lejwe Le Putswa 
Development Agency is 100% dependable on government grants and subsidies received during 2017. The entity only depends on grants. 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 
  6.5. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

Introduction to spending against capital budgets 
 

 
Total Capital Expenditure: 2016/17 to 2017/18 (R’000) 

 

Detail 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Original Budget 60 000 260 000 0 

Adjustment 
Budget 

165 000 260 000 0 

Actual 67 304 88 436 84 401 
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FUNDING OF CAPITAL BUDGET: 

2017/2018 

The budget will be funded from own 

sources. 

6.6 SOURCES OF FINANCE 

With the current financial constraints, limited funding is not available to fund capital 
expenditure. 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

6.7 CASH FLOW 

INTRODUCTION TO CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

Refer to cash flow statement included in this report. 

The Municipal agency is supposed to generate its capital from prior funded projects. 

Unfortunately, most projects funded haven’t been able to realize any revenue. Hence, it 

heavily relied on Grants from FDC and its parent municipalities to sustain its operations. 

The municipality is facing very serious financial constraints that municipal ongoing 

concern is compromised. The municipality yearly gets funding from parent municipality 

to finance administrative issues as well as Salaries.  
        

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 

6.8. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

Lejwe Le Putswa Development Agency has its own supply chain management unit, 

but makes use of 3 Supply Chain Management Committees, Specification, Evaluation 

and Adjudication committees of its parent municipality which has clear segregation of 

duties as regulated by the Supply Chain Management Regulations is effected in these 

committees. Its internal controls are reviewed by the parent municipal Internal Audit 

department on a yearly basis, have continuously given comfort to agency employees and 

the board that the system is fair, transparent and allows for competitiveness in the 

procurement of goods and services. Lejwe Le Putswa Development Agency continues to 

pride itself with internal control processes which we continuously implement to get 

Clean Audit. Municipal Council will continue to ensure that the limited resources at 

our disposal are expended in a manner that translates in to value and growth for 

Lejweleputswa district Municipality. 
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6.9. GRAP COMPLIANCE 

Currently, LDA lacks the capacity to fully produce GRAP Compliant Annual Financial 

Statements and use Consultants who assist and also do skills transfer. 
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General Information 
 

Nature of business and principal activitiesDistrict municipality Mayoral committee from August 2016 

Executive Mayor Cllr S Ngangelizwe 

Speaker  Cllr PP Maleka 

Councillors Cllr ML Tlhone - MMC Health Service and Disaster Management 

Cllr MS Sehloho - MMC LED, Tourism, Agriculture, Youth and SMME 

Cllr MJ Pereko - MMC Community Services 

Cllr MH Ntsebeng - MMC Infrastructure 

Cllr MMT Matlabe - MMC Corporate Services 

Cllr MJ Meli - MMC IDP, PMS, Policy Development and Monitoring 

Cllr JS Mabitla - MMC Finance 

Municipal demarcation code DC18 

Capacity of local authority Low capaity 

Grading of local authority 4 

Accounting Officer Ms PME Kaota 

Chief Finance Officer (CFO) Mr PK Pitso 

Registered office Office of the Municipal Manager 

Corner of Jan Hofmeyer and Tempest Road 

Jim Fouche Park 

Welkom 

9459 

Business address Corner of Jan Hofmeyer and Tempest Road 
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Jim Fouche Park 

Welkom 

9459 

Postal address P.O. Box 2163 

Welkom 

9460 

Bankers ABSA Bank Limited 

Auditors Auditor-General of South Africa 
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PAYE Pay as you earn 

SDL Skills Development Levy 

UIF Unemployement Insurance Fund 

IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards 

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 

 

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate 

accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial 

information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statements 

fairly present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash 

flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 

statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

The accounting officer acknowledges that she is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established 

by the municipality and places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting 

officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of 

error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly 

defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. 

These controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical 

standards in ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above 

reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known 

forms of risk across the municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to minimise it 

by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 

predetermined procedures and constraints. 

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of 

internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual 
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financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 

assurance against material misstatement or deficit. 

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2019 and, in the light of this 

review and the current financial position, she is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to 

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

The municipality depends on grants received from National Government (98%) as RSC levies were abolished in 2006. 

The external auditors are responsible for auditing and reporting on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 6 to 69, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 

approved by the accounting officer on 31 August 2018 and were signed by her: 

 

Palesa Matshidiso Elizabeth Kaota 

Municipal Manager 
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Audit Committee Report 

 

We are pleased to present the Audit Committee report for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 on Lejweleputswa District 

Municipality ("LDM"). 

Audit Committee Members and Attendance 

The Audit Committee ("Committee") consists of five independent members. Members are appointed by the Municipal Council 

in terms of section 166 of Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003). During the 2017/2018 financial year 

four ordinary and two special meetings were held. The attendance is reflected in the table below: 

Name of member Position Attended Apologies Total 

Mr N.S. Marota Chairperson - resigned 1 4 - 4 

December 2017 

Mr L.J. Makoro Member 3 3 6 

Mr N.L. Masoka Member 6 - 6 

Adv L.S. Khonkhe Member - resigned 1 5 - 5 

May 2018 

Mr T.A. Motshoikha Member 5 1 6 

Audit Committee responsibility 

The Audit Committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee charter ("the Charter"). The 



Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 

250 

 

Audit Committee charter is reviewed and tabled before the Council for approval on an annual basis. The last review was on 6th 

December 2017 and serves as a guide for the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has discharged its responsibilities as 

contained in the Charter. 

The effectiveness of internal control 

The system of internal controls applied by the Municipality over financial and risk management is effective, efficient and 

transparent. In line with the MFMA and the King IV Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides 

the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is 

achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested 

enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the 

annual financial statements, and the management report of the Auditor-General South Africa, it was noted that no matters 

were reported that indicate any material deficiencies in the system of internal control or any deviations therefrom. 

Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control over financial reporting for the period under review was 

efficient and effective. 

The quality of in year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the MFMA. 

We are satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Internal Auditors 

of the Municipality during the year under review.  

Evaluation of annual financial statements 

We have: 

 reviewed and discussed the annual financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the Auditor-

General and the Accounting Officer; 

 reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa's management report and management’s response thereto; 

 reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices; 

 reviewed the Municipality's compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;  reviewed significant adjustments 

resulting from the audit. 

We concur with and accept the Auditor-General of South Africa's report the annual financial statements, and are of the opinion 

that the audited annual financial statements should be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General of 

South Africa. 

Internal Audit 

We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the 

Municipality through their audits. Internal Audit has developed and implemented a risk-based three year strategic and annual 

operational audit plan. 
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Audit Committee Report 
 

Auditor-General of South Africa 

The Audit Committee has met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure that there are no material unresolved issues. 

We are satisfied that the Auditor-General is independent of the Municipality. 

 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

Date:   
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018 

 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 3 102 636 709 88 423 471 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 495 008 17 282 

VAT receivable 5 733 605 432 518 

 103 865 322 88 873 271 

Non-Current Assets    

Property, plant and equipment 6 61 463 689 60 434 415 

Intangible assets 7 633 052 850 545 

Investments in controlled entities 8 100 100 

  62 096 841 61 285 060 

Total Assets   165 962 163 150 158 331 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

   

Payables from exchange transactions 9 11 851 456 8 295 670 

Other financial liabilities 10 2 720 968 2 771 923 

Long service awards 11 361 000 552 000 

Employee benefit obligation 11 232 000 162 000 

 15 165 424 11 781 593 

Non-Current Liabilities    

Other financial liabilities 10 6 373 835 8 784 957 

Employee benefit obligation 11 12 963 000 11 317 000 

Long service awards 11 3 604 000 3 275 000 

 22 940 835 23 376 957 

Total Liabilities                      38 106 259            35 158 550  

Net Assets              127 855 904          114 999 781 

Accumulated surplus 127 855 904 114 999 781 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2018 2017 
Restated* 
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Statement of Financial Performance     

 
Revenue 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Operational revenue 13 712 246 811 171 

Interest received  14 8 076 357 7 616 059 

Total revenue from exchange transactions 8 788 603 8 427 230 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Transfer revenue 

   

Transfer and Subsidies 15 120 052 000 116 327 673 

Total revenue 12 128 840 603 124 754 903 

Expenditure    

Employee related cost 16 (69 505 932) (62 845 642) 

Remuneration of councillors 17 (8 803 579) (8 008 412) 

Transfers and subsidies  (7 141 573) (6 846 955) 

Depreciation and amortisation 18 (2 298 245) (3 137 651) 

Impairment / (Impairment loss) 19 (3 997 793) (14 436 810) 

Finance costs 20 (1 025 636) (1 484 485) 

Operating lease expenditure  (941 259) (523 165) 

Inventory consumed 21 (128 533) (23 581) 

Contracted services 22 (9 836 062) (9 605 768) 

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 23 (27 392) (172 383) 

Operational cost                                                                                                      24 

Total expenditure 

Surplus for the year 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2018 2017 
Restated* 

(12 593 961) (10 174 823) 

(116 299 965) (117 259 675) 

12 540 638 7 495 228 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

 

Balance at 01 July 2016 

Changes in net assets 

107 233 549 107 233 549 

Surplus for the year    7 495 228     7 495 228 

Other movements       (9 055) (9 055) 

Total changes                                                                                                                                   7 486 173                  7 486 173 

Opening balance as previously reported 

Adjustments 

114 719 722 114 719 722 

Prior period error (refer to note 30)*        280 059     280 059 

 

Restated* Balance at 01 July 2017 

Changes in net assets 

114 999 781 114 999 781 

Surplus for the year 12 540 638 12 540 638 

Other movements      315 485 315 485 

Total changes                                                                                                                               12 856 123               12 856 123 

Balance at 30 June 2018 127 855 904 127 855 904 

Note(s)  

Figures in Rand 
Accumulated 

surplus 
Total net 
assets 
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Cash Flow Statement 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2018 2017 

 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 

Grants 120 052 000 116 327 673 

Interest income     7 320 622    6 239 814 

Interest income from trading activities 755 735   1 376 244 

Other receipts 712 246      811 171 

 128 840 603 124 754 902 

Payments   

Employee costs (78 309 511) (70 854 054) 

Suppliers (25 345 562) (31 595 458) 

Finance costs   (1 025 636)   (1 484 485) 

                                                 (104 680 709)         (103 933 997) 

Net cash flows from operating activities                                                           27                       23 495 041            20 760 905 

Cash flows from investing activities    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
6 

(2 980 074) (675 232) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6 (6 915 207) (2 353 479) 

Purchase of other intangible assets 7    (171 675) (703 646) 

Net movement of financial assets  -     40 008 521 

Net cash flows from investing activities                                                                                  (10 066 956)                35 013 510 

Cash flows from financing activities   

Movement in other financial liabilities (2 462 077) (2 221 839) 

Employee benefit obligation payments    (621 000) (654 000) 

Net cash flows from financing activities                                                                                  (2 766 864) (2 875 839) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14 213 238   58 596 664 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 88 423 471   29 826 807 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                                             3              102 636 709                88 423 471 
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Budget on Accrual Basis      

Approved 

budget 

Figures in Rand 

Adjustments Final Budget Actual 

amounts 

on 

comparable 

basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

Reference 

Note 37* 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange 

transactions 

Operational revenue 135 500 629 074 764 574 712 246 (52 328) 

Interest received - investment 2 464 000 2 503 455 4 967 455 8 076 357 3 108 902 X1 
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Total revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue from non-exchange 

transactions 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 

Total revenue 

Expenditure 

Employee remuneration 

Remuneration of councillors 

Transfer payments - Other 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Impairment loss/ Reversal of 

impairments Finance cost 

Operating lease expenditure 

Inventory consumed 

Contracted services 

Operational cost 

Total expenditure 

Operating surplus 

Loss on disposal of assets and 

liabilities 

Actual Amount on 

Comparable - (2 195 874) (2 195 874) 12 540 638 14 736 512 

Basis as Presented in the 

Budget and Actual 

Comparative Statement 

2 599 500 3 132 529 5 732 029 8 788 603 3 056 574  

119 998 000 54 000 120 052 000 120 052 000 - X2 

122 597 500 3 186 529 125 784 029 128 840 603 3 056 574  

(74 925 026) 268 948 (74 656 078) (69 505 932) 5 150 146 X2 

(7 914 739) (1 015 365) (8 930 104) (8 803 579) 126 525  

(7 017 000) (259 000) (7 276 000) (7 141 573) 134 427  

(7 521 164) - (7 521 164) (2 298 245) 5 222 919 X3 

- -           - (3 997 793) (3 997 793) X4 

(998 952) - 
(998 952) 

(1 025 636) 
(26 684)  

(741 569) (449 350) (1 190 919) (941 259) 249 660  

(140 940) - (140 940) (128 533) 12 407  

(9 076 469) (2 230 114) (11 306 583) (9 836 062) 1 470 521 X5 

(14 261 641) (1 697 522) (15 959 163) (12 593 961) 3 365 202 X6 

(122 597 500) (5 382 403) (127 979 903) (116 272 573) 11 707 330  

- (2 195 874) (2 195 874) 12 568 030 14 763 904  

-  - - (27 392) (27 392)  
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1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance 

Management Act (Act 56 of 2003). 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 

cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. All figures 

have been rounded to the nearest Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies are disclosed below. 

1.1 Going concern assumption 

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to operate 

as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. 

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 

application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 

which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

Impairment testing 

The recoverable (service) amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of 

value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It 

is reasonably possible that the assumptions may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a 

material adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets. 

Value in use of cash generating assets 

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely 

independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates 

are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in 

use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a 

number of factors, together with economic factors such as inflation and interest. 

Value in use of non-cash generating assets 

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, the remaining service 

potential of the asset is determined. The most appropriate approach selected to determine the remaining service potential is 

dependant on the availability of data and the nature of the impairment. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other assets 

The municipality's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and 

equipment and other assets. This estimate is based on industry norm. This estimate is based on the pattern in which an asset's 

future economic benefits or service potential are expected to be consumed by the municipality. 

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Post retirement benefits 

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis 

using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any 

changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations. 

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used 

to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. The 
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most appropriate discount rate that reflects the time value of money is with reference to market yields at the reporting date on 

government bonds. Where there is no deep market in government bonds with a sufficiently long maturity to match the estimated 

maturity of all the benefit payments, the municipality uses current market rates of the appropriate term to discount shorter term 

payments, and estimates the discount rate for longer maturities by extrapolating current market rates along the yield curve. 

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in 

Note 11. 

Effective interest rate 

The municipality used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows. 

Allowance for impairment 

For receivables an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The 

impairment is measured as the difference between the receivables carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 

cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition. 

1.3 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 

services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 

 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the municipality; 

and 

 the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.  

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 

combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 

acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.  

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 

subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 

property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 

included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 

obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location 

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of 

property, plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the 

recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 

inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 
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Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained 

earnings when the asset is derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 

residual value. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Average useful life 

Not depreciated 

Buildings and paving Straight line 30-45 years 

Plant and machinery Straight line 5-20 years 

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 5-15 years 

Motor vehicles Straight line 7-14 years 

Office equipment (including computers) Straight line 4-9 years 

Emergency equipment Straight line 5-10 years 

Other property, plant and equipment Straight line 5-10 years 

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately. 

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are 

expected to be consumed by the municipality. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each 

reporting date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 

benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is 

accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate. 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the municipality expectations about the 

residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the 

municipality revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an 

accounting estimate. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 

asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 

benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 

the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

1.4 Intangible assets 

An asset is identifiable if it either: 

 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 

exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether 

the entity intends to do so; or 

 arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are 

transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations. 

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in 

the form of a contract. 

Item Depreciation method 

Land Straight line 
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An intangible asset is recognised when: 

 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow 

to the municipality; and 

 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

The municipality assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and 

supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the 

useful life of the asset. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured 

at its fair value as at that date. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable 

limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not 

provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the 

asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 

the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 

its useful life. 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 

intangible assets. 

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

Computer software

 

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the 

financial statements (see note). 

Intangible assets are derecognised: 

 on disposal; or 

 when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. 

1.5 Investments in controlled entities 

In the municipality’s separate annual financial statements, investments in investments in controlled entities are carried at cost. 

The municipality applies the same accounting for each category of investment. 

The municipality recognises a dividend or similar distribution in surplus or deficit in its separate annual financial statements 

when its right to receive the dividend or similar distribution is established. 

Investments in controlled entities that are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy on financial instruments in the 

consolidated annual financial statements, are accounted for in the same way in the controlling entity’s separate annual financial 

statements. 

 

 

Item Depreciation method Average useful life 

Straight line 3  years indefinite 
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1.6 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest 

of another entity. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 

measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest 

method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the 

use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. 

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by the municipality on terms that are not market related. 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge 

an obligation. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

foreign exchange rates. 

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the municipality’s statement of 

financial position. 

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics: 

 Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, 

foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case 

of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the 

‘underlying’). 

 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types 

of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.  It is settled at a 

future date. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of 

financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of 

the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 

liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the municipality estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of 

the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The 

calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective 

interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums 

or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be 

estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of 

a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the municipality uses the contractual cash flows over the full 

contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in 

an arm’s length transaction. 

A financial asset is: 

 cash; 

 a residual interest of another municipality; or 
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 a contractual right to: 

- receive cash or another financial asset from another municipality; or 

- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 

favourable to the entity. 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a 

loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a 

debt instrument. 

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 

 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 

 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates. 

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by the municipality in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors 

specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the 

market. 

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A 

residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as: 

 equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital; 

 a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as 

forming part of the entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or 

 a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net 

assets of the entity. 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or 

financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the municipality had not acquired, issued or 

disposed of the financial instrument. 

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or 

determinable payments, excluding those instruments that: 

 the municipality designates at fair value at initial recognition; or 

 are held for trading. 

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, 

and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. 

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are: 

 derivatives; 

 combined instruments that are designated at fair value; 
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 instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if: 

- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or 

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for 

which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking; 

- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at 

fair value at initial recognition; and 

- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial 

instruments at cost. 

Classification 

The municipality has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 

financial position or in the notes thereto: 
` 

Class Category 

Other receivables1 Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Other receivables2 Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Other financial asset1 Financial asset measured at fair value 

The municipality has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 

financial position or in the notes thereto: 

Initial recognition 

The municipality recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the municipality 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The municipality recognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The municipality measures a financial asset and financial liability, other than those subsequently measures at fair value, initially 

at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial 

liability. 

The municipality measures all other financial assets and financial liabilities initially at fair value. 

The municipality first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the 

municipality analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The 

municipality accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is: 

 nonexchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan. 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The municipality measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:  

 Financial instruments at fair value. 

 Financial instruments at amortised cost. 

 Financial instruments at cost. 

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 

measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 

interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or 

through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility in the case of a financial asset. 
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Fair value measurement considerations 

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the 

municipality establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish 

what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal 

operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, 

willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted 

cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price 

the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market 

transactions, the municipality uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and 

relies as little as possible on municipality-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in 

setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, the 

municipality calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market 

transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market 

data. 

Short-term receivables and payables are not discounted where the initial credit period granted or received is consistent with 

terms used in the public sector, either through established practices or legislation. 

Reclassification 

The municipality does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is: 

 combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or 

 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification. 

Where the municipality cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated from a host 

contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value. This 

requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value. 

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the municipality 

reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available 

becomes the cost. 

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not 

available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument from 

cost to fair value. 

Gains and losses 

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised 

in surplus or deficit. 

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit 

when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process. 

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets 

The municipality assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 

group of financial assets is impaired. 

For amounts due to the municipality, significant financial difficulties of the receivable, probability that the receivable will enter 

bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment. 
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Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the 

amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 

future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 

interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is 

recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 

occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an 

allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised 

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the 

reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Where financial assets are impaired through the use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or 

deficit within operating expenses. When such financial assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant 

allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses. 

Financial assets measured at cost: 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not 

measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as 

the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The municipality derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 

The municipality derecognises a financial asset only when: 

 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived; 

 the municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset; or 

 the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has 

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its 

entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose 

additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the municipality: 

- derecognises the asset; and 

- recognises separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. 

The carrying amount of the transferred asset is allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on the 

basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at 

that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in 

surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer. 

If the municipality transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to 

service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the 

fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the 

servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation 

for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of 

the carrying amount of the larger financial asset. 

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new 

financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial 

liability or servicing liability at fair value. 
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the 

consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the 

previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part 

that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained 

servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the 

part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the municipality has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the transferred asset, the municipality continues to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a 

financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the municipality recognises any revenue on the 

transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the 

revenue, and the associated expenses are offset. 

Financial liabilities 

The municipality removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is 

extinguished - i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived. 

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as 

having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification 

of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability 

and having recognised a new financial liability. 

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to 

another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 

surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction 

are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and 

Transfers). 

Presentation 

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in 

surplus or deficit. 

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as 

revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. 

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or 

expense in surplus or deficit. 

Distributions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assets. Transaction costs incurred on 

residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from net assets. Income tax [where applicable] relating to distributions to 

holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on residual interests are accounted for in accordance with the 

International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes. 

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when 

the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, 

or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred 

asset and the associated liability. 
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1.7 Leases 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 

the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term. 

Any contingent rents are recognised separately as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.8 Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that 

positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition 

of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return that 

generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of 

assets. 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 

expense. 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 
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Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 

knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either: 

 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or 

 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality. 

Identification 

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired. 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired. 

If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the municipality also tests a cash-generating intangible asset with 

an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its 

carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible 

asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end 

of the current reporting period. 

Value in use 

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the 

continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. 

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from 

continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to those 

future cash flows. 

Discount rate 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the 

current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been 

adjusted. 

Recognition and measurement (individual asset) 

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 

reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in 

future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic 

basis over its remaining useful life. 

Cash-generating units 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not 

possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount of the 

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit). 

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified as a 

cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash 

generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the municipality uses management's best estimate of future price(s) that 

could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating: 
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 the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and 

 the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are 

affected by the internal transfer pricing. 

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a change is 

justified. 

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the 

cash-generating unit is determined. 

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying 

amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a pro 

rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as 

impairment losses on individual assets. 

In allocating an impairment loss, the municipality does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:  

 

         its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable); 

 its value in use (if determinable); and 

 zero. 

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other cash-

generating assets of the unit. 

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that noncash-

generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of 

the cash-generating unit. 

Reversal of impairment loss 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 

periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the municipality 

estimates the recoverable amount of that asset. 

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 

estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying 

amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased 

carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 

periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is 

adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 

systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with 

the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for 

individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service 

potential to a cash-generating unit. 

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above 

the lower of: 

 its recoverable amount (if determinable); and 

 the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss 

been recognised for the asset in prior periods. 



Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 

Accounting Policies 

1.8Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

271 

 

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to 

the other assets of the unit. 

1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that 

positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset. 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition 

of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return 

that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of 

assets. 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 

expense. 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 

knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either: 
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1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or 

 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality. 

Identification 

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired. 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be 

impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the municipality also tests a non-cash-generating intangible asset 

with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by 

comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every 

year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for 
impairment before the end of the current reporting period. Value in use 

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential. 

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined using the following 

approach: 

Depreciated replacement cost approach 

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated 

replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. This 

cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication) 

of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the 

current reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the 

basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset. 

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the 

municipality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an 

overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the 

asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or 

services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis 

thus reflects the service potential required of the asset. 

Recognition and measurement 

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 

asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted 

in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 

systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
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1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

Reversal of an impairment loss 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 

periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the 

municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. 

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 

estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 

carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. 

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount 

that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 

prior periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is 

adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), 

on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

1.10 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. 

Short-term employee benefits include items such as: 

 wages, salaries and social security contributions; 

 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the 

absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees 

render the related employee service; 

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting 

period in which the employees render the related service; and  

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars 

and cellphones) for current employees. 

When an employee has rendered service to the municipality during a reporting period, the municipality recognises the 

undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service: 

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the 

undiscounted amount of the benefits, the municipality recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the 

extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and 

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 

entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The municipality measures the expected 

cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the municipality expects to pay as a result of the 

unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 
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The municipality recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the municipality 

has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the 

obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the municipality has no realistic alternative but to make the payments. 

Post-employment benefits 

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of 

employment. 

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which the municipality provides post-employment 

benefits for one or more employees. 

Multi-employer plans are defined contribution plans (other than state plans and composite social security programmes) or 

defined benefit plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common 

control and use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that contribution and benefit 

levels are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that employs the employees concerned. 

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans 

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the municipality pays fixed contributions into a 

separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold 

sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 

When an employee has rendered service to the municipality during a reporting period, the municipality recognises the 

contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service: 

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid 

exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, the municipality recognises that excess as an 

asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or 

a cash refund; and 

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset. 

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting 

period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value 

of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the 

currency and estimated term of the obligation. 
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Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans 

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans. 

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial 

assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined 

benefit liability the municipality recognises actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they 

occur. 

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the 

current period. 

Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the 

benefits are one period closer to settlement. 

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods, 

resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee 

benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit liability the municipality recognises past service cost as an 

expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended. 

Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and qualifying insurance policies. 

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future 

payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods. 

The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derived from the plan assets, together 

with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan (other than those 

included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable by the plan 

itself. 

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:  

 the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date; 

 minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly; 

plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement 

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The municipality measures the resulting asset 

at the lower of: 

 the amount determined above; and 

 the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future 

contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic benefits is determined using a discount rate which 

reflects the time value of money. 

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

The municipality determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with sufficient 

regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that 

would be determined at the reporting date. 

The municipality recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another 

Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset: 

 current service cost; 

 interest cost; 

 the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights; 
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 actuarial gains and losses, which is recognised immediately; 

 past service cost, which is recognised immediately; 

 the effect of any curtailments or settlements; and 

 the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit liability). 

The municipality uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the 

related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as 

the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) sees each period of service as 

giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. 

In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable, 

past service cost, the municipality attributes benefit to periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an 

employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years, the municipality attributes 

benefit on a straight-line basis from: 

 the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are 

conditional on further service); until 

 the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of further benefits under the plan, 

other than from further salary increases. 

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The results of the 

valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material changes in circumstances (including changes in market 

prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date. 

The municipality recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or 

settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or settlement comprises: 

 any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and any resulting change in the fair 

value of the plan assets. 

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the municipality re-measures the obligation (and the related plan 

assets, if any) using current actuarial assumptions (including current market interest rates and other current market prices). 

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit 

obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other 

respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit 

plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement. 

The municipality offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another plan when the municipality has a 

legally enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle obligations under the other plan and intends either to settle the 

obligations on a net basis, or to realise the surplus in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simultaneously. 

Actuarial assumptions 

Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.  

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are to 

be settled.  

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money. The 

currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency and 

estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations. 

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects: 

 estimated future salary increases; 

 the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those 

terms) at the reporting date; and 
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 estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit 

plan, if, and only if, either: 

 those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or 

 past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable manner, 

for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary levels. 

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from both 

inflation and specific changes in medical costs. 

Other long-term employee benefits 

The municipality has an obligation to provide long-term service allowance benefits to all of its employees. According to the rules 

of the long-term service allowance scheme, which the municipality instituted and operates, an employee (who is on the current 

conditions of service), is entitled to a cash allowance, calculated in terms of the rules of the scheme, after 10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 

years of continued service. 

The municipality’s liability is based on an actuarial valuation. The Projected Unit Credit Method is used to value the liabilities. 

Actuarial gains and losses on the long-term service awards are recognised in the statement of financial performance. 

The amount recognised as a liability for long-term service awards is the net total of the following amounts: 

 the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date; 

 minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. 

The municipality recognises the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue, except to the extent that another 

Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset: 

 current service cost; 

 interest cost; 

 the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset; 

 actuarial gains and losses, which is recognised immediately;  past service cost, which is recognised 

immediately; and  the effect of any curtailments or settlements. 

 1.11 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 

 the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle 

the obligation; and 

 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 

reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected 

to be required to settle the obligation. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 

reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality 

settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does 

not exceed the amount of the provision. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is 

no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the 

obligation. 
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Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 

increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating expenditure. 

If the municipality has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 

measured as a provision. 
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1.11 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when the municipality: 

 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 

- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 

- the principal locations affected; 

- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 

terminated; 

- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 

- when the plan will be implemented; and 

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 

plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 

 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 

  not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the municipality. 

A contingent liability: 

 a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the municipality; or  a 

present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because: 

- it is not probable than an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 

settle the obligation; 

- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 29. 

1.12 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 

increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly 

gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates. 

Interest and investment income 

Revenue arising from the use by others of municipality assets yielding interest or similar distributions is recognised when: 

 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; and 

 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

Interest charged on debtor accounts are limited to the principal debt as prescribed by the National Credit Act.  

1.13 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a municipality, which 

represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 
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Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in 

the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be 

returned to the transferor. 

1.13 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can 

exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit. 

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 

directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in 

exchange. 

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or not they pay 

taxes. 

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other law 

enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations. 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, a municipality 

either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to 

another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, 

but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as 

specified. 

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a 

transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality. 

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes. 

Recognition 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent 

that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-

exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an 

amount of revenue equal to that reduction. 

Measurement 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the 

municipality. 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to 

the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. 

Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 

obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is 

subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is 

recognised as revenue. 

Transfers 

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the 

transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. 

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and 

satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. 
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Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind 

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future economic 

benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably. 

1.13 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Services in-kind 

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the municipality recognise services in-kind that are significant to its operations and/or 

service delivery objectives as assets and recognise the related revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or 

service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably. 

Where services in-kind are not significant to the municipality’s operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or do not satisfy 

the criteria for recognition, the municipality disclose the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting period. 

1.14 Investment income 

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 1.15 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.16 Unauthorised expenditure 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 

 overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 

 expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with 

the purpose of the main division. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in 

the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and 

where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.17  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 

exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 

performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 

expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.17 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the 

Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the 

municipality’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. 

All expenditure relating to irregular expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the 

year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 

recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 
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1.18  Grants in aid 

The municipality transfers money to individuals, organisations and other sectors of government from time to time. When making 

these transfers, the municipality does not: 

 receive any goods or services directly in return, as would be expected in a purchase or sale transaction; expect to 

be repaid in future; or 

 expect a financial return, as would be expected from an investment. 

These transfers are recognised in the statement of financial performance as expenses in the period that the events giving raise 

to the transfer occurred. 

1.19 Commitments 

Items are classified as commitments where the municipality commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in the 

outflow of resources. 

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability, but are included in the disclosure notes in 

the following cases: 

 approved and contracted commitments; 

 where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has been awarded at the reporting date; and where 

disclosure is required by a specific standard of GRAP. 

1.20 Budget information 

The approved budget is prepared on the accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome 

objectives. 

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2017/07/01 to 2018/06/30. 

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted 

amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. 

1.21 Related parties 

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence 

over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. 

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic 

financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the 

venturers). 

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party, 

regardless of whether a price is charged. 

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over 

those policies. 

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including 

those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to 

perform such functions. 

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 

influenced by, that management in their dealings with the municipality. 

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction occurs within 

normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is 

reasonable to expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances 

and terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity's legal mandate. 
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Where the municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipality discloses narrative 

information about the nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity’s financ ial 

statements to understand the effect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements. 

1.22 Events after the reporting date 

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the financial statements. 

Events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements. 

1.23 VAT 

The municipality accounts for VAT on the cash basis.  The municipality is liable to account for VAT at the standard rate (14%) in 

terms of section 7 (1) (a) of the VAT Act in respect of the supply of goods and services, except where the supplies are 

specifically zero-rated in terms of section 11, exempted in terms of section 12 of the VAT or are scoped out for VAT purposes. 

The entity accounts for VAT on a monthly basis. 
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2. New standards and interpretations 

2.1 Standards and interpretations not effective and not adopted in the current year 

In the current year, the municipality has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current 

financial year and that are relevant to its operations: 

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory 

for the municipality’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 or later periods: 

GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statements 

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in controlled 

entities, joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Preparation of separate financial statements, Disclosure, Transitional provisions and 

effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed. 

GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial Statements 

The objective of this Standard is to establish principles for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial 

statements when an entity controls one or more other entities. 

To meet this objective, the Standard: 

-an entity (the controlling entity) that controls one or more other entities (controlled entities) to present consolidated financial 

statements; defines the principle of control, and establishes control as the basis for consolidation; 

-sets out how to apply the principle of control to identify whether an entity controls another entity and therefore must 

consolidate that entity;-sets out the accounting requirements for the preparation of consolidated financial statements; and -

defines an investment entity and sets out an exception to consolidating particular controlled entities of an investment entity. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Control, Accounting requirements, Investment Entities: Fair value requirement, Transitional 

provisions and Effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed. 

GRAP 36: Investments in Associates & joint ventures 

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures and to set out 

the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Significant influence, Equity method, Application of the equity method, Separate financial 

statements, Transitional provisions and Effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 
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The impact of this standard is currently being assessed. 

GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements 

The objective of this Standard is to establish principles for financial reporting by entities that have an interest in 

arrangements that are controlled jointly (i.e. joint arrangements). 

To meet this objective, the Standard defines joint control and requires an entity that is a party to a joint arrangement to 

determine the type of joint arrangement in which it is involved by assessing its rights and obligations and to account for 

those rights and obligations in accordance with that type of joint arrangement. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Joint arrangements, financial statements and parties to a joint arrangement, Separate 

financial statements, Transitional provisions and Effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed. 

GRAP 38: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

The objective of this Standard is to require an entity to disclose information that enables users of its financial statements to 

evaluate: 

-the nature of, and risks associated with, its interests in controlled entities, unconsolidated controlled entities, joint 

arrangements and associates, and structured entities that are not consolidated; and -the effects of those interests 

on its financial position, financial performance and cash flows. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Disclosing information about interests in other entities, Significant judgements and 

assumptions, Investment entity status, Interests in controlled entities, Interests in joint arrangements and associates, 

Interests in structured entities that are not consolidated, Non-qualitative ownership interests, Controlling interests acquired 

with the intention of disposal, Transitional provisions and Effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

The adoption of this standard is not expected to impact on the results of the entity, but may result in more disclosure than is 

currently provided in the annual financial statements. 

GRAP 110: Living and Non-living Resources 

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the: 

-recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements for living resources; and -disclosure 

requirements for non-living resources 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Recognition, Measurement, Depreciation, Impairment, Compensation for impairment, 

Transfers, Derecognition, Disclosure, Transitional provisions and Effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed. 

 



Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 

286 

 

IGRAP 18: Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Recognition and Derecognition of Land 

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP applies to the initial recognition and derecognition of land in an entity’s 

financial statements. It also considers joint control of land by more than one entity. 

When an entity concludes that it controls the land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of 

GRAP, it applies the applicable Standard of GRAP, i.e. the Standard of GRAP on Inventories, Investment Property (GRAP 

16), Property, Plant and Equipment (GRAP 17) or Heritage Assets. As this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP does 

not apply to the classification, initial and subsequent measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements of land, the 

entity applies the applicable Standard of GRAP to account for the land once control of the land has been determined. An 

entity also applies the applicable Standards of GRAP to the derecognition of land when it concludes that it does not control 

the land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP. 

In accordance with the principles in the Standards of GRAP, buildings and other structures on the land are accounted for 

separately. These assets are accounted for separately as the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the 

land differs from those included in buildings and other structures. The recognition and derecognition of buildings and other 

structures are not addressed in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP. 

The effective date of the interpretation is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date. 

GRAP 12 (as amended 2016): Inventories 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Inventories resulted from inconsistencies in measurement requirements in GRAP 

23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the treatment of transaction costs. Other changes resulted from 

changes made to IPSAS 12 on Inventories (IPSAS 12) as a result of the IPSASB’s Improvements to IPSASs 2015 issued in 

March 2016. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in 

nonexchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12) 

-IPSASB amendments: To align terminology in GRAP 12 with that in IPSAS 12. The term “ammunition” in IPSAS 12 was 

replaced with the term “military inventories” and provides a description of what it comprises in accordance with Government 

Finance Statistics terminology 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 16 (as amended 2016): Investment Property 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Investment Property resulted from editorial changes to the original text and 

inconsistencies in measurement requirements in GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the 

treatment of transaction costs. Other changes resulted from changes made to IAS 40 on Investment Property (IAS 40) as a 

result of the IASB’s amendments on Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle issued in December 2013. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in 

nonexchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12); and To clarify the measurement 

principle when assets may be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and 

nonmonetary assets. 
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-IASB amendments: To clarify the interrelationship between the Standards of GRAP on Transfer of Functions between 

Entities  

Not under Common Control and Investment Property when classifying investment property or owner-occupied property. 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 17 (as amended 2016): Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment resulted from editorial changes to the original text 

and inconsistencies in measurement requirements in GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the 

treatment of transaction costs. Other changes resulted from changes made to IPSAS 17 on Property, Plant and Equipment 

(IPSAS 17) as a result of the IPSASB’s Improvements to IPSASs 2014 issued in January 2015 and Improvements to 

IPSASs 2015 issued in March 2016. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in 

nonexchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12); and To clarify the measurement 

principle when assets may be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and 

nonmonetary assets. 

-IPSASB amendments: To clarify the revaluation methodology of the carrying amount and accumulated depreciation when 

an item of property, plant, and equipment is revalued; To clarify acceptable methods of depreciating assets; To align 

terminology in GRAP 17 with that in IPSAS 17. The term “specialist military equipment” in IPSAS 17 was replaced with the 

term “weapon systems” and provides a description of what it comprises in accordance with Government Finance Statistics 

terminology; and To define a bearer plant and include bearer plants within the scope of GRAP 17, while the produce 

growing on bearer plants will remain within the scope of GRAP 27. 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 27 (as amended 2016): Agriculture 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Agriculture resulted from changes made to IPSAS 27 on Agriculture (IPSAS 27) 

as a result of the IPSASB’s Improvements to IPSASs 2015 issued in March 2016. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-IPSASB amendments: To define a bearer plant and include bearer plants within the scope of GRAP 17, while the produce 

growing on bearer plants will remain within the scope of GRAP 27. In addition to the changes made by the IPSASB, a 

consequential amendment has been made to GRAP 103 on Heritage Assets. The IPSASB currently does not have a 

pronouncement on this topic. 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 
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GRAP 21 (as amended 2016): Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Impairment of Non-cash Generating Assets resulted from changes made to 

IPSAS 21 on Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets (IPSAS 21) as a result of the IPSASB’s Impairment of Revalued 

Assets issued in March 2016. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-IPSASB amendments: To update the Basis of conclusions and Comparison with IPSASs to reflect the IPSASB’s recent 

decision on the impairment of revalued assets. 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 26 (as amended 2016): Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Amendments Changes to the Standard of GRAP on Impairment of Cash Generating Assets resulted from changes made to 

IPSAS 26 on Impairment of Cash-Generating Assets (IPSAS 26) as a result of the IPSASB’s Impairment of Revalued 

Assets issued in March 2016. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-IPSASB amendments: To update the Basis of conclusions and Comparison with IPSASs to reflect the IPSASB’s recent 

decision on the impairment of revalued assets. 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 31 (as amended 2016): Intangible Assets 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Intangible Assets resulted from inconsistencies in measurement requirements in 

GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the treatment of transaction costs. Other changes 

resulted from changes made to IPSAS 31 on Intangible Assets (IPSAS 31) as a result of the IPSASB’s Improvements to 

IPSASs 2014 issued in January 2015. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-General improvements: To add the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in 

nonexchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12); and To clarify the measurement 

principle when assets may be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and 

nonmonetary assets 

-IPSASB amendments: To clarify the revaluation methodology of the carrying amount and accumulated depreciation when 

an item of intangible assets is revalued; and to clarify acceptable methods of depreciating assets 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality’s annual financial statements. 
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GRAP 103 (as amended 2016): Heritage Assets 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Heritage Assets resulted from inconsistencies in measurement requirements in 

GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the treatment of transaction costs. Other changes 

resulted from editorial changes to the original text. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in 

nonexchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12); and To clarify the measurement 

principle when assets may be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and 

nonmonetary assets 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2018 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 106 (as amended 2016): Transfers of functions between entities not under common control 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control resulted from 

changes made to IFRS 3 on Business Combinations (IFRS 3) as a result of the IASB’s amendments on Annual 

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle issued in December 2013. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-IASB amendments: To require contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability to be measured at fair 

value at each reporting period. 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2019. 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2019 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 20: Related parties 

The objective of this standard is to ensure that a reporting entity’s annual financial statements contain the disclosures 

necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the 

existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties. 

An entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this standard referred to 

as the reporting entity) shall apply this standard in: -identifying related party relationships and transactions; 

-identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related parties; -

identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and -determining 

the disclosures to be made about those items. 

This standard requires disclosure of related party relationships, transactions and outstanding balances, including 

commitments, in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the reporting entity in accordance with the Standard 

of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. This standard also applies to individual annual financial 

statements. 

Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related parties 

may affect users’ assessments of the financial position and performance of the reporting entity and its ability to deliver 

agreed services, including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures that the 

reporting entity is transparent about its dealings with related parties. 
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The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or 

exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint 

control. As a minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity: 

1) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person: 

-has control or joint control over the reporting entity; 

-has significant influence over the reporting entity; 

-is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity. 

2) An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply: 

-the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled entity and fellow 

controlled entity is related to the others); 

-one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of an 

economicentity of which the other entity is a member); -both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; 

-one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity; 

-the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the entity or an entity related to the entity. 

If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity; 

-the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and 

-a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the management of that entity (or its 

controlling entity). 

The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the 

reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

The standard elaborates on the definitions and identification of: 

-Close member of the family of a person; 

-Management; 

-Related parties; 

-Remuneration; and 

-Significant influence 

The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia, for the disclosure of: 

-Control; 

-Related party transactions; and  

-Remuneration of management 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents 

The objective of this Standard is to outline principles to be used by an entity to assess whether it is party to a principalagent 

arrangement, and whether it is a principal or an agent in undertaking transactions in terms of such an arrangement. The 

Standard does not introduce new recognition or measurement requirements for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities 

that result from principal-agent arrangements. The Standard does however provide guidance on whether revenue, 

expenses, assets and/or liabilities should be recognised by an agent or a principal, as well as prescribe what information 

should be disclosed when an entity is a principal or an agent. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying whether an entity is a principal or agent, Accounting by a principal or agent, 

Presentation, Disclosure, Transitional provisions and Effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 
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The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe the accounting for service concession arrangements by the grantor, a public 

sector entity. 

It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition and measurement of a service concession asset, recognition and 

measurement of liabilities, other liabilities, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets, other revenues, presentation and 

disclosure, transitional provisions, as well as the effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables 

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 

disclosure of statutory receivables. 

It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition, derecognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure, transitional 

provisions, as well as the effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The municipality expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset 

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP provides guidance to the grantor where it has entered into a service 

concession arrangement, but only controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, a significant residual 

interest in a service concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the arrangement does not constitute a lease. 

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP shall not be applied by analogy to other types of transactions or arrangements. 

A service concession arrangement is a contractual arrangement between a grantor and an operator in which the operator 

uses the service concession asset to provide a mandated function on behalf of the grantor for a specified period of time. The 

operator is compensated for its services over the period of the service concession arrangement, either through payments, or 

through receiving a right to earn revenue from third party users of the service concession asset, or the operator is given 

access to another revenue-generating asset of the grantor for its use. 

Before the grantor can recognise a service concession asset in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Service 

Concession Arrangements: Grantor, both the criteria as noted in paragraph .01 of this Interpretation of the Standards of 

GRAP need to be met. In some service concession arrangements, the grantor only controls the residual interest in the 

service concession asset at the end of the arrangement, and can therefore not recognise the service concession asset in 

terms of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor. 

A consensus is reached, in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP, on the recognition of the performance obligation 

and the right to receive a significant interest in a service concession asset. 

The effective date of the interpretation is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 
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The municipality expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the 

interpretation. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements. 

GRAP 18 (as amended 2016): Segment Reporting 

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Segment Reporting resulted from editorial and other changes to the original text 

have been made to ensure consistency with other Standards of GRAP. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

-General improvements: An appendix with illustrative segment disclosures has been deleted from the Standard as the 

National Treasury has issued complete examples as part of its implementation guidance. 

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2019 

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the 

amendment 

The adoption of this standard is not expected to impact on the results of the entity, but may result in more disclosure than is 

currently provided in the annual financial statements. 
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3. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 2 000 2 000 

Bank balances 11 977 640 37 143 152 

Short-term deposits 90 657 069 51 278 319 

 102 636 709 88 423 471 

None of the bank accounts were pledged as security. 

The municipality had the following bank accounts 
` 

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances 

 30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 

ABSA Bank - cheque account 

134000017 

11 977 640 37 626 054 15 538 687 11 977 640 37 361 763 14 632 398 

First National Bank - call 

account - 62621625592 

- 10 708 412 10 001 877 - 10 708 412 10 001 877 

First National Bank - call 

account - 62601644801 

- - 5 087 786 - 5 087 786 - 

Standard Bank - call account 

248538810007 

- - 85 725 - 85 725 - 

Standard Bank - call account 

248388100008 

- - 2 703 - - 2 703 

Standard Bank - call account 

248533810010 

- - 14 319 - - 14 319 

ABSA Bank - fixed account 

2076809294 

- 20 282 082 - - 20 282 082 - 

Nedbank - fixed account 

7662020096 

- 20 287 825 - - 20 287 825 - 

ABSA Bank - call account   

4092614160  

51 439 - - 51 439 - - 

ABSA Bank - call account 

2077459098 

30 483 740 - - 30 483 740 - - 

ABSA Bank - call account 

4094589145 

10 010 000 - - 10 010 000 - - 

ABSA Bank - call account 

4094589674 

10 010 000 - - 10 010 000 - - 

Nedbank - call account 

037662020096/000042 

20 053 068 - - 20 053 068 - - 

Standard Bank - call account 

248538810 

20 048 822 - - 20 048 822 - - 

Total 102 634 709 88 904 373 30 731 097 102 634 709 93 813 593 24 651 297 

4. Receivables from non-exchange transactions   

Salary advances 7 276 - 

Deposits 4 700 4 700 

Other receivables (24 715) (24 715) 

Sundry receivables 29 283 682 28 002 795 

Less: Allowance for impairment (28 775 934) (27 965 498) 

 495 009 17 282 

Included in other receivables are irregular expenditure incurred during the financial year.  Refer to note 34. 
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None of the receivables were pledged as security. 

4. Receivables from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Credit quality of receivables from non-exchange transactions 

The credit quality of receivables from non-exchange transactions that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed 

by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates. 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions past due but not impaired 

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired are as follows: 

3 months past due 

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment 

495 009 17 282 

Opening balance 27 965 498 13 887 813 

Provision for impairment  3 997 793 14 436 810 

Payments and adjustments (3 187 357) (359 125) 

 28 775 934 27 965 498 

Management is of the opinion that the carrying value of the sundry receivables are approximate their fair values. 

The fair value of sundry receivables was determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements 

entered into between the municipality and the debtor.  The current payment ratios of sundry receivables were also taken into 

account for fair value determination. 

5. VAT receivable 

VAT receivable 733 605 432 518 

 

The municipality is registered for VAT on the cash basis. VAT owed by SARS amounts to R 576 820.74. The carrying value 

amount of VAT receivable approximates fair value due to its short nature.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

295 

 

Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

6. Property, plant and equipment 

Buildings 

Emergency equipment 

Furniture and fixtures 

Land 

Motor vehicles 

Office equipment 

Plant and equipment 

Work in progress 

Total 

6. Property, plant and 

equipment (continued) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018 

 Opening 

balance 

Additions Disposals Other 

movements 

Depreciation Total 

Land 2 870 000 - - - - 2 870 000 

Buildings 53 412 682 21 880 (8 889) 185 960 (2 496 604) 51 115 029 

Plant and equipment 96 162 - (55 091) 93 961 (10 770) 124 262 

Furniture and fixtures 1 420 693 445 461 (161 990) 888 059 (207 593) 2 384 630 

Motor vehicles 1 365 917 1 518 813 - 49 262 (164 662) 2 769 330 

Office equipment 1 081 987 408 996 (84 119) 228 471 (206 918) 1 428 417 

Work in progress - 584 924 - - - 584 924 

Emergency equipment 186 974 - - 14 565 (14 442) 187 097 

 60 434 415 2 980 074 (310 089) 1 460 278 (3 100 989) 61 463 689 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017     

 Opening 

balance 
Additions Disposals Other 

movements 
Depreciation Total 

Land 2 870 000 - - - - 2 870 000 

Buildings 55 596 986 238 361 (59 178) 47 151 (2 410 639) 53 412 681 

Plant and equipment 108 330 10 413 (34 170) - 11 590 96 163 

Furniture and fixtures 1 182 314 39 782 (244 324) 217 148 225 774 1 420 694 

Motor vehicles 1 437 955 - - 29 799 (101 838) 1 365 916 

Office equipment 1 210 008 383 136 (1 465 039) 1 288 661 (334 779) 1 081 987 

Emergency equipment 186 860 3 540 (17 186) - 13 760 186 974 

 62 592 453 675 232 (1 819 897) 1 582 759 (2 596 132) 60 434 415 

Pledged as security 

None of the assets were pledged as security. 

 

  

 2018   2017  

Cost / Valuation Accumulated 
depreciation 
and 
accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value Cost / 

Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 
and 
accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value 

74 199 161 (23 084 132) 51 115 029 74 186 169 (20 773 487) 53 412 682 

348 587 (161 490) 187 097 348 587 (161 613) 186 974 

6 833 212 (4 448 581) 2 384 631 6 549 741 (5 129 047) 1 420 694 

2 870 000 - 2 870 000 2 870 000 - 2 870 000 

3 412 408 (643 079) 2 769 329 1 893 595 (527 678) 1 365 917 

5 181 827 (3 753 410) 1 428 417 4 856 950 (3 774 963) 1 081 987 

518 135 (393 873) 124 262 573 226 (477 065) 96 161 

584 924 - 584 924 - - - 

93 948 254 (32 484 565) 61 463 689 91 278 268 (30 843 853) 60 434 415 
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Other information 

Detail of other movements in reconciliation 

Depreciation on transfers - (92 760) 

Depreciation on disposal 259 856 1 577 997 

Revaluation on Accumulated Depreciation - 40 011 

Impairment - (5 169) 

Prior period error - useful life adjustment 1 200 422 62 680 

 1 460 278 1 582 759 

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for 

inspection at the registered office of the municipality. 

7. Intangible assets 

Computer software 

7. Intangible assets 

(continued) 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018 

Opening Additions Amortisation Total balance Computer software 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017 

Computer software 

8. Investments in controlled entities 

Name of 

company        % %           Carrying          Carrying 

 holding     holding       amount 2018     amount 2017 

   2018 2017 

Lejwe le Putswa Development                                                              100.00 %    100.00 % 100 100 

Agency (SOC) Ltd 

 

The carrying amounts of the controlled entities are shown net of impairment losses. 

 2018   2017  

Cost / Valuation Accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value Cost / 

Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value 

2 823 381 (2 190 329) 633 052 2 651 706 (1 801 161) 850 545 

Opening balance 

850 545 171 675 (389 167) 633 052 

Additions Disposals Amortisation Total 

5 447 602 703 646 (5 053 721) (246 982) 850 545 



Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

297 

 

Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

9. Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables 3 960 128 1 125 186 

Accrued leave pay 5 764 344 5 624 145 

Accrued bonus 2 021 834 1 441 189 

Retention creditors 105 150 105 150 

 11 851 456 8 295 670 

10. Other financial liabilities 

At amortised cost 

  

ABSA loan (3044406667) 9 094 803 11 556 716 

 

The loan is with ABSA Bank Limited and the repayments are made on a six monthly basis.  The loan will be redeemed on 

28 February 2021 and the loan bear interest at prime less 0.25% 

The municipality did not default on any of the other financial liabilities, whether it be on the capital or the interest portions,and 

none of the terms attached to the other financial liabilities were renegotiated.   

Non-current liabilities 

At amortised cost0  6 373 835 8 784 957 

 

Current liabilities   

At amortised cost 2 720 968 2 771 923 
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Defined benefit plan 

The plan is a post employment medical benefit plan. 

Post retirement medical aid plan 

The municipality provides certain post-retirement health care benefits by funding the medical aid contributions of qualifying 

retired members of the municipality. According to the rules of the Medical Aid Funds, with which the municipality is 

associated, a member (who is on the current Conditions of Service) is entitled to remain a continued member of such medical 

aid fund on retirement, in which case the municipality is liable for a certain portion of the medical aid membership fee. The 

municipality operates as unfunded defined benefit plan for these qualifying employees. No other post-retirement benefits are 

provided to these employees. 

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 

30 June 2018 by ZAQEN Consultants and Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related 

current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

The municipality makes monthly contributions for health care arrangements to the following medical aid schemes: 

* Bonitas 

* Hosmed 

* Keyhealth 

 
* LA Health 

* Samwumed 

 

 

The members of the post-employment health care benefit plan are made up as follows: 

In service members (employees) 100 99 

In service members (employees) non-members - 5 

Continuation members (retirees, widowers and orphans) 4 3 

               104                        107 

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as 

follows: 

Employee benefit obligation (non-current portion) 12 963 000 11 317 000 

Employee benefit obligation (current portion) 232 000 162 000 

 13 195 000 11 479 000 

 

 

The following main assumptions were used in performing the 

valuation at 30 June 2018 

  

 

Discount rate Yield curve Yield curve 
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Movement in the present value of the employee benefit obligation   

Opening balance 11 479 000 10 367 000 

Current service cost 730 000 724 000 

Interest 1 180 000 1 112 000 

Actuarial (gain) / losses (88 000) (635 000) 

Benefits paid (106 000) (89 000) 

 13 195 000 11 479 000 

 (continued) 

Consumer price inflation (CPI) Difference 

between 

nominal and 

yield curves 

Difference 

between 

nominal and 

yield curves 

Medical aid contribution inflation CPI+1% CPI+1% 

Net effective discount rate 

Health care cost inflation 

Yield curve 

based 

Yield curve 

based 

The effect of a one percent increase and decrease in the medical aid 

inflation assumption is as follows: 

Increase 1% Decrease 1% 

Employer benefit liability 13 430 000 12 881 000 

Employer service cost 732 000 704 000 

Employer interest cost 1 315 000 1 261 000 

Long service awards 

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 

30 June 2018 by ZAQEN Consultants and Actuaries. The projected unit credit funding method has been used to determine 

the past - service liabilities at the valuation date and the projected annual expense in the year following the valuation date. 

The expected value of each employee's long service award is projected to the next interval by allowing for future salary growth. 

Long service benefits are awarded in the form of leave days and a percentage of salary.  We have converted the awarded 

leave days into a percentage of the employee's annual salary.  The conversion is based on a 250 working day year. 

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows: 

Carrying value 

Long service awards (non-current portion) 3 604 000 3 275 000 

Long service awards (current portion) 361 000 552 000 

 3 965 000 3 827 000 

Changes in the present value of the long service award obligation are as follows:   

Opening balance 3 827 000 4 076 000 

Benefits paid (515 000) (565 000) 

Net expense recognised 653 000 316 000 

3 965 000 3 827 000 
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Net expense of the long service awards obligation recognised in the statement of financial performance  

Current service cost 359 000 376 000 

Interest cost 374 000 428 000 

Actuarial (gain) / losses (80 000) (488 000) 

 653 000 316 000 

Key assumptions used 

Assumptions used at the reporting date:  

Discount rate Yield curve Yield curve 

Consumer price inflation (CPI) Difference 

between 

nominal and 

real yield curve 

Difference 

between 

nominal and 

real yield curve 

Nominal salary increase rate Equal to CPI Equal to CPI 
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12. Revenue 

Transfers and subsidies 120 052 000 116 327 673 

Interest received - investment 7 320 622 6 239 814 

Interest received - trading 755 735 1 376 245 

Operational revenue 712 246 811 171 

 128 840 603 124 754 903 

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or 

services are as follows: 

  

Interest received - trading 755 375 1 376 245 

Operational revenue 712 246 811 171 

Interest received - investment 7 320 622 6 239 814 

 8 788 243 8 427 230 

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions 
is as follows: 

Transfer revenue 

  

Transfers and subsidies 120 052 000 116 327 673 

 

13. Operational revenue   

Operational revenue 712 246 811 171 

 

14. Interest revenue 

Interest revenue 

  

Interest received - investment and cash and cash equivalents 7 320 622 6 239 814 

Interest received - trading 755 735 1 376 245 

8 076 357 7 616 059 

15. Transfers and subsidies 

Equitable share 30 602 000 29 027 000 

Financial Management Grant 1 250 000 1 250 000 

Expanded Public Works Programme 1 000 000 1 000 000 

Levy Replacement (Transitional) Grant 84 870 000 82 700 000 

Rural Roads Asset Management Systems Grant 2 276 000 2 185 000 

Local Government Sector Education and Training Authority Grant 54 000 165 673 

 120 052 000 116 327 673 

Conditional and Unconditional 

Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received: 

  

Conditional grants received 4 580 000 4 600 673 

Unconditional grants received 115 472 000 111 727 000 

 120 052 000 116 327 673 
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Equitable Share 

In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members. 

Rural Roads Asset Management Grant 

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 231 508 

Current-year receipts 2 276 000 2 185 000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2 276 000) (2 185 000) 

Other (231 508) 

The purpose of the grant is for the provision of systems to collect rural road, traffic data and rural access bridges. 

Financial Management Grant 

Current-year receipts 1 250 000 1 250 000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1 250 000) (1 250 000) 

                                                                                                                                                -                              - 

The purpose of the grant is to promote and support reforms in financial management by building capacity in municipalities to 

implement the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA). 

Expanded Public Works Programme 

Current-year receipts  1 000 000  1 000 000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1 000 000) (1 000 000) 

                                                                                                                                                                     -                             - 

The Expanded Public Works Programme is a operational grant which is used by the municipality on its own discretion. 

15. Transfers and subsidies 

Municipal System Improvement Grant 

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 106 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (106) 

- 

Levy Replacement (Transitional) Grant   

Current-year receipts 84 870 000 82 700 000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (84 870 000) (82 700 000) 

                                                                                                                                                                   -                             - 

The Levy Replacement (Transitional) Grant is a operational grant which is used by the municipality on its own discretion, which 

is mainly to fund its operational activities. 

Local Government Sector Education and Training Authority Grant 

Current-year receipts 54 000 165 673 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (54 000) (165 673) 

                                                                                                                                                                       -                              - 

- 

- - 

- 
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The purpose of the grant is to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the skills development through provision of 

bursaries and the promotion and support of the integration of theoretical learning with workplace training.  

 

16. Employee related costs 

Basic 38 803 124 35 143 264 

Bonus - 13th cheque 3 218 870 2 886 962 

Medical aid - company contributions 3 756 470 3 324 642 

UIF 213 884 209 998 

Leave pay provision charge 2 507 506 1 812 931 

Defined contribution plans 2 459 178 1 494 851 

Overtime payments 72 908 89 177 

Travel allowance 6 360 811 5 560 987 

Housing benefits and allowances 469 333 459 674 

Cellphone allowance 253 325 101 824 

Contribution to pension and provident fund  6 716 940 6 043 480 

Standby allowance 177 910 206 758 

Group life insurance 625 855 552 071 

                                                                                                                                                      65 636 114            57 886 619 

Reconciliation of employee related cost   

 65 636 114 57 886 619 

Municipal manager 1 405 442 1 454 582 

Chief finance officer 1 269 888 1 156 148 

Manager LED 174 836 759 362 

Manager corporate services 378 413 907 951 

Manager environmental health and disaster management 641 239 680 979 

 69 505 932 62 845 641 
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Remuneration of Ms PME Kaota - Municipal Manager 

Annual Remuneration 703 869 821 578 

Car Allowance 189 236 241 654 

Performance Bonuses 164 236 68 465 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 137 165 159 304 

Cellphone allowance 34 485 36 000 

Housing allowance 77 000 84 000 

Acting allowance 40 795 43 581 

Bonus 58 656 - 

 1 405 442 1 454 582 

2018: Mr Pitso was acting for the month of July 2017 and Mr Mthombeni was acting for the month of April 2018 and May 2018  

2017: Mr Pitso was acting for the month July 2016 and Mr Mthombeni was acting for the month of December 2016 and January 

2017.  

Remuneration of Mr PK Pitso - Chief Finance Officer 

Annual Remuneration 648 514 672 695 

Car Allowance 193 479 156 753 

Performance Bonuses 146 454 51 132 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 161 428 178 957 

Cellphone Allowance 30 000 30 000 

Housing Allowance 60 000 60 000 

Bonus 17 435 - 

Acting Allowance 12 578 6 612 

 1 269 888 1 156 149 

2018:Me Gqoli was acting as CFO for the month of July 2017. 

2017:Me Gqoli was acting as CFO for the month of July 2016. 

Remuneration of Mr TA Jonas - Manager LED 

  

Annual Remuneration - 378 041 

Car Allowance - 80 000 

Performance Bonuses - 14 937 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 93 870 

Cellphone Allowance - 4 500 

Housing Allowance - 47 388 

Acting Allowance - 41 506 

Backpay - 99 120 

                         -                759 362 
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2017: Mr Skele was acting as the Manager - LED from March 2017 to June 2017. 

Remuneration of Mr MJ Mahlanyane - Manager Corporate Services 

Annual Remuneration 80 837 533 020 

Car Allowance 13 021 157 112 

Performance Bonuses - 40 717 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 12 890 153 816 

Cellphone Allowance 1 500 18 000 

Acting Allowance - 5 286 

                                                                                                                                                              108 248                 907 951      

2018; Mr Mahlanyane resigned during August 2017. 

2017: Mr Petersen was acting for the months of May 2017 and June 2017 and for the months August 2015 and April 2016. 

Remuneration of Mr MM Mthombeni - Manager Environmental Health and Disaster Management 

Annual Remuneration 313 830 378 041 

Car Allowance 100 554 83 992 

Performance Bonuses 73 227 27 565 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 13 099 100 470 

Cellphone Allowance 9 000 12 000 

Housing Allowance 60 000 40 000 

Bonus 26 153 - 

Acting Allowance 45 376 38 911 

 641 239 680 979 

2018: Me Njobe was acting as Manager Environmental Health and Disaster Management for the months July 2017 to 
December 2017. Mr Mthombeni was appointed during Juanurary 2018.  
2017: Me Njobe was acting for the months of March 2017 to June 2017 as Mr Mthombeni's contract ended in February 

 

2017..    

Remuneration of Mr Makhetha - Manager LED 

 

Annual Remuneration 52 305 - 

Car Allowance 13 186 - 

Performance Bonuses 24 409 - 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 12 326 - 

Cellphone Allowance 3 250 - 

Housing Allowance 5 000 - 

Acting Allowance 60 001 - 

Bonus 4 359 - 

                                                                                                                                                                174 836              - 

Mr Skele was acting as the Manager - LED from July 2017 to December 2017. 

Me Njobe was acting as the Manager - LED from January 2018 to February 2018.   
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Remuneration of Me L.S. Rabie-Khonkhe - Manager Corporate Services 

Annual Remuneration 104 610 - 

Car Allowance 30 289 - 

Performance Bonuses 12 205 - 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 20 732 - 

Cellphone Allowance 3 000 - 

Housing Allowance 10 000 - 

Acting Allowance 80 611 - 

Bonus 8 718 - 

                                                                                                                                                        270 165                                     - 

17. Remuneration of councillors   

Mayoral committee members 4 276 340 3 657 555 

Speaker 706 756 657 128 

Executive mayor 914 902 798 287 

Councillors 2 905 582 2 895 441 

 8 803 580 8 008 411 

In-kind benefits  

The Executive Mayor, Speaker and Mayoral Committee Members are full-time. Each is provided with an office and secretarial 

support at the cost of the Council. The Executive Mayor has the use of a council owned vehicle for official duties as well as 

two full-time VIP protection/ drivers. 

Executive Mayor Basic Travel Allowance Cellphone 

Allowance 

Pension and 

Medical Aid 

Total 

Cllr Ngangelizwe 758 777 - 68 259 64 842 891 878 

Cllr Speelman (July 2017 December 

2017) 

- - 23 024 - 23 024 

Total  

Speaker Basic Travel Allowance Cellphone 

Allowance 

Pension and 

Medical Aid 

Total 

Cllr Maleka 574 895 - 40 800 86 234 701 929 

Cllr Phukuntsi (July 2017 - 

December 2017) 

- - 4 827 - 4 827 

Total  

758 777 - 91 283 64 842 914 902 

574 895 - 45 627 86 234 706 756 



Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

16. Employee related costs (continued) 

307 

 

Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

Total  

Mayoral committee members Basic Travel Allowance Cellphone 

Allowance 

Pension and 

Medical Aid 

Total 

7 Members 2 487 052 1 008 085 244 800 531 802 4 271 739 

Cllr Lekaota - - 4 601 - 4 601 

 - - - - - 

2 487 052 1 008 085 249 401 531 802 4 276 340 
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

17. Remuneration of councillors (continued) 

Part time councillors Basic        Travel      Cellphone         Pension and    Total 

        Allowance       and data         Medical Aid 

       allowance 

17 Members                                          1 401 848                     508 501                316 689                225 048              2 452 086 

Session allowances                                 453 496 - --                                              453 496 

                                                               1 855 344                      508 501               316 689               225 048              2 905 582 

 

18. Depreciation and amortisation 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 2 298 245 3 137 651 

 

19. Impairment of assets 

Impairments 

  

Trade and other receivables 

Impairment of non-recoverable long outstanding debtors 

3 997 793 14 436 410 

 

20. Finance costs   

Non-current borrowings 1 025 636 1 484 485 

 

21. Inventory Consumed   

Consumables 128 533 23 581 

 

22. Contracted Services 

Outsourced Services 

Consultants and Professional Services 

4 123 134 1 665 105 

Consulting and Professional Services 

Contractors 

5 027 047 3 633 432 

Contractors 685 881 4 307 231 

23. Gains or (loss) on disposal of asset   

Gains or (loss) on disposal assets (27 392) (172 383) 
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

Outsourced Services 

Outsourced Services 

Consultants and Professional Services 

4 123 134 1 665 105 

Consulting and Professional Services 

Contractors 

5 027 047 3 633 432 

Contractors 685 881 4 307 231 

            9836 062 9 605 768 

Controlled entities 

Related party balances 

Investments 

Refer to note 8 

 

Investments in subsidiary 

Transfers 

                             100  100 

Lejwe le Putswa Development Agency (SOC) Ltd 

 

 

 

 

3 752 000 3 752 000 

24. Operational cost   

Achievement and Awards 176 940 - 

Advertising and Marketing 1 416 859 323 906 

Auditors Remuneration 2 490 709 2 444 333 

Bank charges 93 596 70 323 

Campaigns 257 969 855 104 

Communication 424 926 364 608 

Entertainment 265 469 270 758 

External Computer Services 941 963 331 167 

Fuel and oil 428 818 325 597 

Insurance 252 268 165 688 

Learnership and internships 236 240 - 

License Fees 51 852 59 018 

Magazines, Books and Periodicals - 1 604 

Municipal Services 701 872 501 075 

Printing and Stationery 545 543 482 787 

Property Rates 56 879 74 656 

Repairs and maintenance 389 715 476 160 

Skills Development Levy 684 429 571 303 

Staff recruitment 2 610 - 

Staff welfare - 296 283 

Subscriptions and Membership fees 739 875 695 960 

Supplier Development Programme - 62 420 

Travel and Subsistance 2 160 879 1 439 159 

Uniforms 5 411 5 000 

Workmen's Compensation Fund 269 139 357 914 
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

Purchases from related parties 

Chav Solution 

26. Financial instruments disclosure 

Categories of financial instruments 

2018 

Financial assets 

22 836 - 

 

                     At amortised cost 
Total 

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions                                      733 605 733 605 

23. Gains or (loss) on disposal of asset   

Gains or (loss) on disposal assets (27 392) (172 383) 

 

 12 593 961 10 174 823 

25. Related parties 
` 

Relationships 

     

Financial liabilities   

 

                         At amortised cost 
Total 

Other financial liabilities                                      9 094 803 9 094 803 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions                                     2 720 968 2 720 968 

 11 815 771 11 815 771 

2017 

Financial assets 

  

 

                             At amortised cost 
Total 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions                                                                                              432 518 432 518 

 

Financial liabilities   

 

                             At amortised cost 
Total 

Other financial liabilities                                  11 556 880 11 556 880 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions                                      2 771 923 2 771 923 

 14 328 803 14 328 803 
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

27. Cash generated from operations 

Surplus 

Adjustments for: 

12 540 638 7 495 228 

Depreciation and amortisation 2 298 245 3 137 651 

Gains or loss on sale of assets  27 392 172 383 

Impairment 3 997 793 14 436 810 

Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 1 716 000 (1 112 000) 

Movement in long service awards 

Changes in working capital: 

138 000 (2 490 000) 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (477 726) (114 070) 

Payables from exchange transactions 3 555 786 (238 708) 

VAT (301 087) (294 776) 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts          - (231 613) 

 23 495 041 20 760 905 

28. Commitments 

Authorised capital expenditure 

Already contracted for but not provided for 

  

 Karpah Construction and Motsoako Trading JV 1 141 114 - 

 Aganang Consulting Engineers 4 552 000 - 

 5 693 114 - 

Total capital commitments   

Already contracted for but not provided for 5 693 114 - 

 

Authorised operational expenditure 

Already contracted for but not provided for 

  

 Urban Eco-Development Economist 94 768 - 

 

Total operational commitments   

Already contracted for but not provided for 94 768 - 

 

This committed expenditure relates to plant and equipment and will be financed by available bank facilities, retained surpluses 

rights issue of shares, issue of debentures, mortgage facilities, existing cash resources, funds internally generated, etc. 

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 

Minimum lease payments due 

 - within one year 793 942 323 212 

 - in second to fifth year inclusive 1 012 230 43 942 

 1 806 172 367 154 

It is municipality policy to lease certain office equipment under operating leases.  The first lease term is 3 years at an annual 

rental.  The lease expired in August 2015 and the contract was renewed for an additional period of 3 years. The lease will 

expire in August 2018. The second lease term is 3 year at an annual rental. The lease will expire in December 2021 
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

The municipality leased a telephone system under an operating lease. The lease term is 3 years. The lease expired in 

December 2017 and was renewed for an additional period of 1 year. 

29. Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities 

 1 649 288 3 825 748 

2018:  

Ex- employees claiming against the municipality. 

The municipality was summoned as a second defendant for claims caused by accident  

2017: 

Ex- employees claiming against the municipality. 

The municipality was summoned as a second defendant for claims caused by accidents Senior managers' performance bonus 

possible obligation.
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

 

The prior year has been amended to account for prior period errors. 

Below is a description of each individual prior period error followed by a summary of the total effect of the prior period errors 

on the amounts previously disclosed. 

1. Accumulated surplus and cash and cash equivalents  

The adjustment to the accumulated surplus is due to the interest on the bank account not captured in the prior year.  

The effect of this adjustment on the prior year is as follows: 

Adjustments affecting the statement of financial position 

Decrease in accumulated surplus (218 611) 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 218 611 

 

Adjustments affecting the statement of financial performance - 

Increase in finance cost  

2. Accumulated surplus and property, plant and equipment  

The adjustment to the accumulated surplus is due to the change in estimate for residual values of property, plant and 

equipment.   

The effect of these adjustments on the prior year are as follows: 

Adjustments affecting the statement of financial position 

Decrease in accumulated surplus 240 690 

Decrease in property, plant and equipment (240 690) 

                                                 - 

3. Accumulated surplus and property, plant and equipment  

The adjustment is due to the change in useful life and difference from the date it was fully depreciated until 30 June 2017. The 

effect of these adjustments on the prior year is as follows: 

Increase in accumulated surplus        - (295 323)  

Increase in property, plant and equipment       -   295 323 

                                                                                                                                                                                - 

4. Accumulated surplus and Receivables from exchange transactions  

The adjustment is due to correction made in the capital debt for overpayments of council remuneration. 

The effect of these adjustments on the prior year are as follows: 

- 

218 611 

218 611 
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

- 

(12 570 324) 

Adjustment affecting the statement of financial position 

Increase in Receivables from non-exchange transactions - 37 342 

Increase in accumulated surplus - (37 342) 

Increase in opening balance of accumulated surplus                

 

 

Increase in interest received - trading - (113 591) 

Increase in impairment - 12 760 622 

 - 12 647 031 

Statement of Financial Performance as at 2017 Balance as 

previously 

reported 

Prior period 

error 

Reclassified note 

39 

Restated 

balance 

Operational revenue 811 171 - - 811 171 

Interest received 7 502 468 113 591 - 7 616 059 

Transfers and 

subsidies - - 

Total revenue - 

Expenditure      

Employee related cost (63 203 555) - 357 913 (62 845 642) 

Remuneration of councillors (8 008 411) - - (8 008 411) 

Transfers to local municipalities (275 000) - 275 000 - 

Depreciation and amortisation (3 432 972) 295 321 - (3 137 651) 

Reversal of impairments / (Impairment loss) (1 676 188) (12 760 622) - (14 436 810) 

Finance cost (1 265 874) (218 621) - (1 484 495) 

Repairs and maintenance (476 160) - 476 160 - 

Consulting and professional fees (3 848 530) - 3 848 530 - 

Transfer to the development agency (3 752 000) - 3 752 000 - 

General expenses (18 464 687) - 18 464 687 - 

Operational cost - - (10 174 823) (10 174 823) 

Contracted services - - (9 605 768) (9 605 768) 

Transfers and subsidies - - (6 846 954) (6 846 954) 

Inventory consumed - - (23 581) (23 581) 

Operating lease 

expenditure - (523 164) 

Total expenditure 

Operating surplus / (deficit) 19 893 169 (12 570 324) - 7 322 845 

Gain/ (loss) on disposal of assets and liabilities              172 383     -                 -                       172 383 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year                                      20 065 552                                              -          7 495 228 

(12 647 031) 

(12 647 031) 

116 327 673 116 327 673 

124 641 312 113 591 124 754 903 

- (523 164) 

(104 403 377) (12 683 922) - (117 087 299) 
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017 
Restated* 

- 

(40 569 907) 

Statement of Financial Position as at 2017 Balance as 

previously 

reported 

Prior period 

error 

Reclassified note  

39 

Restated 

balance 

Cash and cash equivalents 48 072 175 (218 611) 40 569 907 88 423 471 

Other financial assets 40 569 907 - (40 569 907) - 

VAT receivable / (VAT payable) 432 518 - - 432 518 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 54 624 - 54 624 

Total current assets 89 129 224 - 88 910 613 

Property, plant and equipment 59 898 403 536 012 - 60 434 415 

Intangible assets 850 545 - - 850 545 

Investments in controlled entities 100 - - 100 

Total non-current assets        

Payables from exchange transactions (8 295 670) - - (8 295 670) 

Other financial liabilities (11 556 880) - - (11 556 880) 

Long service awards (3 827 000) - - (3 827 000) 

Employee benefit obligation                                                (11 479 000) - - (11 479 000) 

Total liabilities                                                                     (35 158 550)                           -                           -          (35 158 550)                      

Accumulated surplus - Opening balance 

Total net assets 

60 749 048 536 012 61 285 060 

(114 719 722) (280 059) - (114 999 781) 

(114 719 722) (280 059) - (114 999 781) 



 

316 

 

31. Risk management 

Financial risk management 

The municipality’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:  credit risk and liquidity risk and market risk. 

Liquidity risk 

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages liquidity risk 

through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

The table below analyses the municipality’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 

statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted 

cash flows. Balances due within twelve months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

At 30 June 2018 Less than 1 

year 

Between 1 and 

2 years 

Between 2 and 

5 years 

Borrowings - 6 373 835 - 

Trade and other payables 2 720 968 - - 

At 30 June 2017 Less than 1 

year 

Between 1 and 

2 years 

Between 2 and 

5 years 

Borrowings - 2 632 594 6 152 357 

Trade and other payables 2 771 923 - - 

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and receivables. The municipality only deposits cash with major banks 

with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

Cash and cash equivalents and investments - the municipality limits its credit risk by only banking with registered financial institutions in 

terms of the Banks Act, 94 of 1990 operating in South Africa.  The municipality does not expect any counterparty to fail to meets its 

obligation. 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions - management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis.  If there 

is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past 

experience and other factors. 

Market risk 

Interest rate risk 

As the municipality has no significant interest-bearing assets, the municipality’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 

independent of changes in market interest rates. 

The risk is managed on an on-going basis. 

32. Going concern 

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2018, the municipality had an accumulated surplus (deficit) of R 127 855 904 and that the 

municipality's total liabilities exceed its assets by R 127 855 904. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 

presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 

contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

 

32. Going concern (continued) 

The ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that 

the accounting officer continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the municipality and that the subordination agreement 

referred to in note XX of these annual financial statements will remain in force for so long as it takes to restore the solvency of the 

municipality. 
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775 329 

33. Events after the reporting date 

There was no events after the reporting date, which needs to be disclosed. 

 34. Irregular expenditure 

Opening balance 775 329 775 329 

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year (Non-compliance with SCM 

regulations) 

1 458 878 - 

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year (Council remuneration) 4 523 130 - 

Less: Amounts recoverable (transferred to receivables) (4 523 130) - 

2 234 207 

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification   

Current year - the full extent of the irregular expenditure is still in the process of 

being determined. 
1 458 878 775 329 

Prior years - the irregular expenditure is still under investigation.                                                          775 329                    -         

  

35. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act 

Contributions to organised local government 

   

Current year subscription / fee 700 630 650 893  

Amount paid - current year (700 630) (650 893)  

 

Audit fees   

Current year fee 2 490 709 2 444 333 

Amount paid - current year (2 490 709) (2 444 333) 

 

PAYE, SDL and UIF   

Current year subscription / fee 14 791 896 11 087 310 

Amount paid - current year (14 791 896) (11 087 310) 

 

Pension and medical aid deductions   

Current year subscription / fee 10 771 187 10 928 774 

Amount paid - current year (10 771 187) (10 928 774) 

 
 

 

35. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued) 

VAT 

VAT receivable 733 605 432 518 

 

VAT output payables and VAT input receivables are shown in note 5.  

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year. 

 

 

2 234 207 775 329 

- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 
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36. Deviation from supply chain management regulations 

Paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management policy must 

provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process. 

Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in certain 

circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the accounting officer 

and includes a note to the annual financial statements. 

Details per supplier Reason for deviation 2018 2017 

Builtmat Masilonyana Local Municipality on 2 

February 2018 had an urgent request 

for intervention as a result of a disaster 

that occured. The district municipality 

distributed water tankers on 3 February 

2018 without following the SCM 

process as it was an emergency 

through Disaster Relief. 

29 000 - 

Big Zola Transport The Executive Mayor's official car 

broke down on the 21st March 2017, in 

Theunissen on his way to Welkom. 

Since this was on a public holiday and 

the offices were closed, it was 

impractical to follow the SCM 

processes. A towing truck was hired to 

tow the official car to the garage for 

service and repairs. But the official 

order was issued first thing the 

following day.  

- 4 600 

Mihlovuyo Trading and Projects CC It was an emergency as it happened 

after hours on Friday 19th May 2017 at 

18:00. A house on Oribi street burnt 

down and the family had nowhere to 

sleep. Accommodation had to be 

arranged for the family without following 

the SCM processes. 

- 14 508 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37. Budget differences 

Material differences between budget and actual amounts 

X1 - The interest charged on outstanding councillors were not budgeted for and the amount budgeted for interest on investments was 

based on a more conservative approach on a volatile market 

X2 - Savings on employees who resigned and contracts ending. 

X3 - Due to the changed in estimation of residual values, depreciation were affected.  

X4 - The interest charged on outstanding councillors were not budgeted for. 

X5 - Savings on contracted services.  

X6 - Savings on operational cost. 

 

19 108 8 086 
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38. Change in estimate 

Property, plant and equipment 

The residual value and useful life of fully depreciated assets were assessed and amended on 1 July 2017. The amendment was applied 

in retrospect and resulted in adjustments to the audited financial statements of 30 June 2017.  

39. Comparative figures 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified due to the implementation of MSCOA. 

The effects of the reclassification are as follows: 

Statement of financial position - extract 

Statement of financial performance - extract 

 Comparative 
figures 

previously 

reported 

Reclassification After 

reclassification 

Repairs and maintenance 476 160 (476 160) - 

Consulting and professional fees 3 848 530 (3 848 530) - 

Employee related costs 63 203 555 (357 913) 62 845 642 

General expenses 18 464 687 (18 464 687) - 

Remuneration of councillors 8 008 411 - 8 008 411 

Transfers to municipalities 275 000 (275 000) - 

Transfer to development agency 3 752 000 (3 752 000) - 

Operational cost - 10 174 823 10 174 823 

Contracted services - 9 605 768 9 605 768 

Transfers and subsidies - 6 846 954 6 846 954 

Inventory consumed - 23 581 23 581 

Operating lease expenditure - 523 164 523 164 

Total                                

       98 028 343 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98 028 343          - 
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APPENDIX L 
 

 

 

Conditional Grant Received 

Adjustment 

Budget 

2017/2018 

Actual 

Amount 

2017/2018 

 

Variance 

% 
CapMonetar: Rural Household Infrast Grand R2 276 000 R2 276 000 100% 

Capital : Expanded Public Works  Programme R1 000 000 R1 000 000 100% 

Capital : Local Government Financial Management R1 250 000 R1 250 000 100% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX M 
 

Capital Expenditure Prior Year 

2016/2017 

Adjustment 

Budget 

2017/2018 

Actual 

Amount 

2017/2018 

 

 
New Assets R1 378 749 R4 745 000 R3 151 749 

Upgrade /Renewal R0 R0 R0 
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APPENDIX N 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX R 
 

Loans Balance 2017/2018 
ABSA BANK R9 094 803 

 

 

APPENDIX N 
 

 

Capital Expenditure 

Adjustment 

Budget 

2017/2018 

Actual 

Amount 

2017/2018 

 

Variance 

% 
New Assets R4 745 000 R3 151 749 66% 

Upgrade/Renewal R0 R0 0% 
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SECTION D & E 

AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT 
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